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Board of Directors, Board of Statutory Auditors and

External Auditors

Board of Directors

Marco Mangiagalli Chairman

Gianmarco Montanari Vice Chairman

Alessandro Foti Chief Executive Officer and General Manager
Arturo Patarnello Directors

Elena Biffi

Giancarla Branda

Maria Alessandra Zunino De Pignier
Maria Lucia Candida

Marin Gueorguiev

Paola Generali

Patrizia Albano
Board of Statutory Auditors
Luisa Marina Pasotti Chairman
Giacomo Ramenghi Standing Auditors
Massimo Gatto
Lucia Montecamozzo Alternate Auditors
Marco Salvatore
KPMG S.p.A. External Auditors
Erick Vecchi Manager responsible for preparing the

Company'’s financial reports

The Board of Directors was appointed by the Ordinary Shareholders' Meeting of FinecoBank of April 27t, 2023 and will remain in office until the approval of the annual Financial Statements as
at December 31, 2025.

The Board of Directors of FinecoBank on 17t September 2024 has appointed - with the favourable opinion of the Board of Statutory Auditors - Mr Erick Vecchi as Manager Responsible for
Preparing the Company's Financial Reports pursuant to art. 154-bis of the TUF and art. 28 of the Articles of Association, in replacement of Ms Lorena Pelliciari, who retains the role of Chief
Financial Officer of the Bank. The appointment is effective from 18" September 2024 and will be valid until the date of the Shareholders' Meeting called to approve the financial statements as
at 31 December 2025.

Registered office

Piazza Durante 11, 20131 Milan, Italy

"FinecoBank Banca Fineco S.p.A."

in abbreviated form "FinecoBank S.p.A.", or "Banca Fineco S.p.A." or "Fineco Banca S.p.A.".

Bank enrolled in the Register of Banks and Parent Company of the FinecoBank Banking Group — enrolled in the Register of Banking Groups at No.
3015, Member of the National Guarantee Fund and National Interbank Deposit Guarantee Fund.

Tax Code and Milan-Monza-Brianza-Lodi Companies Register no. 01392970404 - R.E.A. (Economic and Administrative Index) no. 1598155, VAT
No. 12962340159
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Introduction to the Annual Accounts and Reports

In implementation of Legislative Decree no. 38 of February 28", 2005, these Annual Accounts and Reports comprise the Consolidated Financial
Report and Accounts of the FinecoBank Group (hereinafter Group) and the Financial Report and Accounts of FinecoBank Banca Fineco S.p.A.
(hereinafter FinecoBank or Fineco or the Bank), which have been prepared in accordance with the IAS/IFRS issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), including the SIC and IFRIC interpretation documents, as endorsed by the European Commission, pursuant to EU Regulation
1606/2002 of July 19, 2002 and applicable to financial reports for the periods starting on January 1st, 2024. It also includes, in a separate section of
the Consolidated Report on Operations, the Sustainability Reporting, prepared in accordance with the reporting standards applied pursuant to Directive
2013/34/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of June 26, 2013, and the legislative decree adopted in implementation of Article 13 of
Law No. 15 of February 21, 2024, and with the specifications adopted pursuant to Article 8(4) of Regulation (EU) 2020/852 of the European Parliament
and of the Council of June 18, 2020 (Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive hereinafter “CSRD”).

In its Circular 262 of December 22, 2005 as amended, the Bank of Italy laid down the formats for the financial statements and explanatory notes to
the accounts of banks and regulated financial companies that are parents of banking groups, in the exercise of the powers established by art. 43 of
the legislative decree August 18™, 2015 n. 136, which have been used by the Bank to prepare the Consolidated Report and Accounts and the Separate
Report and Accounts.

The Consolidated Report and Accounts consists of:

o the Consolidated Financial Statements, represented by the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Income Statement, the
Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity, the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement, presented with a comparison to the corresponding financial statements of 2023;

o the Notes to the Consolidated Accounts;

and is accompanied by:

o the Consolidated Report on Operations, which includes the condensed accounts, the main results of the various business areas, and
comments on the results for the year. It also includes, in a special section, the Sustainability Reporting prepared in accordance with CSRD.
In support of the comments on the results for the year, the condensed Income Statement and Balance Sheet tables are presented and
illustrated in the Consolidated Report on Operations, the reconciliation of which with the consolidated Financial Statements is shown in the
Annexes (in line with Consob Communication No. 6064293 of July 28, 2006), and the Alternative Performance Measures ("APMs") are
used, the explanatory description of which regarding the content and, if applicable, the calculation methods used are shown in the Glossary
(in line with the guidelines published on October 5%, 2015 by the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA/2015/1415));

and includes:

o the Certification of the Consolidated Report and Accounts pursuant to Article 81-ter of Consob Regulation no. 11971 of May 14,
1999 and subsequent amendments;

o the Certification of Sustainability Reporting pursuant to Article 81-ter, paragraph 1, of Consob Regulation No. 11971 of May 14,
1999, as amended and supplemented.

Any lack of correspondence between the figures shown in the Consolidated Report on Operations and the Consolidated Financial Statements is due
to roundings.

The Financial Report and Accounts consists of:

o the Financial Statements, represented by the Balance Sheet, the Income Statement, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, the Cash Flow Statement, presented with a comparison to the corresponding financial
statements of 2023;

e the Notes to the Accounts;

and includes the Certification of the Annual Financial Statements pursuant to Article 81-ter of Consob Regulation no. 11971 of May 14th, 1999
and subsequent amendments.

For the Report on Operations pertaining to the Financial Report and Accounts of FinecoBank S.p.A., please refer to the Consolidated Report on
Operations in which, in a specific section, the reclassified financial statements, their quarterly evolution and the comments on the Bank results of the
financial year are shown. The reconciliation of the condensed Financial Statements with the Financial Statements is reported in the Annexes.

The annual report also includes:

e the Report of the Board of Statutory Auditors;
e the Reports of the External Auditors.

As previously mentioned, FinecoBank prepares a single document called “Report and accounts” which include the Group’s Consolidated Financial
Statements and the FinecoBank’s Financial Statements. The integration of the contents of the two Financial Statements documents into a single one
leads to the elimination of duplications of some of qualitative information presented in both documents and the adoption of a system of cross-references
between the chapters dedicated to the consolidated financial statements and the company ones, in order to facilitate the reading; pursuant to these

FinecoBank - Accounts and Reports 2024 9
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Introduction to the Annual Reports and Accounts

references the contents of the each referenced paragraph is entirely reported in the paragraph containing the reference. For further details on this,
please refer to the Annex “Summary of references to qualitative information in the consolidated financial statements” of the Financial Statements of
FinecoBank.

Information regarding corporate governance and ownership structures, required pursuant to art. 123-bis, paragraph 3 of Legislative Decree February
2411998 n. 58, appear in a separate report approved by the Board of Directors, which can be consulted in the “Governance” section of the FinecoBank
website (https://about.finecobank.com).

In addition, the following documents, drawn up in accordance with the relevant approval procedures, are also published and made available on the
FinecoBank website (https://about.finecobank.com): the "Report on the remuneration policy and remuneration paid”, drawn up in accordance with art.
123-ter of Legislative Decree no. 58 of 24 February 1998 and art. 84-quater, paragraph 1, of the Issuers' Regulation); the document "Country by
Country Information", drawn up pursuant to art. 89 of Directive 2013/36/EU of the European Parliament and of the European Council (CRD V),
amended by Directive (EU) 2019/878 (so-called CRD V), and the document "Disclosure to the public of the FinecoBank Group - Pillar Il as at December
31st,2024", by Regulation (EU) 575/2013 (so called CRR) and subsequent Regulations amending its content.

Finally, it should be noted that, under Directive 2004/109/EC (the "Transparency Directive") and Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/815, it is mandatory
for issuers of securities listed on regulated markets in the European Union to prepare their annual financial reports in the XHTML format and to tag
their IFRS consolidated financial statements using the XBRL tagging language, based on the European Single Electronic Format (ESEF) approved
by ESMA. The Group's Consolidated Annual Financial Report, which includes both the consolidated and parent company financial statements, is
prepared in XHTML format and includes the tagging, in the consolidated financial statements, of the information required by the Regulations for 2023.
In particular, issuers are required to mark all information disclosed in the IFRS consolidated financial statements, or through cross-references to other
parts of the annual financial reports, that corresponds to the information specified in Annex Il of the Delegated Regulation, if present in the IFRS
consolidated financial statements. It can be consulted on FinecoBank's website (https://www.finecobank.com). For further information, please refer to
the paragraph "The single electronic reporting format for preparing annual financial reports" in Part A - Accounting policies of the Notes to the
consolidated accounts.

This document, PDF format, does not fulfill the obligations deriving from Directive 2004/109/EC (the "Transparency Directive") and Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2019/815 (the "ESEF Regulation" - European Single Electronic Format) for which a dedicated XHTML format has been prepared.

This report has been translated into the English language solely for the convenience of international readers.
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Summary data

FinecoBank is one of the leading FinTech banks in Europe. Listed on the FTSE MIB, Fineco offers a unique business model in Europe, combining the
best platforms with a large network of financial advisors (hereinafter Network). It offers banking, credit, trading and investment services from a single
account through transactional and advisory platforms developed with proprietary technologies. Fineco is a leader in brokerage in Europe, and one of
the most important players in private banking in Italy, with evolved and highly personalized advisory services. As at December 31, 2024, the Network
consisted of 3,002 financial advisors, spread across the territory with 438 financial shops (Fineco Centers).

The FinecoBank Group consists of the Parent Company Fineco and Fineco Asset Management DAC (hereinafter Fineco AM), a collective asset
management company under Irish law, whose mission is to develop investments solutions in partnership with top international assets manager.

FinecoBank is listed on the Milan Stock Market and is included on Borsa Italiana’s FTSE Mib index STOXX Europe 600 Index.

On April 19, 2024, S&P Global Ratings agency confirmed the rating assigned to Fineco: “BBB” long-term with a stable outlook and maintaining “A-2"
short-term.

FinecoBank is included in Borsa Italiana MIB ESG Index (Euronext), FTSE4Good, Bloomberg Gender Equality Index (GEI) 2023, S&P Global 1200
ESG Index and S&P Global LargeMidCap ESG Index, Standard Ethics Italian Banks Index, and Standard Ethics Italian Index sustainability indices. In
addition:

Standard Ethics: rating of “EEE-", on a scale ranging from F to EEE;

Sustainalytics: ESG risk rating of 12.1 (Low risk), on a scale of 100 (worst performance - Severe) to 0 (best performance - Negligible);
S&P Global ESG Score: score of 68 out of 100;

CDP Climate Change': rating of “C”, on a scale of “D-" to “A”;

MSCI: ESG rating of “AA”, on a scale of “CCC” to “AAA”;

Moody's Analytics: ESG overall score of 59 points out of 100;

LSEG ESG Score: score of 82 out of 100.

In 2024, the Group recorded very robust growth, further confirmation of its ability to adapt perfectly to the new scenario, benefiting in particular from
the strong push towards investments and advanced advisory services. Results that confirm, on the one hand, the strengthening of asset management
and, on the other, the increasing interest of clients in interacting with the markets through the Bank's investment platform. Added to this is the
contribution of Fineco AM, which also accelerated growth in 2024 with a wide range of internally developed investment solutions that allow gradual
exposure to equity markets and the real economy.

During 2024, 152,357 new customers were acquired, bringing the total to 1,655,649.

Total net sales recorded in 2024 came to € 10,083 million, confirming the acceleration of the Bank's growth dynamics. In particular the net sales of
assets under custody, the net sales of assets under management and the direct deposits recorded positive net inflows of € 4,779 million, € 4,093
million and € 1,211 million respectively. Fineco AM's ratio, calculated by comparing the company's net retail sales to net sales of assets under
management, is 118% (77.4% in 2023). During 2024, net sales through the Network totaled € 7,834 million.

At the end of 2024, the balance of Total Financial Assets from customers stood at € 140,766 million, recording a 14.9% compared to € 122,557 million
at the end of 2023, thanks to the net sales recorded in 2024 and to positive market effect. As at December 31st, 2024 the balance of Total Financial
Assets of the Network amounts to € 121,741 million. The balance of Total Financial Assets related to Private clients, i.e. with assets above € 500,000,
totaled € 68,426 million, equals to 48.6% of the Group’s Total Financial Assets, up by 22.3% compared to December 31st, 2023.

Credit quality remains high, driven by the principle of offering credit exclusively to existing customers, making use of specialist tools to analyse the
bank’s vast information base. The cost of risk, equal to 5 bps, is structurally low and net impaired loans was 0.08% of loans to ordinary customers as
at December 31st, 2024 (0.07% as at December 31st, 2023).

The brokerage business also performed strongly in 2024, with revenues 13% higher than previous year.

The net profit for the year amounted to € 652.3 million, showing an increase of 7.1% on the previous year. The cost/income ratio amounted to 25.22%
(24.10% as at December 31st, 2023), confirming the operating efficiency of the Group and the spread of the company culture on controlling costs.

As at December 31st, 2024 the Common Equity Tier 1 ratio stood at 25.91%, up from 24.34% as at December 31st, 2023. The Leverage ratio stands
at 5.22%, up from 4.95% as at the end of 2023. The Group's liquidity indicators at December 31st, 2024 are very strong: the Liquidity Coverage Ratio
(LCR) is equal to 909%?2 and the Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) is equal to 382%.

1 The rating for the reporting year 2023 was released in February 2024, last available data.
2 Calculated as the average of the liquidity coverage ratio based on month-end observations over the last 12 months for each quarter of the relevant reporting period, consistent with Pillar 3 Disclosures.

FinecoBank - Accounts and Reports 2024 13
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Condensed financial statements and indicators

The Consolidated Report on operations presents and illustrates the reclassified income statement and balance sheet (Alternative Performance
Measures, “APMs”). The main reclassifications and aggregations of the items reported in the condensed financial statements are shown at the end of
the Condensed Consolidated Income Statement and Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet, whereas the full reconciliation of which with the
consolidated financial statements is shown in the Appendices "Reconciliation Schedules for the Preparation of the Reclassified Consolidated Financial
Statements" (in line with Consob Communication No.6064293 of July 28t, 2006). In addition, other APMs are also used, the content and, where
applicable, the calculation methods used of which are described in the Glossary (in line with the guidelines published on October 5%, 2015 by the
European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA/2015/1415)).

With reference to APMs, the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA) has issued specific guidelines? on the criteria for their presentation
in regulated information, including therefore the Consolidated Financial Report, when such indicators are not defined or provided for in the financial
reporting framework. These guidelines are intended to promote the usefulness and transparency of APMs, and compliance with them will improve the
comparability, reliability and understandability of APMs, with consequent benefits for users of financial information. Consob has transposed the
Guidelines in Italy and incorporated them into its own supervisory practices*. According to the definition of the ESMA Guidelines, an APM is an indicator
of historical or future financial performance, financial position or cash flows that is different from a financial indicator defined or specified in applicable
financial reporting frameworks and is usually derived from financial statement items prepared in accordance with applicable financial reporting
frameworks. Indicators published in application of the prudential regulation do not strictly fall within the definition of APM.

3ESMA/2015/1415.
4 Consob Communication No. 0092543 of December 31, 2015.
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Condensed Accounts
Consolidated balance sheet

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at Changes
ASSETS 12/31/2024 12/31/2023 Amounts %
Cash and cash balances 1,962,876 2,266,550 (303,674) -13.4%
Financial assets held for trading 28,539 14,109 14,430 102.3%
Loans and receivables to banks 370,733 376,373 (5,640) -1.5%
Loans and receivables to customers 6,235,643 6,198,541 37,102 0.6%
Financial investments 23,425,447 21,403,026 2,022,421 9.4%
Hedging instruments 527,272 707,274 (180,002) -25.5%
Property, plant and equipment 146,296 146,497 (201) 0.1%
Goodwill 89,602 89,602 - n.a.
Other intangible assets 35,242 34,465 7 2.3%
Tax assets 53,250 49,997 3,253 6.5%
Tax credits acquired 1,259,059 1,618,030 (358,971) -22.2%
Other assets 554,858 411,236 143,622 34.9%
Total assets 34,688,817 33,315,700 1,373,117 4.1%

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at Changes
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12/31/2024 12/31/2023 Amounts %
Deposits from banks 850,600 866,978 (16,378) -1.9%
Deposits from customers 29,988,914 28,757,589 1,231,325 4.3%
Debt securities in issue 810,228 809,264 964 0.1%
Financial liabilities held for trading 8,130 6,997 1,133 16.2%
Hedging instruments 45,321 28,712 16,609 57.8%
Tax liabilities 19,519 86,706 (67,187) -77.5%
Other liabilities 576,793 564,778 12,015 2.1%
Shareholders' equity 2,389,312 2,194,676 194,636 8.9%
- capital and reserves 1,756,076 1,592,305 163,771 10.3%
- revaluation reserves (19,049) (6,730) (12,319) 183.0%
- net profit 652,285 609,101 43,184 7.1%
Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 34,688,817 33,315,700 1,373,117 41%

FinecoBank - Accounts and Reports 2024 15
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Consolidated balance sheet - Quarterly data

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at
ASSETS 12/31/2024 09/30/2024 06/30/2024 03/31/2024 12/31/2023
Cash and cash balances 1,962,876 2,863,043 2,833,922 3,425,309 2,266,550
Financial assets held for trading 28,539 21,365 21,214 19,456 14,109
Loans and receivables to banks 370,733 429,706 388,285 382,959 376,373
Loans and receivables to customers 6,235,643 6,050,507 6,116,128 6,097,730 6,198,541
Financial investments 23,425,447 21,510,148 20,729,052 20,406,723 21,403,026
Hedging instruments 527,272 562,503 737,713 704,784 707,274
Property, plant and equipment 146,296 141,645 142,826 142,723 146,497
Goodwill 89,602 89,602 89,602 89,602 89,602
Other intangible assets 35,242 33,306 33,515 34,159 34,465
Tax assets 53,250 49,503 49,466 50,859 49,997
Tax credits acquired 1,259,059 1,317,226 1,298,821 1,622,329 1,618,030
Other assets 554,858 347,013 341,226 291,585 411,236
Total assets 34,688,817 33,415,567 32,781,770 33,268,218 33,315,700

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12/31/2024 09/30/2024 06/30/2024 03/31/2024 12/31/2023
Deposits from banks 850,600 925,420 1,171,776 1,032,627 866,978
Deposits from customers 29,988,914 28,580,571 28,005,234 28,070,347 28,757,589
Debt securities in issue 810,228 808,368 804,009 799,699 809,264
Financial liabilities held for trading 8,130 14,599 9,722 10,033 6,997
Hedging instruments 45,321 38,733 (1,366) 6,398 28,712
Tax liabilities 19,519 100,174 33418 148,158 86,706
Other liabilities 576,793 573,759 544,316 531,359 564,778
Shareholders' equity 2,389,312 2,373,943 2,214,661 2,669,597 2,194,676
- capital and reserves 1,756,076 1,889,060 1,900,957 2,529,155 1,592,305
- revaluation reserves (19,049) (5,112) (6,616) (6,564) (6,730)
- net profit 652,285 489,995 320,320 147,006 609,101
Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 34,688,817 33,415,567 32,781,770 33,268,218 33,315,700
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The main reclassifications and combinations of asset items of the condensed consolidated balance sheet concern the following:

e  debt securities accounted for under item “40. Financial assets at amortised cost, a) loans and receivables to banks” and under item “40.
Financial assets at amortised cost, b) loans and receivables to customers” were reclassified and shown under “Financial investments”. In
the same combination, securities accounted for under item "20. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss c) other financial assets
mandatorily at fair value", "30. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income" and "70. Equity investments”;

e financial assets accounted for under item “40. Financial assets at amortised cost, a) loans and receivables to banks” and under item “40.
Financial assets at amortised cost, b) loans and receivables to customers” other than debt securities are shown, respectively, under item
“Loans and receivables to banks” and “Loans and receivables to customers”;

o items “50. Hedging derivatives” and “60. Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged financial assets (+/-)" have been combined and shown
under item “Hedging instruments” of assets on condensed consolidated balance sheet;

o the credits acquired as part of Decree Law 34/2020, recorded under item "130. Other assets", were reported under "Tax credits acquired”.

With reference to the liabilities of the condensed consolidated balance sheet, the main reclassifications and combinations of the items concern the
following:

o items “40. Hedging derivatives” and “50. Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged financial liabilities (+/-)” have been combined and shown
under item “Hedging instruments” of liabilities on condensed consolidated balance sheet;

o items “80. Other liabilities”, “90. Provision for employee severance pay” and “100. Provisions for risks and charges” have been combined
and shown under item “Other liabilities”;

e items that represent the Shareholder’s equity have been combined and shown under item “Shareholders' equity”.
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Consolidated Income Statement

(Amounts in € thousand)

Year Changes

2024 2023 Amounts %
Financial margin 711,162 687,956 23,206 3.4%
of which Net interest 710,454 687,748 22,706 3.3%
of which Profits from Treasury 708 208 500 240.4%
Dividends and other income from equity investments 17 (68) 85 na.
Net commission 527,026 489,906 37,120 7.6%
Net trading, hedging and fair value income 79,043 60,402 18,641 30.9%
Net other expenses/income (773) (565) (208) 36.8%
REVENUES 1,316,475 1,237,631 78,844 6.4%
Staff expenses (137,847) (126,867) (10,980) 8.7%
Other administrative expenses (370,018) (307,918) (62,100) 20.2%
Recovery of expenses 201,658 163,603 38,055 23.3%
Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets (25,791) (27,139) 1,348 -5.0%
Operating costs (331,998) (298,321) (33,677) 11.3%
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 984,477 939,310 45,167 4.8%
l(;l:rtn mﬁgmm losses on loans and provisions for guarantees and (2,088) (3,596) 1508 41.9%
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 982,389 935,714 46,675 5.0%
Other charges and provisions (44,873) (63,587) 18,714 -29.4%
Net income from investments 1,768 11 1,657 na.
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 939,284 872,238 67,046 7.7%
Income tax for the year (286,999) (263,137) (23,862) 9.1%
NET PROFIT (LOSS) AFTER TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 652,285 609,101 43,184 71%
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 652,285 609,101 43,184 71%
NET PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP 652,285 609,101 43,184 71%
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Consolidated Income Statement - Quarterly data

(Amounts in € thousand)

2024

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
Financial margin 180,762 182,495 177,574 170,331
of which Net interest 179,003 182,495 178,533 170,423
of which Profits from Treasury 1,759 - (959) (92)
Dividends and other income from equity investments (] 15 1 8
Net commission 128,582 128,600 129,986 139,858
Net trading, hedging and fair value income 17,489 20,219 18,368 22,967
Net other expenses/income 177 (29) (176) (745)
REVENUES 327,003 331,300 325,753 332,419
Staff expenses (33,389) (33,634) (35,083) (35,741)
Other administrative expenses (87,314) (90,900) (89,794) (102,010)
Recovery of expenses 47818 49,692 52,529 51,619
Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets (6,403) (6,214) (6,437) (6,737)
Operating costs (79,288) (81,056) (78,785) (92,869)
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 247,715 250,244 246,968 239,550
Net impairment losses on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments (260) (1,429) (985) 586
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 247,455 248,815 245,983 240,136
Other charges and provisions (38,110) 457 (3,539) (3,681)
Net income from investments 399 582 817 (30)
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 209,744 249,854 243,261 236,425
Income tax for the period (62,738) (76,540) (73,586) (74,135)
NET PROFIT (LOSS) AFTER TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 147,006 173,314 169,675 162,290
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 147,006 173,314 169,675 162,290
NET PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP 147,006 173,314 169,675 162,290
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(Amounts in € thousand)

2023

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
Financial margin 157,431 170,847 180,184 179,494
of which Net interest 157,431 170,765 180,047 179,505
of which Profits from Treasury - 82 137 (11)
Dividends and other income from equity investments - (6) (28) (34)
Net commission 120,871 121,254 120,074 127,707
Net trading, hedging and fair value income 15,123 14,956 16,249 14,074
Net other expenses/income 235 (19) (479) (302)
REVENUES 293,660 307,032 316,000 320,939
Staff expenses (29,795) (30,583) (31,145) (35,344)
Other administrative expenses (74,630) (72,727) (76,613) (83,948)
Recovery of expenses 37,625 38,832 43,366 43,780
Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets (6,587) (6,650) (6,884) (7,018)
Operating costs (73,387) (71,128) (71,276) (82,530)
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 220,273 235,904 244,724 238,409
Net impairment losses on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments (664) (1,415) 78 (1,595)
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 219,609 234,489 244,802 236,814
Other charges and provisions (9,269) (2,737) (39,974) (11,607)
Net income from investments (723) 142 692
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 209,617 231,894 205,520 225,207
Income tax for the period (62,365) (70,266) (60,200) (70,3086)
NET PROFIT (LOSS) AFTER TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 147,252 161,628 145,320 154,901
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 147,252 161,628 145,320 154,901
NET PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP 147,252 161,628 145,320 154,901
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The main reclassifications and combinations of items of the condensed consolidated income statement concern the following:

e under item “Financial margin”, item “30. Net interest margin” is shown and gains and losses on disposal or repurchase of non-impaired
debt securities accounted for item “100. Gains and losses on disposal or repurchase of: a) financial assets at amortised cost — debt
securities” and “100. Gains (Losses) on disposal and repurchase of: b) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
— debt securities” are reclassified and shown. In the same aggregate, income from securities lending activities performed by the Parent
Company's treasury, recorded under item “40. Fee and commission income”, is included;

e under item “Dividends and other income from equity investments”, in addition to dividends received on equity investments valued at cost,
if any, write-backs (write-downs) of investments accounted for using the equity method, recorded under item “250. Profit (loss) on equity
investments”, are reclassified;

e item “Net commission”, includes item “60. Net fee and commission income”, less net commissions on Treasury securities lending carried
out by Parent Company’s treasury, and the other charges/income related to the asset manager activity performed by the subsidiary Fineco
AM related to the application of the Fixed Operating Expenses model, recorded under item “230. Other net operating income”, are
reclassified;

e under item “Net trading, hedging and fair value income”, items “80. Gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities held for trading”, “90.
Fair value adjustments in hedge accounting”, “100. Gains (losses) on disposal or repurchase of: b) financial asset at fair value through
other comprehensive income”, less unimpaired debt securities shown under item “Financial margin”, and “110. Gains (losses) on financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss” are aggregated and shown. In the same aggregate dividends and similar revenues
from held-for-trading or mandatorily at fair value equity instruments, recorded under item “70. Dividend income and similar revenue”, are
reclassified and shown;

e adjustments of leasehold improvements, recorded under item “230. Other net operating income”, are shown in item “Other administrative
expenses’;

e recovery of expenses, recorded under item “230. Other net operating income”, are shown in item “Recovery of expenses”;

e contributions to the Single Resolution Fund (SRF), Deposit Guarantee Schemes (DGS) and Life insurance guarantee fund, recorded under
item “190. Administrative expenses - b) other administrative expenses”, are reclassified and shown in item “Other charges and provisions”.
In the same aggregate item “200. Net provisions for risks and charges” is shown;

e  impairment losses/write-backs for credit risk on debt securities, recorded under item “130. Net impairment/write-backs for credit on: a)
financial assets at amortised cost” and “130. Impairment losses/writebacks on: b) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income”, are reclassified and shown in item “Net income from investments”.
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Main balance sheet figures

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at Changes

12/31/2024 12/31/2023 Amounts %
Loans receivable with ordinary customers @ 5,242,769 5,535,383 (292,614) -5.3%
Total assets 34,688,817 33,315,700 1,373,117 4.1%
Direct deposits 29,668,225 28,441,830 1,226,395 4.3%
Indirect TFA © 111,097,547 94,114,670 16,982,877 18.0%
Total customers sales (direct and indirect) 140,765,772 122,556,500 18,209,272 14.9%
Shareholders' equity 2,389,312 2,194,676 194,636 8.9%

(1) Loans receivables to ordinary customers refer solely to loans granted to customers (current account overdrafts, credit cards, personal loans, mortgages and unsecured loans).
(2) Direct deposits include overdrawn current accounts and Cash Park deposit accounts.
(3) Indirect TFA consist of products placed online or through FinecoBank personal financial advisors.

Operating structure

Data as at
12/31/2024 12/31/2023
No. Employees 1,451 1,384
No. Personal financial advisors 3,002 2,962
No. Financial shops * 438 428

(1) Number of operating financial shops: financial shops managed by the Bank and financial shops managed by personal financial advisors (so called Fineco Centers).
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Profitability, productivity and efficiency ratios

(Amounts in € thousand)

Data as at

12/31/2024 12/31/2023
Financial margin/Revenues 54.02% 55.59%
Income from brokerage and other income/Revenues 45.98% 44.42%
Income from brokerage and other income/Operating costs 182.32% 184.28%
Cost/income ratio 25.22% 24.10%
Operating costs/TFA 0.25% 0.26%
Cost of risk 5bps 5 bps
ROE 27.08% 27.67%
Return on assets 1.88% 1.83%
EVA (calculated on regulatory capital) 569,370 538,362
EVA (calculated on accounting capital) 381,733 369,637
RARORAC (calculated on regulatory capital) 79.18% 83.06%
RARORAC (calculated on accounting capital) 16.27% 16.84%
ROAC (calculated on regulatory capital) 90.71% 93.97%
ROAC (calculated on accounting capital) 27.80% 27.75%
Total sales to customers/Average employees 99,271 90,115
Total sales to customers/(Average employees + average PFAs) 31,992 28,502

Key
Income from brokerage and other income: Net commission, Net trading, hedging and fair value income and Net other expenses/income.

Costlincome ratio: Operating Costs divided by Revenues.

Operating costs/TFA: ratio of operating costs to Total Financial Assets (direct and indirect inflows). The TFA used for the ratio is the average for the year, calculated as the average between the balance as at December 31t
2024 and the balance as at the previous December 315!,

Cost of risk: is the ratio of Net impairment losses of loans to customers in the last 12 months to loans and receivables to customers (average of the averages of the last four quarters, calculated as the average balance at the
end of the quarter and the balance at the end of the previous quarter). The scope only includes loans to ordinary customers.

CoR (incentive system): is the ratio of Net impairment losses of commercial loans to customers in the last 12 months, including adjustments to the available margins of credit lines granted, to commercial loans and receivables
to customers (average of the balance as at December 31st, 2024 and the balance at December 31st of the previous year). The scope only includes loans to ordinary customers.

ROE: ratio between the profit (loss) for the year and the book shareholders’ equity (excluding dividends expected to be distributed and the revaluation reserves) for the year. ROE published in the 2023 financial report was
calculated using the average shareholders’ equity for the year as the denominator (average of the balance at the end of the year and that of the previous 31 December 31st) as denominator, therefore, the comparative figure
for 2023 was recalculated and restated.

Return on assets: ROA: ratio of profit (loss) for the year to total assets.

EVA (Economic Value Added): shows the firm's ability to create value; it's calculated as the difference between profit (loss) for the year, excluding extraordinary charges/income and related tax effects (integration costs and
net profits from extraordinary investments), and the figurative cost of the allocated capital calculated using both the regulatory capital and the book value of shareholders' equity for the year. EVA published in the 2023 financial
report was calculated using the average shareholders’ equity for the year as the denominator (average of single end quarters) as denominator, therefore, the comparative figure for 2023 was recalculated and restated.

RARORAC (Risk adjusted Return on Risk adjusted Capital): it's calculated both as the ratio between EVA (as described above) and the regulatory capital of the year and as the ratio between EVA (as described above) and
book value of shareholders' equity for the year and expresses in percentage terms the capacity to create value per unit of risk taken. RARORAC published in the 2023 financial report was calculated using the average
shareholders’ equity for the year as the denominator (average of single end quarters) as denominator, therefore, the comparative figure for 2023 was recalculated and restated.

ROAC (Return on Allocated Capital): it's calculated both as the ratio of profit (loss) for the year and the regulatory capital of the year, and as the ratio of profit (loss) for the year and book value of shareholders' equity for the
year. ROAC published in the 2023 financial report was calculated using the average regulatory capital of the year and the average shareholders’ equity for the year as the denominator (average of single end quarters) as
denominator, therefore, the comparative figure for 2023 was recalculated and restated.
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Balance Sheet indicators

Data as at
121312024 12/31/2023
Loans receivable to ordinary customers/Total assets 15.11% 16.62%
Loans and receivables to banks/Total assets 1.07% 1.13%
Financial assets/Total assets 67.53% 64.24%
Direct sales/Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 85.53% 85.37%
Shareholders' equity (including profit)/Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 6.89% 6.59%
Ordinary customer loans/Direct deposits 17.67% 19.46%
Credit quality Data as at
12/31/2024 12/31/2023
Non-performing loans/Loans receivable to ordinary customers 0.08% 0.07%
Bad loans/Loans receivable to ordinary customers 0.02% 0.02%
Coverage ratio' - Bad loans 95.37% 93.07%
Coverage ratio® - Unlikely to pay 72.37% 67.96%
Coverage ratio’ - Impaired past-due exposures 60.67% 56.85%
Coverage ratio" - Total Non-performing loans 85.15% 83.54%
(1) Calculated as the ratio between the amount of write-down provision and gross exposure.
Consolidated Own funds and capital ratios
Data as at
12/31/2024 12/31/2023
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (€ thousand) 1,311,917 1,151,527
Total Own Funds (€ thousand) 1,811,917 1,651,527
Total risk-weighted assets (€ thousand) 5,064,224 4,731,105
Ratio - Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 25.91% 24.34%
Ratio - Tier 1 Capital 35.78% 34.91%
Ratio - Total Own Funds 35.78% 34.91%
Data as at
12/31/2024 12/31/2023
Tier 1 Capital (€ thousand) 1,811,917 1,651,527
Exposure for leverage (€ thousand) 34,736,372 33,356,370
Leverage ratio 5.22% 4.95%
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Market share
12/31/2024 12/31/2023
Trading on Italian Stock Market (AMF Italia)
Third party volumes traded on MTA 26.67% 26.85%
Classification of third party volumes traded on MTA 1 1
12/31/2024 12/31/2023
Personal financial advisors (Assoreti)
Stock volumes 13.39% 13.59%
Stock Classification 3 2
12/31/2024 12/31/2023
Personal financial advisors (Assoreti)
Net Sales volumes 15.18% 16.21%
Net Sales Classification 3 2°
09/30/2024 12/31/2023
Total Deposits (Bank of Italy)
Market share - Total Financial Assets 2.46% 2.31%
Market share - Direct Deposits 1.52% 1.48%
Market share - Assets under Administration 3.09% 3.00%

Some of the above figures refer to September 30t, 2024 as they are the latest figures available.

FinecoBank - Accounts and Reports 2024 25



Teleborsa: distribution and commercial use strictly prohibited smarkek

sdir storage

Consolidated report on operation ——
o0l

Summary data

The macroeconomic scenario and monetary policy

The euro area economy grew by 0.3% in the first quarter, 0.2% in the second quarter and 0.4% in the third quarter 2024. Growth was mainly driven
by increased consumption, partly reflecting one-off factors that stimulated tourism over the summer, and stockpiling by businesses. However, more
recent data show a loss of momentum. According to Eurostat's preliminary estimate, the economy stagnated in the fourth quarter of 2024 and is
expected to remain weak in the short term. Surveys point to continued contraction in the manufacturing sector compared to expansion in the services
sector. Consumer confidence is fragile, and households have not yet drawn sufficient stimulus from rising real incomes to significantly increase their
spending. Nevertheless, the conditions for a recovery continue to exist. Despite weakening in recent months, the labor market continues to show vigor,
with the unemployment rate remaining low at 6.3% in December. According to European Central Bank experts, the gradual recovery of the euro area
economy is expected to continue in the coming years in the face of significant geopolitical and economic uncertainties. In particular, rising real wages
and employment, in the presence of robust developments in labor markets, should support a recovery in which consumption would be confirmed as
one of the main determinants. Domestic demand would also be supported by easing financing conditions, in line with market expectations about the
future profile of interest rates. Fiscal policies, although characterized by a high level of uncertainty, are assumed to be on a consolidation path overall.
Funds made available under the Next Generation EU should, nonetheless, support the expansion of the economy until the program expires in 2027.
Under the assumption in the baseline scenario that Europe's main trading partners keep their trade policies unchanged, foreign demand is expected
to strengthen and support euro area exports. As a result, the contribution made to GDP growth by net trade would be essentially neutral, despite
existing competitiveness problems. The unemployment rate is expected to fall further, bringing it to low levels in historical perspective. Productivity is
expected to accelerate over the projection horizon, in a context where some of the cyclical factors that led to a reduction in the recent past are
beginning to fade, although structural challenges remain. Overall, according to the December 2024 projections, average annual real GDP expansion
is expected at 0.7% in 2024, 1.1% in 2025, and 1.4% in 2026, before declining to 1.3% in 2027.

The disinflation process is well underway. According to the macroeconomic projections made in December 2024 by Eurosystem experts for the euro
area, overall inflation is expected to average 2.4% in 2024, 2.1% in 2025, 1.9% in 2026 and 2.1% in 2027, the year of the entry into force of the
expanded EU emissions trading scheme. For inflation net of the energy and food component, experts anticipate an average of 2.9% in 2024, 2.3% in
2025 and 1.9% in 2026 and 2027. Most measures of core inflation suggest that inflation will be stably around the 2% medium-term target pursued by
the European Central Bank's Governing Council. Domestic inflation has declined but remains elevated, mainly because wages and prices in certain
sectors continue to adjust, with considerable lag, to past increases in inflation. Despite an easing following the recent interest rate reductions decided
by the European Central Bank's Governing Council, making new loans to businesses and households gradually less onerous, financing conditions
remain tight as monetary policy remains restrictive and past interest rate hikes are still being transmitted to outstanding loan stocks. At its meeting on
March 6th, 2025, the Governing Council of the European Central Bank decided to reduce the three key interest rates by an additional 25 basis points.
In particular, the decision to reduce the rate on deposits with the central bank, through which monetary policy is guided, stems from the updated
assessment of the inflation outlook, the dynamics of core inflation and the intensity of monetary policy transmission. The interest rates on deposits
with the central bank, the main refinancing operations and the marginal lending operations were reduced to 2.50%, 2.65% and 2.90%, respectively,
effective March 12th, 2025.

As for ltaly, output stagnated in the third quarter of 2024, still held back by weakness in manufacturing against the slight expansion of services and
construction. Household consumption rose sharply, while investment fell sharply and the contribution of net exports was negative. Bank of Italy experts
estimated that output would remain weak in the fourth quarter as well. The sluggishness in manufacturing continued, although subsiding, while value
added would again be slightly up in construction and services. On the demand side, the recovery in net exports, due to a decrease in imports, would
be accompanied by a still tenuous investment dynamic and a softening in the contribution of consumption after the jump recorded in the third quarter.
The Bank of Italy's December 2024 projections, prepared as part of the Eurosystem's coordinated exercise, estimate ltaly's GDP to increase by 0.5%
in 2024 (by 0.7% in unadjusted terms for working days) and accelerate over the three-year period 2025-2027, with output expanding by about 1% a
year on average over the period, driven by a recovery in consumption and exports.

Consumer inflation is projected to rise to 1.5% in the two-year period 2025-2026, from just over 1 percent on average in 2024; it would reach 2% in
2027 due to the temporary uptick in the energy component as a result of the entry into force of the new EU Emission Trading System 2. Core inflation
is projected to decline, from 2.2% in 2024 to just over 1.5% on average over the three-year period 2025-2027, a period in which it is estimated that
pressures associated with accelerating wages will be largely absorbed by declining profit margins.
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The Russian-Ukrainian conflict

As at December 31, 2024, the context resulting from the Russia-Ukraine conflict in which the Group operates is substantially unchanged from that
illustrated in the Annual Report as at December 31, 2023.

In fact, the Group has no direct exposure to Russian assets affected by the conflict, and indirect exposures, represented by collateral received as part
of pledge-backed financing transactions (Credit Lombard and pledged overdraft), are of insignificant amounts. The Group has no direct commodity
exposures and has limited ruble exposure. With reference to: (i) obligations to freeze funds with respect to sanctioned persons and entities, (ii)
restrictions on the buying and selling of certain securities because they are issued by or related to sanctioned issuers, (iii) restrictions on financial
flows to and from Russia, both in terms of prohibiting credit exposure to sanctioned entities and in terms of prohibiting the acceptance of deposits from
Russian nationals or individuals or legal entities residing in Russia subject to specific exceptions, (iv) to the obligations to report to the relevant
authorities, the Group uses safeguards to monitor the names of sanctioned individuals and entities and the ISINs of sanctioned financial instruments,
which are necessary to initiate the consequent asset freezing activities required by the regulations. As of December 315, 2023, there were no direct
or indirect exposures to individuals or entities subject to sanction measures applicable to the Group, so no asset freezing actions required by the
regulations have been implemented on the individuals concerned. Finally, the Group constantly monitors the evolution of the regulatory framework of
reference through information tools that enable the timely updating of the sanctions framework applicable to the Bank and the appropriate adjustment
of the safeguards in place.

During 2024, therefore, there is no impact on the Group's economic and financial situation, and also from a prospective viewpoint there is no impact
in terms of strategic orientation, objectives and business model.
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Events during the period

Issuance and repurchase of Additional Tier1 instruments

On March 4t 2024, FinecoBank successfully completed the placement on the market of Additional Tier1 instruments, intended for institutional
investors, for a total amount of € 500 million and a semi-annual coupon equal to 7.5% for the first 5.5 years (with spread equal to 5.5 year Mid Swap
rate interpolated plus 488.9 basis points) compared to an initial guidance of 8%. The final spread is the lowest level in the Italian market since the
beginning of 2023 for this type of instrument, thanks to overall demand that is around 7x the supply and to the quality of the credit.

The placement registered an order volume of above € 3.45 billion, confirming the appreciation shown towards FinecoBank by the market also in the
fixed-income segment. Only institutional investors took part in the placement, mainly asset managers (67% of the total) and banks/private banks
(17%). The issuance was placed mainly to institutional investors in the United Kingdom (28%), France (26%), ltaly (18%), Germany and Austria (7%),
and Switzerland (6%).

In detail, the issuance has the following features: the notes are perpetual with call option for the issuer on the fifth year and half and thereafter on a
semiannual basis, public placement, intended for trading on the regulated market managed by Euronext Dublin, rating of BB- (S&P Global Ratings),
fixed-rate semi-annual coupon for the first 5.5 years. It should be noted that the notes have been issued under the EMTN (Euro Medium Terms Notes?)
programme.

BNP Paribas and UniCredit acted as Global Coordinators and BNP Paribas, Morgan Stanley & Co. Limited, UBS Europe SE and UniCredit Bank acted
as joint bookrunners and joint lead managers.

At the same time, FinecoBank announced its intention to proceed with an cash tender offer of the Additional Tier1 instrument issued in July 2019 with
anominal amount of € 300 million and to reserve the right to call the Additional Tier1 private placement issued in January 2018 with a nominal amount
of € 200 million, at the earliest available date, thereby keeping the overall amount of Additional Tier1 instruments eligible for inclusion in its capital
unchanged at € 500 million.

On March 11th, 2024, the tender offer of the above Additional Tier 1 instrument was concluded and the aggregate nominal amount of the instruments
validly tendered in the Offer amounted to € 168 million. FinecoBank has given mantate to BNP Paribas and UniCredit, as dealer managers, for the
“any & all” Cash Tender Offer at a fixed price.

On June 31, 2024, the Additional Tier1 private placement issued in January 2018 with a face value of € 200 million, fully subscribed by UniCredit
S.p.A., was called off.

Finally, on December 314, 2024 the option to fully redeem the Additional Tier 1 instrument, issued in July 2019, for the portion not repurchased in the
offering concluded on March 11, 2024, amounting to € 132 million was exercised.

Shareholders' Meeting

On April 241, 2024, the FinecoBank Shareholders' Meeting was held and resolved favorably on all items on the agenda.

In the ordinary session, the resolutions concerned:
e  approval of the Financial Statements for the year 2023 of FinecoBank S.p.A;
allocation of FinecoBank S.p.A.'s 2023 net profit of the year;
approval of the 2024 Remuneration Policy;
favourably decision on the 2023 Remuneration Report;
2024 Incentive System for Employees belonging to the Most Relevant Personnel;
2024-2026 Long Term incentive Plan for Employees;
2024 Incentive System for Financial Advisors identified as “Most Relevant Personnel”;
authorization to purchase and dispose of treasury shares to service the 2024 PFA System;
delegation to the Board of Directors to approve free capital increases to implement the incentive systems for the employees.

At the extraordinary session, the resolutions concerned:

o the delegation to the Board of Directors, pursuant to Article 2443 of the Civil Code, of the power to resolve, also in several times and for a
maximum period of five years from the date of the shareholders' meeting resolution, a free share capital increase, pursuant to Article 2349
of the Civil Code, for a maximum amount of € 200,566.74 (to be charged entirely to share capital), with the issuance of up to 607,778 new
ordinary FinecoBank shares with a par value of € 0.33 each, having the same characteristics as those in circulation and regular dividend
entitlement, to be allotted to FinecoBank's Most Relevant Personnel 2024, for the purpose of executing the 2024 Incentive System;
consequent amendments to the Articles of Association;

o the delegation to the Board of Directors, pursuant to Article 2443 of the Civil Code, of the power to resolve in 2029 a free share capital
increase, pursuant to Article 2349 of the Civil Code, of up to a maximum of € 39,933.30 corresponding to a maximum number of 121,010
ordinary FinecoBank shares with a par value of € 0.33 each, having the same characteristics as those in circulation, regular dividend

5 The renewal of the EMTN (Euro Medium Term Notes) program was approved by Fineco's Board of Directors on January 16, 2024, and was finalized on February 13th, 2024.

28  Accounts and Reports 2024 - FinecoBank



Teleborsa: distribution and commercial use strictly prohibited smarkek

sdir storage

Consolidated report on operation ——
o0l

Summary data

entitlement, to be allotted to FinecoBank's 2023 Most Relevant Personnel, for the purpose of completing the execution of the 2023 Incentive
System; consequent amendments to the Articles of Association;

o the delegation to the Board of Directors, pursuant to Article 2443 of the Civil Code, of the power to resolve, also in several times and for a
maximum period of five years from the date of the shareholders' meeting resolution, a free share capital increase, pursuant to Article 2349
of the Civil Code, for a maximum amount of € 460,286.64 (to be charged entirely to share capital), with the issuance of up to 1,394,808
new ordinary FinecoBank shares with a par value of € 0.33 each, having the same characteristics as those in circulation and regular
dividend entitlement, to be allotted to FinecoBank's Most Relevant Personnel, for the purpose of executing the 2024 — 2026 Long Term;
consequent amendments to the Articles of Association.

With reference to the allocation of FinecoBank S.p.A.’s 2023 results, the Shareholders' Meeting approved the proposals formulated by the Board of
Directors, which provide, among other things, for the distribution to the Shareholders of a unit dividend of € 0.69 per share, for a total amount of €
421.6 million, which was put up for payment, in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations, on May 22, 2024 with an “ex-dividend” date of
May 20, 2024. Pursuant to Article 83-terdecies of Legislative Decree No. 58 of February 24, 1998 ("TUF"), those who were shareholders on the basis
of the evidence of the accounts relating to the end of the accounting day of May 21st, 2024 were, therefore, entitled to receive the dividend.
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Performance of total financial assets

As at December 318!, 2024 the balance of total financial assets (direct and indirect) amounted to € 140,766 million up 14.9% compared to December
318t 2023, thanks to Assets under Custody-AUC, Assets under Management-AUM and direct deposits realised during the year and to the positive
market effect. The balance of indirect total financial assets (Assets Under Management-AUM and Assets Under Custody-AUC) amounted to € 111,098
million, up from € 94,115 million as at December 315, 2023 (+18.0%). The ratio of FAM' retail Assets under Management to total managed managed
deposits is 37.7%.

Direct deposits, amounting to € 29,668 million is driven by the high appreciation degree of the quality of services offered by the Group — indeed the
preponderant amount of direct deposits is of a "transactional" nature, supporting the overall operations of customers.

In 2024, net sales amounted to € 10.083 million, up 14,7% from 2023, confirming the acceleration of the Bank's growth dynamics. The mix of deposits
showed a marked improvement over the previous year: managed deposits amounted to € 4,093 million (€ 2,662 million in 2023, up 53.8%), Assets
under Custody stood at € 4,779 million (€ 8,258 million in 2023) and direct deposits amounted to € 1,211 million (€ - 2.128 million in 2023).

The table below shows the figures for the balance of direct and indirect deposits of the Bank’s customers, including both those linked to a personal
financial advisor and those operating exclusively through the online channel.

Total financial assets

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at Amounts as at Changes

12/31/2024 Comp% 12/31/2023 Comp% Absolute %
DIRECT DEPOSITS 29,668,225 21.1% 28,441,830 23.2% 1,226,395 4.3%
Current accounts and demand deposits 28,568,868 20.3% 27,748,318 22.6% 820,550 3.0%
Time deposits and reverse repos 1,099,357 0.8% 693,512 0.6% 405,845 58.5%
ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT 66,382,586 47.2% 58,016,137 47.3% 8,366,449 14.4%
UCITS and other investment funds 45,645,271 32.4% 38,838,704 31.7% 6,806,567 17.5%
Insurance products 12,944,305 9.2% 13,760,462 11.2% (816,157) -5.9%
Assets under custody under advisory 7,360,364 5.2% 5,052,451 41% 2,307,913 45.7%
Other 432,646 0.3% 364,520 0.3% 68,126 18.7%
ASSETS UNDER CUSTODY 44,714,961 31.8% 36,098,533 29.5% 8,616,428 23.9%
Equities 24,188,917 17.2% 18,602,363 15.2% 5,586,554 30.0%
Bonds 20,164,547 14.3% 16,748,477 13.7% 3,416,070 20.4%
Third-party deposits 303,642 0.2% 629,825 0.5% (326,183) -51.8%
Other 57,855 0.0% 117,868 0.1% (60,013) -50.9%
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 140,765,772 100.0% 122,556,500 100.0% 18,209,272 14.9%
of which Advanced Advisory Service 34,519,685 24.5% 27,982,557 22.8% 6,537,128 23.4%

It should be noted that the percentage reported for Advanced Advisory Service, which is equal to 24.5% as at December 31st, 2024, is calculated by
comparing their amounts with total financial assets amounts.
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The table below shows the figures for net direct sales, assets under management and assets under administration during 2024 compared with the
same period of the previous year, for both customers linked to a personal financial advisor and online-only customers.

Net sales
(Amounts in € thousand)
Year Comp % Year Comp % Changes
2024 2023 Absolute %
DIRECT DEPOSITS 1,210,918 12.0% (2,128,050) -24.2% 3,338,968 -156.9%
Current accounts and demand deposits 823,797 8.2% (2,821,558) -32.1% 3,645,355 -129.2%
Time deposits and reverse repos 387,121 3.8% 693,508 7.9% (306,387) -44.2%
ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT 4,092,848 40.6% 2,661,999 30.3% 1,430,849 53.8%
UCITS and other investment funds 3,452,167 34.2% 2,594,318 29.5% 857,849 33.1%
Insurance products (1,310,019) -13.0% (2,366,563) -26.9% 1,056,544 -44 6%
Assets under custody under advisory 1,898,662 18.8% 2,413,347 27.4% (514,685) -21.3%
Other 52,038 0.5% 20,897 0.2% 31,141 149.0%
ASSETS UNDER CUSTODY 4,778,973 47.4% 8,258,439 93.9% (3,479,466) -42.1%
Equities 2,211,487 21.9% (95,175) -1.1% 2,306,662 n.a.
Bonds 2,953,343 29.3% 8,086,766 92.0% (5,133,423) -63.5%
Third-party deposits (326,182) -3.2% 268,598 3.1% (594,780) -221.4%
Other (59,675) -0.6% (1,750) 0.0% (57,925) n.a.
NET SALES 10,082,739 100.0% 8,792,388 100.0% 1,290,351 14.7%
of which Advanced Advisory Service 4,106,334 40.7% 2,817,878 32.0% 1,288,456 45.7%

It should be noted that the percentage reported for Advanced Advisory Service, which is equal to 40.7% as at December 318!, 2024, is calculated by
comparing their amounts with total net sales amounts.
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Performance of main balance sheet aggregates

Cash and cash balances amounted to € 1,962.9 million down by € 303.7 million from previous year (€ 2,266.6 million as at December 31st, 2023).
The item consisted mainly from the overnight deposit opened at the Bank of Italy, for a total amount of € 1,688 million, the liquidity deposited to the
Bank of Italy net of the stock related to the minimum reserve requirement allocated for the current reporting period, which is represented in the item
Loans and receivables to banks, in the amount of € 0.9 million, as well as liquidity deposited on current accounts with credit institutions for the
settlement of payment transactions, for the settlement of securities transactions and for the management of Fineco AM's liquidity, for an amount of €
274 million.

Loans and receivables to banks amounted to € 370.7 million, decreasing by € 5.6 million compared to December 31st, 2023.

Loans and receivables to customers came to € 6,235.6 million with an increase of € 37.1 million compared to December 31st, 2023. During 2024
loans of an additional € 229.9 million were disbursed to Cronos Vita Assicurazioni S.p.A., while mortgages, personal loans and current account
overdrafts showed a general reduction in terms of outstanding amounts compared to December 31st, 2023. Impaired loans net of impairment losses
totalled € 4.1 million (€ 4 million as at December 318!, 2023), with a coverage ratio of 85.2%. The ratio between impaired loans and total loans to
ordinary customers was confirmed equal to 0.08% (0.07% as at December 31st, 2023).

Financial investments came to € 23,425.4 million, increasing by € 2,022.4 million compared to December 31st, 2023, mainly due to the purchases of
debt securities at amortised cost during the year. It should be noted that this item also includes the net negative valuation of fixed-rate securities
specifically hedged against interest rate risk, in the amount of € 459.7 million (€ 640.8 million as at December 318!, 2023).

Hedges recognised as assets in the balance sheet amounted to € 527.3 million and include the positive fair value valuation of hedging derivatives
and the value adjustment of assets subject to generic hedging, represented by fixed-rate mortgages. Hedges recognised as liabilities in the balance
sheet amounted to € 45.3 million and include the negative fair value measurement of hedging derivatives and the value adjustment of liabilities subject
to generic hedging, represented by direct funding from customers. The negative change in fair value of hedging derivative contracts recognized in the
year is mainly attributable to the reduction in fair value of existing contracts. The valuation of the hedged items, as a result, evolved in the opposite
direction, recording a positive change. It should be noted that the negative valuation recorded by securities specifically hedged is shown in Other
Financial investments item, as described above.

Tax credits acquired amounted to € 1,259.1 million. The item includes the carrying amount of tax credits purchased during under Decree-Law 34/2020
and subsequent updates, that decreased compared to € 1,618.0 million as at December 31st, 2023, due to amounts offset during 2024. It should be
noted that as of December 31, 2023, there were also tax credits acquired by FinecoBank on the secondary market that were subject to preventive
seizure in the criminal sphere after purchase. In December 2024, the Bank reached a settlement agreement with the assigning counterparty under
which the parties agreed to cancel by mutual consent FinecoBank's acceptance of the aforementioned tax credits as well as additional tax credits
reported as not usable by the assigning counterparty itself. By virtue of the agreement reached, the assigning counterparty returned to FinecoBank
the assignment consideration for the said credits paid by the Bank.

Deposits from banks totaled € 850.6 million, showing a decrease of € 16.4 million compared to December 31st, 2023. During 2024, liabilities for
variation margins received mainly from derivative transactions decreased by € 150.8 million, due to the negative change in fair value recorded by
hedging derivative contracts, while the amount of stock lending transactions, securities lending transactions secured by sums of money that fall within
the full economic availability of the lender, increased by € 133.6 million. The outstanding amounts of stock lending transactions as of the balance sheet
date vary depending on the requests to borrow securities received from counterparties.

Deposits from customers came to € 29,988.9 million, showing an increase of € 1.231.3 million compared to December 31st, 2023, mainly due to the
increase in direct deposits on current accounts from customers.

Debt securities in issue, amounted to € 810.2 million, exclusively include the Senior Preferred Bond issued by FinecoBank. During the year no new
securities were issued.

Shareholders' equity amounted to € 2,389.3 million, increasing by € 194.6 million from December 31st, 2023, mainly thanks to the profit for 2024,
amounted to € 652.3 million, which more than offset the main reductions recognised in the year, due to the distribution of dividends resolved by the
Shareholders' Meeting of April 24t, 2024, totalling € 421.6 million, and the payment of coupons on the Additional Tier 1 instruments issued by
FinecoBank, the amount of which, net of the related taxation, resulted in a reduction in Shareholders' equity of € 26.5 million.
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Performance of main income statement aggregates

Revenues amounted to € 1,316.5 million, registering a 6.4% increase compared to the € 1,237.6 million recorded in 2023, mainly thanks to the
contribution of Financial margin, Net commission and Net trading, hedging and fair value income.

Financial margin increased of 3.4% compared to 2023 (+ € 23.2 million) supported by the Interest margin which increased by 3.3% compared to
previous year (+ € 22.7 million). Profits from Treasury increased by € 0.5 million compared to 2023.

Net commission increased by € 37.1 million compared to the previous year, mainly attributable to commissions generated by Investing (+ € 39.6
million) thanks to the greater contribution of Fineco AM and the growth in AUM, and to commissions generated by Brokerage (+ € 10.2 million), thanks
to higher trading fees. During 2024, the subsidiary Fineco AM generated net commissions of € 168.1 million.

Net trading, hedging and fair value income amounted to € 79.0 million and increased by € 18.6 million compared to previous year. This item mainly
includes profits realised by the Brokerage segment, which includes internalisation of securities and regulated/OTC derivatives, financial instruments
used for operational hedging of securities and internalised derivatives and the exchange differences on assets and liabilities denominated in currency.
The item also includes the ineffectiveness component of hedging transactions, amounting to - € 2.2 million (-€ 7.2 million in 2023), determined by the
application of different curves for the fair value valuation of derivative contracts hedging interest rate risk and hedged items as part of fair value hedge
transactions.

Operating costs increased by € 33.7 million compared to the previous year (+ € 11.0 million for “Staff expenses”, + € 24 million for “Other administrative
expenses net of Recovery of expenses”, partially offset by decrease of € 1.3 million for “Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets”).
The 11.3% increase is partly attributable to expenses closely linked to the growth of the business (assets, volumes, customers and structure), certified
by a cost/income ratio of 25.2% (24.1% as at December 31st, 2023).

Net impairment losses on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments in 2024 amounted to € -2.1 million (€ -3.6 million in 2023). The
cost of risk is 5 basis points.

Other charges and provisions amounted to € -44.9 million, down 29.4% compared to 2023. The item, in addition to net allocations to the provision
for risks and charges for claims and disputes and net allocations to the provision for supplementary customer indemnity, mainly includes annual
contributions paid to the Interbank Deposit Guarantee Fund within the framework the Deposit Guarantee Scheme (DGS) in the amount of € 35.3
million (€ 35 million paid in the previous year). Starting from 2024, the item also includes the 2024 contribution to be paid to the Life Insurance
Guarantee Fund in the amount of €1.2 million. It should be noted that in fiscal year 2023 the contribution paid to the Single Resolution Fund under
Directive 2014/59/EU was also recognized in the amount of € 6.6 million, which was not required in fiscal year 2024, and the provision for obligations
arising from the cost rebalancing agreement that FinecoBank signed with the other distributing banks as part of the transaction aimed at protecting
Cronos policyholders.

Net income from investments stood at € 1.8 million (€ 0.1 million in 2023).

Profit before tax from continuing operations amounted to € 939.3 million, up 7.7% compared to the previous year, mainly thanks to higher Financial
margin (+ € 23.2 million), Net commission (+ € 37.1 million) and Net trading, hedging and fair value income (+€ 18.6 million), partially offset by the
growth of Operating costs (+ € 33.7 million); the result also benefited from lower Other charges and provisions of € 18.7 million.

Net profit for the year amounted to € 652.3 million, increasing by 7.1% compared to € 609.1 million of the previous year.
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Communications and external relations

In 2024, the Italian media on several occasions delved into the topic of developments in artificial intelligence connected with new opportunities in the
field of investment. Fineco's positioning among the leading fintech banks at the European level facilitated the bank's participation in this public debate.
On these occasions, the focus on technological innovation went hand in hand with the enhancement of the human component in the customer
relationship.

In May, Fineco's CEO and General Manager, interviewed by Il Sole 24 Ore, addressed the issue of the evolution of investment choices and the change
in savers' approach to markets, emphasizing the increasingly close link between Investing and Brokerage. These issues were in several cases the
cue to present the financial education initiatives promoted by Fineco, both through webinars and through events in the territory and campaigns in
schools. In collaboration with Feduf (Foundation for Financial and Savings Education), the Bank organized days of approach to savings in elementary
schools, while Fineco AM expanded the “Count on You" project, which involved nearly 1,500 high school students. At the same time, the focus on
local newspapers made it possible to strengthen the Fineco brand in the territory, while also highlighting the social initiatives carried out by the Advisory
Network, which has surpassed the threshold of three thousand professionals.

Initiatives related to the 25th anniversary of Fineco's founding also provided an opportunity to reiterate, through interviews and press releases, the
bank's commitment to the growth of financial education in the country. In December, Corriere della Sera's economic weekly, L'Economia, dedicated
its cover to an interview with Fineco's CEO and General Manager, who reviewed the Group's history and stressed how professional savings
management would have a positive impact on all ltalians.

Special attention was also paid to the activities of financial advisors with reference to the Network's development strategies to support recruitment
activities, through articles and editorials published in industry publications, including national ones, for. In addition to numerous reports of new entrants,
speeches by area managers and financial advisors helped to make the Network's special features more evident. In particular, attention was focused
on the initiatives implemented to encourage the training and entry of young professionals, delving into the characteristics of the Young People Project
and the improved conditions implemented to accompany entry into the world of financial advice. In this regard, the Organismo di vigilanza e tenuta
dell'albo unico dei consulenti finanziari confirmed, once again, Fineco in first place among the networks for the presence as a percentage of under 35
in the total number of financial advisors. The Private Banking Convention was also held in early March, welcoming 700 participants in the splendid
setting of the San Carlo Theater and the Royal Palace in Naples. It was an event rich in valuable content and with distinguished guests to discuss and
explore issues of particular importance to this audience segment and their clients.

During the first half of 2024, the Bank's advertising campaigns supported the “What it's worth” initiative, a concept launched in March 2023, through
the planning of two major communication flights that involved digital as well as TV, promoting, among others, the securities transfer initiative. In
addition, two new communication campaigns were launched: “For your tomorrow, today we are here” dedicated to the Private Banking segment,
planned through print and outdoor in major Italian cities, and “Evolving future,” localized on the city of Milan, with the aim of communicating the Bank's
commitment to promoting a fairer and more sustainable future for the environment, people and the economy in general. In the second half of the year,
however, the Bank launched a new campaign dedicated to the celebration of its 25th anniversary, which revolved around the concept, “Since 1999
we have been looking far, staying close.” The advertising campaigns focused mainly on TV, digital channels and through billboards in major Italian
cities.

The initiatives dedicated to 25 years ended with a double national convention, “Visionaires. Perspectives from the Future.” The first was held in Turin,
inside the Inalpi Arena and was dedicated to financial advisors from all over Italy and the second was held in Milan dedicated to the Bank's employees.
The talents involved tackled different themes (Man/Technology, Wellness/Longevity, motivational and relational issues) telling their own innovative
visions of the world.

During 2024, Fineco continued to embrace new cultural and sports sponsorship projects on a national scale that fostered customer outreach, increasing
brand awarness in the territory. In terms of cultural projects, Fineco, in the role of premium partner, to celebrate the 150th anniversary of the birth of
Impressionism supported the planning of the Cezanne/Renoir exhibition at the Palazzo Reale in Milan, as well as the creation, with the curator of the
same, of four episodes of a podcast dedicated to the innovative cultural journey of the two artists. In addition, it has initiated cultural sponsorships
focused on theaters, including three-year collaborations with the Teatro Petruzzelli in Bari and the Florentine Teatro Della Pergola and two-year
collaborations with the Teatro Sistina in Rome. Fineco was also the main partner of the TedX Milan “Freedom” event at Teatro Dal Verme. On the
other hand, as far as sports projects are concerned, Fineco has entered into an important partnership with Lega Volley Femminile, becoming Gold
Sponsor of the A1 and A2 Championships, the Coppa Italia Frecciarossa and Title Sponsor of the Fineco SuperCoppa, and has supported Team Polti
Kometa in men's cycling. These sponsorships have generated increased visibility of the Fineco brand through the television channel.
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Main environmental protection initiatives

As usual, Fineco has continued its partnership with the Fund for the Italian Environment (FAI) in 2024, thus confirming its commitment to supporting
Italy's artistic and cultural heritage as the main sponsor of the Fai Days of Spring. Under Art and Culture in the Solidarity section of the website,
fundraising has also been activated for donors who wish to join Fineco in supporting FAI.

The project initiated by the City of Milan, “Care for and Adopt Public Green Space,” has been renewed until 2024, with a collaboration to upgrade
urban green areas in the Lombard capital, in the area between Corso Como, Corso Garibaldi and Largo La Foppa. The goal of the three-year
sponsorship project is to contribute to the preservation and improvement of existing green areas.

The project with Lifegate has expanded and transformed, from the Plasticless project to the new Water Defenders Alliance: a group of stakeholders
who united can concretely fight the issue of water pollution in our seas. An initiative that consists of activities to reduce plastics from the seas, an
operation to clean the seabed of the Ligurian territory (project “Smart Bay”) and a joint action with ports to counter the presence of hydrocarbons on
the water surfaces of some Italian ports.

Main solidarity initiatives
In 2024, FinecoBank continued its commitment to supporting the community.

With the aim of expanding and involving customers more closely in the Bank's activities in support of the community, in May Fineco launched an
ongoing solidarity initiative on its website, both public and private areas, within which 8 projects were posted in 4 areas of focus: “Childhood,” “Medical
Research and Health,” “For the Community,” and “Art and Culture,” specifically:

e “Childhood” section - CESVI, project “CESVI's Smile Houses in ltaly” in favor of children who are victims of abuse or neglect; Terre del
Hommes, Indifesa campaign against violence against girls;
e  “For the community” section"- Banco Alimentare, project ‘Keep eating going - Sharing the value of food’ for food redistribution and food
waste reduction; Lega ltaliana Lotta ai Tumori (LILT), project ‘Accompanimento pazienti oncologici alle terapie’; VIDAS, project ‘Casa
Sollievo Bimbi' for accompanying children with incurable diseases to the end of life; Cometa, project ‘La bellezza di essere educati’ that
supports in study and training boys and girls in difficulty;
e  “Medical Research and Health” section - IEO Monzino Foundation, for the support of scientific research for the treatment of blood cancers;
e  “Art and Culture” section-Fondo per I'ambiente italiano (FAI), whose activities take place in three areas: protection of artistic and natural
heritage; raising people's awareness of the value of landscape and monumental heritage; and active mobilization to protect the landscape
atrisk.
The initiatives have been supported by the Bank and can receive donations from customers for a period of about one year from the date of publication
on the website. The goal is to enrich the section with quarterly releases of 3-4 projects and thus make Fineco's commitment to the community more
solid and ongoing. Customers can donate directly through the site with a wire transfer while non-customers can donate using the coordinates of each
Association listed in the public area of the site.

Complementing the solidarity initiatives, the traditional Christmas Charity Campaign, “Christmas with Fineco,” promoted each year through the Bank's
website, was also activated in 2024, supporting the following projects:

e  Women's Empowerment and Financial Education: Fondazione L'Albero della Vita, “Counting on me” project, which supports women in
vulnerable and socially excluded conditions in job search and financial literacy;

e  Childhood and Education - Mission Bambini, “Scintilla” project, a network of social-educational services called STARS, to offer support to
the most fragile children, families and territorial communities;

e  Pediatric Medicine - Gaslininsieme, project “Telemedicine: the Gaslini is close even for those who are far away,” for the activation of
teleconsultation between professionals, televisita to young patients and telemonitoring in favor of children with chronic diseases.

During 2024 Fineco also supported the following entities active in the country or projects:

e  Fondazione Theodora (solidarity picnic in support of the activities of Dr. Sogni (clown doctors) alongside children hospitalized in hospitals
in Milan);

o  CAF (Teens Project to support the reception of teenagers in CAF foster homes);

e  Mathematics without Borders - (Matemagica project to support mathematics learning in schools for students with difficulties);

e  Mike Bongiorno Foundation (Orti Allegria project for the inclusion of people with different disabilities through the cultivation of social
gardens);

e  Beyond All Limits (Calendar for Life project to promote the provision of defibrillators in sports facilities);

o Little Prince (Green Paths of Inclusion project to support a model of sustainable agriculture and labor integration of frail people);

e  SOS Children's Association (Spazio Bimbi project dedicated to children from the poorest suburbs who are not on the public elementary
school rankings);

e  Cooperativa Punto d'Incontro (Casa Eden project, hospice for people with autism spectrum disorders);
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e  Brianza Community Consortium (Longoni Villab project training project dedicated to young people in fragile conditions for inclusion in the
world of work);

e  Bimbo Tu Association (Podcast project for the dissemination of content on eating disorders in young people);
e  TECH7 San Siro (computer courses project to bring underprivileged youth closer to the working world);
e Lions Guide Dog Service (support for the Guide Dog Training Center for the visually impaired);
e  Maria Letizia Verga Committee (“Sport Therapy” project to strengthen the response to treatment of children with leukemia through sports
activities).
Awards

Below are the recognitions awarded to Fineco during 2024:

e  Fineco a global leader in sustainability in the financial sector: the agency Standard Ethics raised Fineco's rating to ‘EEE-, making it the
only banking institution to obtain an ‘Excellent’ sustainability rating with a stable outlook, underlining its integrated management of Esg
(Environmental, Social, Governance) policies in the Bank's structure;

e Fineco the No. 1 bank in Italy according to Forbes: in the ranking drawn up by Forbes magazine in collaboration with Statista, Fineco was
ranked among the best banks in the world, taking first place among the 15 Italian institutions in the ranking based on the level of satisfaction
of its customers.

e  Private Banking 2024, Fineco awarded for ‘Business model innovation’: at the Private Banking Awards 2024, Fineco was awarded the prize
in the ‘Business model innovation’ category for its ability to ‘continue the path of innovation that sees the Bank increasingly committed to
offering the best technologies and evolved platforms, with the aim of responding to the evolved and complex needs of high-end clients,
through an efficient and innovative service in the management of large assets’;

e  Fineco certified Top Employers Italia 2024: in the review of its HR policies, for the sixth year running, the Bank stood out for its focus on
enhancing the value of resources and developing skills, fostering a positive and stimulating working environment;

e Leader in Sustainability 2024: Fineco was included among the 200 major Italian companies in the ranking compiled by Il Sole 24 Ore -
Statista;

o World's Best Banks 2024: Fineco was ranked among the best banks in the world, taking first place among the 15 Italian institutions included
in the ranking drawn up by the US magazine Forbes in collaboration with Statista, which was based on a number of parameters, such as
trust, terms and conditions, customer care, digital tools and services, and financial advice;

e  World's Most Climate-Conscious Companies 2024: Fineco was included in the ‘World's Most Climate-Conscious Companies’ ranking by
Corriere della Sera, Pianeta 2030 and Statista, a list of Italian companies that have reduced their CO2 emissions as a percentage of
turnover the most;

e World's Most Sustainable Companies: Fineco has been included among the 500 most sustainable companies in the world out of an initial
selection of more than 5,000 of the world's largest companies, according to a ranking published by Time and produced in collaboration with
Statista;

e  Top Contact Center 2024/25: a customer satisfaction survey conducted by the German Institute for Quality and Finance ranks Fineco's
customer care first among digital banks;

e  Top Sustainable Fund Manager 2024: the German Institute for Quality and Finance ranked Fineco AM first among Italian asset management
companies developing sustainable funds, based on funds with a high Morningstar Sustainability Rating.
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Share information
As of December 31st, 2024, the price of the share was equal to € 16.79. The average value recorded by the share in 2024 was € 14.60.

The company's market capitalization equaled to € 10,259 million as of December 315!, 2024.

Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Official price of ordinary shares (€)
- maximum 4.750 7.805 7.400 8735 11890 12385 13425 17.305 16.180 16.990| 17.085
- minimum 3.808 4438 4.622 5.345 7.956 8.514 6.918 12.875 10335 10655 12.730
- average 4173 6.479 5.980 6.914 9.823 10234 11.329  14.947 13401 13.39%4| 14.596
- period-end 4.668 7.625 5.330 8.535 8778 10.690 13400 15435 15520 13.585| 16.790
Number of shares (million)
- outstanding at period end 606.3 606.5 606.8 607.7 608.4 608.9 609.6 609.9 610.1 610.6 611.0
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The Group's offer is divided into three integrated business macro-areas: (i) Banking, which includes current account services, payment services and
the issuance of debit, credit and prepaid cards, mortgages, overdrafts and personal loans; (i) Brokerage, which provides order execution services on
behalf of customers, with direct access to the main world stock markets and the opportunity of trading CFDs, futures, options, bonds, ETFs and
certificates; (iii) Investing, which includes the asset management activities carried out by Fineco AM, placement and distribution services for over 4,000
products, including UCITS and SICAV units managed by 72 leading Italian and international investment houses, insurance and pension products, as
well as investment advisory services through the network of personal financial advisors distributed throughout Italy.

Given the Bank’s specific business model that provides for a high level of vertical integration among its different activities, these main business
segments are interdependent. Indeed, the Group offers its services (banking and investment services) through a network of personal financial advisors
and online and mobile channels that operate in a coordinated and integrated manner. The completeness of the services offered makes it possible to
offer as the customer's only point of reference (one stop solution) for banking operations and investment needs. This highly integrated and customer-
based strategy has the consequence that the revenues and margins related to the different products/services (investing, banking and brokerage) are,
therefore, deeply interdependent.

All the activities were carried out with the aim of obtaining economic results from the "industrial" management of the businesses, to minimise their
financial risk.

Banking

Banking and Payment cards

FinecoBank offers its customers a wide range of banking and payment services. Customers can access the services offered by the Bank by opening
a current account online or through a financial advisor. The current account is also instrumental in accessing Brokerage and Investing services.

Banking and payment services are offered through the Bank's website, mobile applications, by telephone and, for some services, at UniCredit branches
and ATMs. As far as payment cards are concerned, Fineco offers its customers a choice of different types of cards: credit cards, in balance or revolving
mode, debit cards and prepaid cards.

FinecoBank has always been committed to offering its customers new services or improving existing ones, with a constant focus on digitalisation,
innovation and developing functional and intuitive navigation interfaces, even for the most complex processes and services, with the aim of
guaranteeing ease of use. In this context, with reference to the year 2024, we highlight in particular:

o the launch of the Under 18 account dedicated to minors who are the children of existing Fineco customers, aged between 8 and 18 years
of age, with registered and tax residence in ltaly;

o the migration to a new technological infrastructure that has enabled an improvement, both in terms of performance and in terms of usability,
of the processes of opening joint current accounts, both through the Bank's website and through the platform dedicated to financial advisers,
updating identity documents and telephone top-ups;

o the implementation of a new section of the reserved area of the Bank's website that allows customers to have available, in a single area,
all documents and contracts relating to their Fineco account, with the possibility of requesting the online production of an account statement
issued in a period prior to the last year;

o the release of the functionality to access the reserved area of the Bank's website also via ‘Mobile Code’;
the implementation of the continuous credit transfer and tax relief transfer service on Fineco's mobile app and the migration to a new
technological platform of the giro transfer, limit management, continuous credit transfer and AML questionnaire collection services;

e theintroduction of the Strong Customer Authentication (SCA) service also for giro and small credit transfer instructions.

As part of the Multicurrency service, the settlement times for foreign currency exchange transactions to and from the US dollar (USD) and Canadian
dollar (CAD) were reduced from two business days (T+2) to one business day (T+1) in order to ensure a more efficient service for customers and,
above all, to allow for the availability of foreign currency liquidity for the simultaneous purchase of securities traded in USD and CAD currencies in the
respective markets.

A series of commercial initiatives were also launched aimed at increasing the rate of customer loyalty by rewarding, for existing customers, the choice
of crediting their salary to Fineco and increasing the attractiveness of the Fineco offer.

38  Accounts and Reports 2024 - FinecoBank



Teleborsa: distribution and commercial use strictly prohibited smarkek

sdir storage

Consolidated report on operations ——
o0l

Main areas of activity

The table below shows the credit card spending and the amounts as at December 315!, 2024 compared to December 31st, 2023. Credit card spending
increased of 7,7% compared to the previous year.

(Amounts in € thousand)

Year 2024 Year 2023 Changes
Spending Amounts as at
Credit Products Spending Amounts as at Spending Amounts as at Amounts % Amounts %
Revolving credit cards 34173 29,028 39,621 35,001 (5,448) -13.8% (5973)  -17.1%
Sredit cards fulpayment o 3,794,262 379,446 3,514,834 319154 279428 8.0% 60202 18.9%
Total 3,828,435 408,474 3,554,455 354,155 273,980 1.7% 54,319 15.3%

Mortgages, credit facilities and personal loans

As far as lending is concerned, the Bank offers its customers the possibility of requesting current account credit facilities, mortgages and personal
loans.

With regard to current account credit facilities, the most representative product of Fineco's offer is “Credit Lombard”, the solution suitable for those
who own assets and wish to obtain additional liquidity from their investments. "Credit Lombard” is a current account credit line guaranteed by a
revolving pledge of securities and funds held by the applicant. The peculiarity lies in the possibility of replacing the pledged securities by means of
rebalancing procedures.

Mortgage lending mainly relates to the purchase of homes (including subrogation) against which the Bank acquires residential properties as collateral
through a mortgage. In 2024, in line with the Bank's commitments and attention to issues of financial inclusiveness, Fineco adhered to the ABI
moratorium for mortgages in favour of women victims of violence, which allows the repayment of the principal of the loan to be suspended for a
maximum of 18 months.

Lastly, with regard to personal loans, it should be noted that the instant assessment service with instant disbursement, which is provided for applications
that meet certain conditions and is aimed at customers who continuously credit their salary to their Fineco current account and meet certain income
requirements set by the Bank.

The following table shows the disbursements for the year 2024 and the balance of credit products as at December 31st, 2024 compared with the same
period of the previous year. Disbursements decreased by 12.0% to 2023, also due to rising interest rates.

(Amounts in € thousand)

Credit Products Year 2024 Year 2023 Changes
Disbursements Amounts as at
Disbursements Amounts as at Disbursements Amounts as at Amount % Amount %
personal loans and unsecured 185,145 466,497 179,985 504,384 5160  2.9% (37,887)  -7.5%
Current account credit facilities* 825,785 2,052,967 907,301 2,173,882 (81,516)  -9.0% (120,915)  -5.6%
Mortgages 63,308 2,311,534 133,943 2,500,016 (70,635) -52.7% (188,482)  -7.5%
Total 1,074,238 4,830,998 1,221,229 5,178,282 (146,991) -12.0% (347,284) -6.7%

* With regard to Current account credit lines the column Disbursements shows the amounts granted.

It should be noted that the credit lines guaranteed by securities granted in 2024 totaled € 813 million (€ 803 million related to “Credit Lombard” product,
€ 10 million related to credit facilities secured by pledged and € 0.1 million related to credit facilities with mandate for sale), equals to 98% of total
amount of credit lines granted.
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Brokerage

FinecoBank offers its brokerage services, mainly through the Bank's website and mobile applications, as well as making such services available by
telephone through customer care. In particular, customers can access the following platforms, characterised by functional and intuitive interfaces,
quickly, conveniently and free of charge

e web platform offered to all customers, customisable according to customer profile, offering a wide range of trading tools, updated in real
time, complete with charts and ancillary services;

e mobile application offered to all customers, accessible via mobile devices (including smartphones and tablets), offering a wide range of
trading tools, updated in real time; and

e FinecoX, the trading platform included in the account without any installation, which stands out for its customisation possibilities, advanced
functionalities, timeliness of information and operational completeness. Data is strictly in real-time push, trading is available on all equities,
ETFs, Certificates and Turbo Certificates, Options, Knock Out and Daily Options, CFDs and Forex, Futures, Bonds and Covered Warrants.

Brokerage activity is fully integrated with current account services and does not require clients to open a separate account (although clients may
choose to open a Trading Account only) or to activate access to such services.

FinecoBank also provides its customers with the ‘Margining’ service, i.e. the possibility to activate securities lending transactions secured by sums of
money that allow customers to receive liquidity from the Bank by lending specific financial instruments included in a predefined list (‘Long margining’)
or to receive liquidity from the Bank by lending specific financial instruments included in a predefined list by delivering liquidity ("Short margining’).

Also in this area, FinecoBank has always been committed to offering its customers new services or improving existing ones, with a constant focus on
innovation and developing functional and intuitive navigation interfaces, with the aim of ensuring ease of use. In this context, with reference to the year
2024, we highlight in particular:

o the extension of the range of CFDs issued by Fineco, integrated with over 250 CFDs with underlying equities on US and European markets
the extension of the margining service to equities on the main index of the Canadian market (TSX);
the extension of the Fixed Leverage Certificates issued by Fineco (on the website, FinecoX, Power Desk and Mobile App), with underlying
Eurostoxx bank, Gold, Silver, 7 ITA shares and 3 USA shares: Intesa Sanpaolo, Unicredit, STM, Stellantis, Enel, Eni, Telecom Italia, Nvidia,
Apple, Tesla;

o the extension of foreign online markets with the main equities listed on the Nordic markets (Sweden, Norway, Denmark) and Belgium,
previously traded offline.

Thanks to its significant trading volumes and broad client base, FinecoBank is able to act as a systematic internaliser on equity, bond and foreign
exchange markets, acting as a direct counterparty to client orders. This allows the Bank to maximise margins in the execution of orders received from
clients, reducing the cost of execution on regulated markets.

In 2024, Fineco again confirmed its position as Italy's No. 1 equity intermediary, with a 26.67% share in terms of volumes traded.
The following table shows the number of orders on financial instruments recorded during the 2024 compared to the previous year.

(Amounts in € thousand)

Year Changes

2024 2023 Absolute %
Orders - Equity ltaly (including interalised orders) 9,400,015 8,150,521 1,249,494 15.3%
Orders - Equity USA (including intemalised orders) 3,542,255 2,453,925 1,088,330 44.4%
Orders - Equity other markets (including internalised orders) 1,143,147 849,506 293,641 34.6%
Total Equity orders 14,085,417 11,453,952 2,631,465 23.0%
Orders - Bonds 1,200,374 1,125,011 75,363 6.7%
Orders - Derivatives 10,253,231 10,206,657 46,574 0.5%
Orders - Forex 812,629 1,054,474 (241,845) -22.9%
Orders - CFDs 1,734,067 1,768,354 (34,287) -1.9%
Orders - Funds 3,734,195 3,830,558 (96,363) -2.5%
Total orders 31,819,913 29,439,006 2,380,907 8.1%
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Investing

Fineco offers its clients, according to a ‘guided open architecture’ business model, a particularly extensive range of asset management products,
consisting of collective asset management products, such as units of mutual funds and shares in SICAVs attributable to carefully selected Italian and
international investment houses, pension and insurance products as well as investment advisory services. In addition, within the administered advisory
service, continuous IPOs of Investment Certificates are carried out.

The fund platform on the Italian market consists of 72 investment houses for more than 4,000 ISINs subscribable as at 31 December 2024, of which
more than 250 are funds of Fineco AM.

With regard to collective asset management products, Fineco AM's offering was further expanded with new versions of the Smart Defence funds,
whose objective is capital protection and the distribution of a coupon, and new Global Defence Target Passive strategy (Series |, Il and Ill), whose
investment strategy is the distribution of an annual dividend until the end of its time horizon and, at the same time, starting from a mainly bond position,
a gradual entry into the global equity market. In addition, new single strategy funds were launched, with the objective of either distributing a coupon
annually or achieving long-term capital appreciation through investment in a diversified portfolio, and a Target Equity Allocation was added to the
range, whose investment strategy is to achieve long-term capital appreciation, and at the same time, starting from a purely bond position, gradual
entry into the global equity market.

Among the delegated solutions for private customers, in 2024 the offer of asset management was consolidated, represented by: five lines in securities
called Private Value, four of which have risk profiles ranging from prudent to dynamic and a 100% bond line; three lines in securities called Private
Ethical; four lines in ETFs and funds called Private Global, also with risk profiles ranging from prudent to dynamic and characterised by increasing
equity exposure. In addition, MAP (Personalised Multi Assets) lines were consolidated, available in two profiles, Balanced and Equity, and
characterised by greater management flexibility than traditional lines. In fact, a wide diversification among the different asset classes is foreseen, as
well as the possibility of modifying the allocation according to market conditions with a high level of customisation capable of satisfying specific client
instructions.

As far as pension products are concerned, customers continue to focus on the Core Pension open-ended pension fund, available exclusively to the
Fineco Network. Thanks to the paperless proposition, collection of subscriptions in digital mode and through web collaboration, assets under
management continued to increase, by about 33% as at 31 December 2023, with a preference for equity sub-funds.

In the area of insurance advisory, the offer also continued, especially on multi-branch and unit-linked products with a private slant, distributed through
the Advisor Network. Five tariffs were also launched, updating the range of Branch | products, in addition to the new LTC Future Care, which positions
the Bank within the Protection Advisory segment.

With regard to primary market offerings (IPO), the placement of Investment Certificates of third-party issuers continued in 2024. The structures used
are capital ‘conditionally protected’, through protection barriers of up to 70%, autocallable with quarterly or monthly conditional coupon and memory
effect. The continuous increase in the number of Investment Certificates listed on the secondary market, including thematic and ESG, broadens the
solutions that can be used within the Bank's advisory services.

With reference to advisory services, the Bank's activities and solutions aimed at improving the services offered to customers continued. Requests for
personalisation of Private portfolios in excess of € 500 thousand reached a countervalue of over € 7.5 billion, demonstrating the appreciation of the
service provided and the need on the part of customers to receive personalised investment solutions.

With a view to supporting the activities of financial advisers on clients with positions spread over several dossiers or referring to an extended household,
the ‘Active Monitoring’ service was launched in 2020. This service, dedicated to clients with portfolios in excess of € 2.5 million, involves constant
dialogue between the financial advisor and a team of Senior Investment Advisors who constantly monitor the client's entire position using a dedicated
and technologically advanced platform. The assets for which the service is currently active amount to over € 4.1 billion.

As part of the ongoing process of developing solutions for financial advisors, the ‘Private Diagnosis’ service has been the subject of interventions
aimed at enriching reports with evidence of any non-diagnosable instruments broken down by type and details of YTM and duration that may be
missing.
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The balance of assets under management amounted to € 66,382.6 million as at December 31, 2024, up 14.4% from the previous year.

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at Amounts as at Changes
12/31/2024 Comp % 12/31/2023 Comp % Absolute %
UCITS and other investment funds 45,645,271 68.8% 38,838,704 66.9% 6,806,567 17.5%
Insurance products 12,944,305 19.5% 13,760,462 23.7% (816,157) -5.9%
Assets under custody under advisory 7,360,364 11.1% 5,052,451 8.7% 2,307,913 45.7%
Other 432,646 0.7% 364,520 0.6% 68,126 18.7%
Total assets under management 66,382,586 100.0% 58,016,137 100.0% 8,366,449 14.4%
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Sale figures, particularly in the last six months of 2024, demonstrate the effectiveness of Fineco's business model and its ability to successfully address
different market phases, using a wide range of investment solutions and fostering interaction with global markets; on the one hand, the trend towards
continued growth in the number of clients is confirmed; on the other, the ever-increasing interest of clients in the investment opportunities offered by
asset management and advisory solutions is consolidated.

The role of financial advisors proves once again to be decisive in guiding clients towards professional planning of their savings. Fineco's strategy
continues to grasp the new challenges of financial advice precisely through evolved advice, an area in which the Bank has always been a pioneer, by
leveraging efficient investment products, thanks in part to the contribution of FAM, and the organisation of team work.

The results achieved show a trend reversal in the asset mix, characterised by a preponderant managed component, also thanks to the evolved advisory
platform with which Fineco's network of financial advisors (hereinafter referred to as the “Network”) supports and accompanies savers in a long-term
vision, even though a robust administered component is present, still favoured by the dynamics of interest rates.

As at 31 December 2024 for the personal financial advisors Network, the results were very positive, in particular:

Total Net Sales: € 7,834 million (+10.2% compared to the same period last year).

Total Net Sales Assets under management: € 4,128 million (+54.2% compared to the same period last year).
Net Sales in Advanced Advisory Services: € 4,108 million (+45.8% compared to the same period last year).
New customers acquired: 68,202 (+12.7% compared to the same period last year).

These results, according to the Assoreti classification, place the Bank in 3rd place for net inflows as at 31 December 2024.

The Network's average portfolio increased by 12.6% compared to the same period last year, from € 36 million to € 40.5 million; Total Financial Assets
(TFA) attributable to the Network exceeded € 121 billion, reflecting a constant focus on growth and a solid relationship of trust established with clients.

2024 also proved to be a year of new records for the private banking business, with an increase of more than 20% in assets and number of clients
and net inflows at an all-time high. Total Financial Assets referring to private clients across the entire Bank reached € 68.4 billion (€ 56 billion as at 31
December 2023), of which € 61.3 billion related to clients associated with financial advisors (€ 50.6 billion as at 31 December 2023). Their share of
the total TFA rose to 48.6% compared to 45.7% at the end of the previous year; considering only clients associated with financial advisors, the TFA
relating to private clients exceeded 50% of total assets (47.4% as at 31 December 2023), a sign of the Network's growing vocation for private banking.

The growth in the number of private customers, which rose to 67,160 (56,612 as at 31 December 2023), of which 59,018 were followed by financial
advisers (50,423 as at 31 December 2023), is consistent with the dynamics recorded in previous years: the prevalence of natural person customers
(around 90% of private TFA) and low concentration of positions make growth balanced and sustainable over time. Particularly flattering is the figure
for the acquisition of new private customers: around 2,800 new customers were acquired in 2024, of which around 90% are attributable to the personal
financial advisors Network. Total net inflows referred to this customer segment exceeded € 4.7 billion, of which over € 4 billion referred to customers
followed by personal financial advisors.

The Network also maintained a high level of attention to financial education; in fact, in 2024, a total of 1,531 customer events were organised (223 of
which were web-based), aimed at broadening knowledge on savings and investment issues, with the participation of well over 53,000 customers and
prospects, during which particular attention was paid to financial planning, planning by objectives and behavioural finance, and various ‘financial news’
topics were discussed, interacting with participants. Of these, 27 events were dedicated to high-end clients, with over 1,186 private clients involved,
on the broader topic of wealth planning.

As far as recruitment activity is concerned, the Fineco model remains attractive, particularly for professionals coming from more traditional models.
During the year, 78 new ‘senior’ financial advisors, i.e. already experienced professionals from traditional banks, specialised Private Banking
institutions and other financial advisory networks, were recruited. As always, the focus was also on the inclusion of more junior profiles, which are
confirmed as an important resource in which to invest: since the beginning of the year, 100 new consultants have been introduced to the profession
as part of the youth project, expressly dedicated to this category.

The average age of the Network as at 31 December 2024 is around 50, among the lowest compared to its main competitors.

As of 31 December 2024, the Network consisted of 3,002 personal financial advisors. The widespread presence of the Network in the territory is
supported by a network of 438 financial centers.
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The table below shows the figures for direct deposits, assets under management and assets under custody net inflows relating only to clients of the
personal financial advisors Network during the 2024, compared with the figures for the same period of the previous year. Total net inflows amounted
to € 7,833.8 million.

Net sales - Personal Financial Advisors Network

(Amounts in € thousand)

Year Comp % Year Comp Changes

2024 2023 Absolute %
DIRECT DEPOSITS 711,125 9.1% (1,743,862) -24.5% 2,454,987 -140.8%
Current accounts and demand deposits 538,282 6.9% (2,370,286) -33.3% 2,908,568 -122.7%
Time deposits and reverse repos 172,843 2.2% 626,424 8.8% (453,581) -12.4%
ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT 4,128,043 52.7% 2,677,239 37.7% 1,450,804 54.2%
UCITS and other investment funds 3,481,473 44.4% 2,604,065 36.6% 877,408 33.7%
Insurance products (1,304,928) -16.7% (2,361,085) -33.2% 1,056,157 -44.7%
Assets under custody under advisory 1,899,411 24.2% 2,413,362 33.9% (513,951) -21.3%
Other 52,087 0.7% 20,897 0.3% 31,190 149.3%
ASSETS UNDER CUSTODY 2,994,680 38.2% 6,176,708 86.9% (3,182,028) -51.5%
Equities 2,250,897 28.7% 175,718 2.5% 2,075,179 n.a.
Bonds 973,405 12.4% 5,831,813 82.0% (4,858,408) -83.3%
Third-party deposits (170,990) -2.2% 167,764 2.4% (338,754) -201.9%
Other (58,632) 0.7% 1,413 0.0% (60,045) n.a.
N e RS AL FINANCIAL 7833848 100.0% 7110085 100.0% 723,763 10.2%
of which Advanced Advisory Service 4,108,076 52.4% 2,818,282 39.6% 1,289,794 45.8%

It should be noted that the percentage reported for Advanced Advisory Service, equal to 52.4% as at December 315, 2024, is calculated by comparing
their amounts with the amount of Network total net sales.

The table below shows the amount of deposits attributable to the Network as at December 31st, 2024, amounted to € 121,740.5 million, up 14.1%
compared to the same period last year (€ 106,705.5 million). According to Assoreti’s ranking, as at December 31st, 2024 FinecoBank ranked 31 in
total assets, amounted to 13.4% of the Network system.
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Total financial assets - Personal Financial Advisors Network

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at Amounts as at Changes

12/31/2024 Comp % 12/31/2023 Comp % Absolute %
DIRECT DEPOSITS 22,863,414 18.8% 22,133,340 20.7% 730,074 3.3%
Current accounts and demand deposits 22,041,588 18.1% 21,506,552 20.2% 535,036 2.5%
Time deposits and reverse repos 821,826 0.7% 626,788 0.6% 195,038 31.1%
ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT 65,913,792 54.1% 57,551,223 53.9% 8,362,569 14.5%
UCITS and other investment funds 45,227,518 37.2% 38,423,236 36.0% 6,804,282 17.7%
Insurance products 12,893,807 10.6% 13,711,524 12.9% (817,717) -6.0%
Assets under custody under advisory 7,360,230 6.0% 5,051,943 4.7% 2,308,287 45.7%
Other 432,237 0.4% 364,520 0.3% 67,717 18.6%
ASSETS UNDER CUSTODY 32,963,340 27.1% 27,020,905 25.3% 5,942,435 22.0%
Equities 20,380,350 16.7% 15,369,297 14.4% 5,011,053 32.6%
Bonds 12,352,283 10.1% 11,190,942 10.5% 1,161,341 10.4%
Third-party deposits 173,690 0.1% 344,679 0.3% (170,989) -49.6%
Other 57,017 0.0% 115,987 0.1% (58,970) -50.8%
T e AL T FE RRONAL 121,740,546 100.0% 106,705,468 100.0% 15,035,078 14.1%
of which Advanced Advisory Service 34,518,690 28.4% 27,981,369 26.2% 6,537,321 23.4%

It should be noted that the percentage reported for Advanced Advisory Service, equal to 28.4% as at December 31%t, 2024, is calculated by comparing
their amounts with the amount of Network total financial assets.
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The parent: FinecoBank S.p.A.
As at December 31st, 2024, the Bank’s employees were 1,368 up compared to 1,311 as at December 31st, 2023.

During 2024, all employees continued to work remotely according to the existing Individual Agreement renew on January 15t 2024 which confirmed
the possibility of working from home to a maximum of 14 days per month divided on a weekly basis.

Further initiatives aimed at facilitating and improving the working and personal life of employees continued, in continuity with what was done in the
previous year (for example in the area of health and welfare).

Hiring activities aimed at strengthening and optimising the areas dedicated to business development, organizational and technological support and
risk control and management continued mainly in "remote" mode.

Our effort in attracting new talents continued also during 2024, with a particular focus on new Generations (Millenials and Z Generation), also thanks
to employer branding initiatives aimed at meeting and hiring new graduates or undergraduates and better understand the behavioral dynamics typical
of the new generations. FinecoBank attended Career Days (also Digital) and continued to use different onboarding techniques that help simplify the
process and support Chief People Officer department, managers and candidates.

Out of the 104 recruitments in 2024, many were employed in the Customer Relationship Management area confirming the strong and ongoing focus
on young graduates. Customer Relationship Management is in fact the starting point of a path of professional development that can lead to cover
different roles in the company.

Also 2024 showed a significant use of internal job rotation that involved about 40 resources enabling, on one hand, to cover the vacant positions within
the Company, and on the other hand, to guarantee the continuous staff professional development.

During 2024, a total of 47 employees left the Bank, including:

e 30 resignations;
e 17 for other reasons.

The Bank's employees can be broken down as follows:

Men Women Total
Category 12/31/2024 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 12/31/2023
Executives 24 25 7 6 31 31
Managers 356 330 156 142 512 472
Professional Areas 408 405 417 403 825 808
Total 788 760 580 551 1,368 1,311

At December 31st 2024, the Bank has 103 part-time employees (about 7.5% of the total), women employees making up 42% of the workforce. The
average length of service is about 13 years and the average age is about 43.
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Employees training

During 2024, Fineco employees training has been focused both on acquisition and strengthening of specific skills required by the current internal and
external regulations and different company needs, and on the update of individual knowledges, with a specific attention to Mandatory, Technical,
Linguistic, Behavioural and Managerial training. In 2024, the opening of “Fineco Academy” (“life-long training center” of the Bank) has created new
opportunities to increase face to face training activities, offering more and more engaging training experiences.

Below, the breakdown of training hours* by training areas:

Training area Hours of training
Mandatory 27,209
Technical 24,959
Foreign Language 4213
Conduct — Management 5,142
Total 61,523

*FAM included

Mandatory training

The Bank is committed to the constant spread and improvement of Risk and Compliance culture, elements which enable its business to be, other than
profitable, sustainable over time. Fineco believes that the training on these topics is paramount to promote, among employees, how awareness,
transparency and rule respect are essential for the Bank.

For this reason, considerable attention has been constantly paid to Mandatory training, dedicated to all employees and mainly provided through our
online training platform, with the implementation of courses about relevant topics, e.g. Loansharking, Tax Risk, consent to data processing,
Accessibility, Reputational Risk, ICT and Security Risk Management in Fineco, D.Lgs. 231/2001.

New versions of AML and Financial Sanctions courses have been released, and webinar sessions of “Focus Indicatori di anomalia” and “Resoconto
S0S”.

Then, in order to underline the commitment of the Bank in sustaining a balanced and inclusive working environment and prevent and ban all types of
discrimination in every context, the course “Gender equality” and ““Lotta alle molestie, ai comportamenti sessualmente inappropriati e al bullismo”.
have been released.

With the aim of guaranteeing the training of all employees on these topics, and preserve the Bank from operational, legal and reputational risks, every
Mandatory course has a final test and periodical monitoring are carried out, in order to verify the pass. The completion of Mandatory Training is
prerequisite for the access to the Incentive System.

Mandatory Insurance Courses (IVASS) have been activated in the departments that give information to Customers, as well as professional
development courses for the purposes of Consob intermediary regulation, and annual skills Assessment based on ESMA subjects.

In order to guarantee business continuity in case of crisis, specific training paths have been organized, with the involvement of essential resources
and their replacements.

Lastly, to ensure compliance with occupational Health and Safety at work provisions, the Bank guarantees periodical and continuous training to all
impacted resources, on the basis of current regulations.

Technical Training

During 2024, with the assistance of external suppliers, strategical business partners, Universities and internal specialists, the Bank has organized
specific training sessions depending on the business areas and in order to improve, not only company productivity, but also the level of employees
specialisation. Particular attention is given to the specialist training addressed to company control functions, that require a continuous development
and update in terms of technical and regulations knowledge.

Great importance is given also to the training on the job activity, extremely useful to guarantee a practical and effective training, especially for new
joiners. Also Training on the job activity continued, as usual, in the Customer Care department.
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Behavioural and Managerial Training

The implementation of training sessions about behavioural and managerial topics is based on the result of a constant analysis process, that allow the
identification of the training needs and development of all employees.

During 2024, specific managerial training paths have been done, with the goal of developing the leadership at each stage of managers working cycle,
supporting them in the guide of their teams, in reaching company targets and creating a motivating and inclusive working context. The contents of the
programs are aligned to the strategical priorities, complexities, and challenges typical of the role, based on the seniority level, too.

Regarding Behavioural and Soft skills Training, in 2024 have been released some training paths that had the aim to improve employees skills and
abilities, enriching the professional and personal background of everyone.

This year, too, with the purpose of meeting the behavioural, managerial and personal training needs of all employees, a freely accessible online
training catalogue continued to be available on our learning platform, that is constantly enriched with new courses, organized by macro-training areas:
Communication & Influencing; People & Self-Management; Leadership; Efficiency, Execution & Organization; Ethics & Respect, Diversity & Inclusion;
Health & Safety; Languages.

Then, the course “Lavoriamo come mangiamo: pillole di nutrizione” is available to every colleague and has the aim of giving tips and tricks about how
to maintain healthy eating habits, even during the working day in the office.

Even in 2024, FinecoBank has renewed the partnership with Valore D, that offers to employees the chance of having access to contents and courses
designed to enhance the female talent and promote the Company inclusive culture, with specific focus on gender equality, and included topics like
unconscious stereotypes, language inclusiveness, collaboration in heterogeneous teams, enhancement of resources and gender and sexual
harassment on workplace.

Foreign Language Training

Regarding language training, also this year all employees had the opportunity to use a dedicated training platform, based on Artificial Intelligence, with
the aim to increase English language skills of everyone through a custom learning path, based on the initial level of knowledge and on the own interests
of the learner.

In addition, as usual, the Bank has activated an English language course that involved 300 employees (groups and one-to-one lessons), held by phone
or virtual classes. Furthermore, some specific resources received Legal English and German training, too.

The participation of the employees in foreign language training courses is defined every year on the basis of the requests of the Unit Managers,
considering the specific professional needs of the colleagues.

Even in the online training catalogue, we have added some German, Spanish, French and Business English courses.

The subsidiary: Fineco Asset Management Designated Activity Company (Dac)
As at December 31st, 2024, the Company’s employees are 83 of which women 34 and 49 men and the average age is around 37.
The hirings were aimed at strengthening both the business and support and control functions.

Employees training during 2024 has been focused on the acquisition and consolidation of competencies required by the different company needs, and
on the update of individual knowledges, with special attention to Mandatory Training. This one, plays indeed a very important role for the constant
spread and improvement of Risk and Compliance culture, elements that let the Group business be profitable and sustainable over time.
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Incentive plans

FinecoBank Board of Directors on January 16, 2024 — in consideration of the favourable opinion of the Remuneration Committee held on January
121, 2024 - approved the following incentive systems subsequently approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting of April 24t, 2024:

e 2024 Incentive System for employees classified as Identified Staff
2024-2026 Long-term Incentive System for Employees;
e 2024 Incentive System for Personal Financial Advisors classified as Identified Staff.

In addition, on February 6%, 2024, upon the favourable opinion of the Remuneration Committee held on February 5%, 2024, the Board of Directors of
FinecoBank approved:

o  forthe 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 Incentive Systems:

o the execution of the plans;

o the allocation of the last share tranche of the 2018 plan, awarded in 2019, corresponding to overall 32,525 free ordinary shares, in
line with the maximum amount approved by the Board of Directors on January 10t, 2018;

o the allocation of the third share tranche of the 2019 plan, awarded in 2020, corresponding to 32,771 free ordinary shares, in line with
the maximum amount approved by the Board of Directors on January 10t, 2019;

o theallocation of the second and third share tranche of the 2020 plan, awarded in 2021, corresponding to 37,918 free ordinary shares,
in line with the maximum amount approved by the Board of Directors on January 15%, 2020;

o the allocation of the second share tranche of the 2021 plan, awarded in 2022, corresponding to 2,690 free ordinary shares, in line
with the maximum amount approved by the Board of Directors on January 19t, 2021;

o the allocation of the first share tranche of the 2022 plan, awarded in 2023, corresponding to 59,246 free ordinary shares, in line with
the maximum amount approved by the Board of Directors on January 18, 2022;

o afree capital increase effective from March 28, 2024 for a total amount of € 54,499.50 corresponding to 165,150 free FinecoBank
ordinary shares with a nominal value of € 0.33 each (with the same characteristics as those in circulation and with regular dividend
entitlement), in partial exercise of the authority granted to the Board of Directors by the Extraordinary Shareholders' Meeting of April
11t 2018, April 10t 2019, April 28t 2020, April 28" 2021 and April 28t 2022 pursuant to Article 2443 of the Italian Civil Code. The
dilution effect resulting from the above free capital increase has been quantified as 0.03% of the fully diluted capital;

o the payment of the second cash tranche related to the 2021 Incentive System, the second cash tranche related to the 2020 Incentive
System and the last cash tranche related to the 2018 Incentive System.

e for the 2023 Incentive System (Bonus Pool):

o the FinecoBank 2023 Bonus Pool;

o the proposed 2023 bonus for the Chief Executive Officer and General Manager, the other Executives with Strategic Responsibilities
and other Identified Staff;

o theallocation of 183,332 FinecoBank ordinary shares, to be allocated free of charge to the above-mentioned personnel in accordance
with the relevant plan rules;

o  the payment of the first tranche in cash.

e for the 2018-2020 Long Term Incentive Plan for the employees:

o the execution of the plan;

o the allocation of third and fourth share tranches of the plan, granted in 2018 and corresponding to 114,511 FinecoBank free ordinary
shares, and subsequently, a free capital increase effective as of March 28, 2024, for a total amount of € 37,788.63 in partial exercise
of the authority granted to the Board of Directors by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of April 11t, 2018 pursuant to Article
2443 of the Italian Civil Code.

o  forthe 2021-2023 Long Term Incentive Plan for the employees:

o the execution of the plan;

o the award of 733,728 FinecoBank ordinary shares, to be allocated free of charge to the above-mentioned personnel in accordance
with the relevant plan rules;

o the allocation of first share tranche of the plan, granted in 2021 and corresponding to 88,131 FinecoBank free ordinary shares, and
subsequently, a free capital increase effective as of March 28t, 2024, for a total amount of € 29,083.23 in partial exercise of the
authority granted to the Board of Directors by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of April 28, 2021 pursuant to Article 2443 of
the Italian Civil Code.

o  for the 2023 PFA Incentive System plan:

o  the 2023 Bonus Pool for personal financial advisors;

o the proposed 2023 bonuses for personal financial advisors classified as Identified Staff;

o the allocation of 43,673 FinecoBank shares (within the maximum 246,015 ordinary shares), to be allocated free of charge to the
above-mentioned personal financial advisors in accordance with the relevant plan rules;

o the purchase of treasury shares, having obtained the authorisation from the Supervisory Authority, pursuant to Articles 77-78 EU
575/2013 of June 26, 2013 (CRR) as amended by EU Reg. no. 876/2019, in accordance with the shareholder meeting resolution

o  the payment of the first tranche in cash.

o  forthe 2022, 2021, and 2020 PFA Incentive System plans:
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o the execution of the plan;

o the allocation of the first tranche in shares of “2022 PFA Incentive System plan” corresponding to 16,480 FinecoBank shares to the
personal financial advisors classified as "ldentified Staff", in accordance with the plan rules;

o the allocation of the second tranche in shares of “2021 PFA Incentive System plan” corresponding to 19,004 FinecoBank shares and
the third tranche in cash to the personal financial advisors classified as "ldentified Staff', in accordance with the plan rules;

o theallocation of the third tranche in shares of “2020 PFA Incentive System plan” corresponding to 12,781 FinecoBank shares and the
second and fourth tranche in cash to the personal financial advisors classified as "ldentified Staff", in accordance with the plan rules.

o for the 2018-2020 Long Term Incentive Plan for FinecoBank Personal Financial Advisors classified as Identified Staff:
o the execution of the plan;
o the allocation to the beneficiaries of the second tranche of the Plan corresponding to 6,194 Finecobank shares.

On May 7th 2024, the Board of Directors of FinecoBank, taking into account the favourable opinion of the Remuneration Committee, which met on
May 6th 2024, resolved to grant a maximum of 862,087 FinecoBank ordinary shares to the beneficiaries of the "2024-2026 Long-Term Incentive
Plan for Employees", to be awarded in 2027 upon verification of the entry and performance conditions provided for in the plan itself.

On April 22nd, 2024, the Board of Directors of Fineco Asset Management DAC approved the 2024 incentive system for the local Identified Staff.
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FinecoBank is one of the most important FinTech banks and offers a unique business model in Europe, combining the best platforms with a large
network of financial advisors. Fineco offers banking, credit, trading and investment services from a single account through transactional and advisory
platforms developed with proprietary technologies.

Fineco's competitive strategy is based on an approach that has always driven the Bank: the interpretation of customer needs and the information
system represents a tool of primary importance for the achievement of both strategic and operational objectives: Fineco combines customer care with
an intrinsic component of innovation that succeeds in following the most current technological trends also through its internal culture, making the
customer experience fluid and intuitive on all channels.

Over the years, the strategic choice in IT and Security has been to internally oversee all the technological and security activities that could provide a
significant contribution to business development. This approach has made it possible to offer customised and distinctive products, maintain internal
know-how and a high level of control over the evolution of its technology and services, maintain intellectual property rights over the applications
developed and the algorithms supporting them, and guarantee a rapid time to market, as well as better and more consistent performance in the
provision of services.

The current architecture is structured on several logical layers, segregated in terms of networks and delivery systems:

e  Frontend layer for web, mobile and phone banking applications;

e Backend layer for the delivery of core services such as banking, trading and consultancy services;

e  Technical integration layer that allows the two previous layers to interact and integrate with the necessary counterparts (info-providers,
markets, partners, etc.);

o Data layer, which houses all the company's information assets, structured and unstructured.

The architectural and development paradigms in use, oriented towards “agile development” together with the adoption of latest-generation
technologies, enable the effective and sustainable integration of distribution channels, the internal operating platform, and the applications through
which customers access their services.

The aim is to have a high degree of sustainability in terms of technological cost structure, a high degree of scalability of a “horizontal” type, to design
services that are delivered in a distributed manner, and to keep in-house the development and management of value-added applications that represent
a competitive factor for Fineco, whether quantifiable in terms of “time to market” or efficiency/ operational leverage.

During 2024, the Bank continued carrying out its activities for technological renewal, infrastructure and applicative optimisation with a focus on the
consolidation and development of the information system, aimed at providing innovative, reliable, interoperable and open services that improve the
experience of customers and financial advisors, as well as ensuring adherence to the opportunities offered by the regulatory landscape.

Regarding Fineco AM, the company uses a third-party platform for the manage investment services.

Disclosure on Russian-Ukrainian crisis risks— cyber attack

With reference to ICT and Cyber risks, the Group continues to address the objective to ensure the protection of clients by guaranteeing data security,
declined in its characteristics of availability, confidentiality and integrity: in light of the Russian-Ukrainian crisis on EU financial markets, special attention
has been paid to the assessment of related risks. In compliance with the measures provided for by current legislation, Fineco continues to undertake
the initiatives aimed at verifying its security posture and operational readiness also making use of the indications and recommendations suggested by
the various national and international bodies. Without prejudice to the fact that Fineco has always adopted best practices in the field of security, in
both technical and organizational/procedural terms, additional mechanisms have in any case been evaluated and introduced to cope with any impacts
arising from the contingent situation.
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The internal control system is a fundamental part of the overall governance system of banks. It ensures that bank activities are in line with bank policies
and strategies and are based on principles of sound and prudent management.

Circular no. 285 of December 17t, 2013 (as amended) defines the principles and guidelines with which the internal control system of banks must
comply. The circular defines the general principles of organisation, identifies the role and responsibilities of governing bodies, and sets out the
characteristics and roles of corporate control functions.

FinecoBank also adheres to the Corporate Governance Code of listed companies by implementing the recommendations of the Corporate Governance
Committee of listed companies regarding the governance of the internal control system.

The internal control system must provide protective measures that cover all types of business risk. The primary responsibility for these tasks lies with
the bank’s bodies, each in accordance with its specific duties. The structure of tasks and lines of responsibility of corporate functions and bodies must
be clearly specified.

Banks must apply the provisions according to the proportionality principle, i.e. taking into account the operating scale and organisational complexity,
the nature of the activities carried out, and the type of services provided.

As part of the supervisory review and evaluation process, the European Central bank and the Bank of Italy verify the internal control system in terms
of completeness, suitability, functionality (in terms of efficiency and effectiveness) and reliability of banks.

In accordance with the provisions laid down by the Supervisory Authority, the Bank's internal control system consists of a set of rules, functions,
organisational structures, resources, processes and procedures aimed to ensure the achievement of the following objectives, in compliance with the
principles of sound and prudent management:

o verifying the implementation of the Bank’s strategies and policies;

e containing risk within the limits set out in the Bank Risk Appetite Framework - "RAF";

e  preventing the Bank’s involvement, even if unintentional, in unlawful activities (with specific reference to money laundering, usury and the
financing of terrorism);

e protecting the value of assets and preventing losses;

o ensuring the effectiveness and efficiency of corporate processes;

e ensuring the security and reliability of the Bank information and ICT procedures;

e  compliance of transactions with the law and supervisory regulations, as well as with the policies, regulations and internal procedures of the

Bank and the FinecoBank Group.

Consistently with the European Banking Authority's (‘EBA”) Guidelines on Internal Governance and the relevant locally applicable regulations,as part
of the Internal Control System, the Body with Strategic Oversight function of each Companies, among other things, oversees the internal control
framework, including a sound and effective risk management framework, and periodically assesses the adequacy/effectiveness of the Internal Control
System by identifying appropriate measures to address any identified weaknesses.

FinecoBank reports annually on its internal control and risk management system as part of the “Report on Corporate Governance and Ownership
Structures” reports information. In addition, also on an annual basis, FinecoBank, carries out the Group ICS Assessment, which is an activity that
gathers and summarises the contributions of the players in the Bank's Internal Control System, coordinated by the Chief Executive Officer, in order to
verify the adequacy and efficiency of the System itself. This activity is one of the elements supporting the activity of verifying the adequacy and
efficiency of the Internal Control System, in conjunction with the other contributions that are brought to the attention of the Corporate Governance
Bodies during the year by the various players in the Bank's Internal Control System (e.g. periodic and/or event-driven reports from the Heads of the
Corporate Control Functions, information from the Manager in charge of preparing the accounting and corporate documents for the purpose of
preparing the financial statements) and/or from outside the Bank (e.g., from the Independent Auditors, from the Supervisory Authorities).

In the Organisation and Management Model of FinecoBank (pursuant to Legislative Decree.231/01) sets out the salient features of the internal control
system, which plays a central role in the company's organisation, (i) representing a fundamental element of knowledge for the company bodies so as
to guarantee full awareness of the situation and effective control of the company's risks and their interrelationships (ii) guiding changes in the company's
strategic lines and policies, (iii) making it possible to adapt the organisational context in a coherent manner, (iv) overseeing the functionality of
management systems and compliance with prudential supervisory institutions, and (v) fostering the dissemination of a correct culture of risks, legality
and corporate values.

FinecoBank, as parent company, has provided the Group with a coherent system of internal controls allowing for effective control of the strategic
choices of the group as a whole and the management balance of each group legal entity.

From a methodological point of view, the Internal Control System of the Bank and Fineco AM, the only subsidiary, provides for three types of controls:

o firstlevel controls ("line controls"): these are controls for individual activities and are carried out according to specific operational procedures
based on a specific internal regulation. Monitoring and continuously updating these processes is entrusted to 'process supervisors' who
are charged with devising controls able to ensure the proper performance of daily activities by the staff concerned, as well as the observance
of any delegated powers. The processes subject to control relate to units that have contact with customers, as well as completely internal
units;
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e second level controls: these are controls related to daily operations connected with the process of measuring risks and are carried out
continuously by non-operating units. Controls on market, credit and operational risks, aimed at verifying compliance with the limits assigned
to the various operational functions and controlling the consistency of the operations of the individual production areas with respect to the
predefined risk/return objectives, are assigned to the Risk Management function (CRO); controls on the risks of non-compliance with
regulations are the responsibility of the Compliance Department and of the Anti-Money Laundering and Anti-corruption Department on their
respective areas of competence; in regulatory areas for which forms of control are already envisaged by specialised structures, the control
of non-compliance risk is assigned to the latter on the basis of the “Indirect Coverage” operational model;

o third level controls: these controls are typical of internal auditing, based on analysis of information obtained from databases or company
reports, as well as on-site controls. This type of control aims to identify breaches of procedures and regulations, in addition to periodically
assessing the completeness, adequacy, functioning (in terms of efficiency and effectiveness) and reliability of the internal control system
and information system (ICT audit) at a set frequency based on the nature and level of the risks. These controls are assigned to the Internal
Audit function; to verify the compliance of the behaviour of the companies belonging to the Group with the guidelines of the Parent Company
as well as the effectiveness of the internal control system, the internal audit function of FinecoBank, on a consolidated level, periodically
carries out on-site controls on the components of the Group, taking into account the importance of the different types of risk assumed by
the entities;

e institutional supervisory controls: these are the controls carried out by the Bank's institutional bodies including, in particular, those of the
Board of Statutory Auditors and of the Supervisory Board pursuant to Legislative Decree No. 231 of 8t June 2001.

With regard to the subsidiary Fineco AM, the organisational structure involves the performance of Compliance, Risk Management and Internal Audit
activities by units within the company.

As parent company, FinecoBank defines the relevant control and monitor measures of the subsidiary Fineco AM, ensuring an alignment of the
implementation of the group internal control system, where possible, in consideration of the specific business carried out by the Irish controlled entity.

The Parent Company's 2" and 3™ level controls units submit an annual report to the corporate bodies illustrating the controls carried out, their results,
and the weaknesses detected with reference to the Parent Company and the banking Group as a whole, and proposing steps to be taken to remedy
these deficiencies.

Institutional supervisory controls have also been set up at the Parent Company: these refer to controls by the Bank's supervisory bodies, including in
particular the Board of Statutory Auditors and the Supervisory Body pursuant to Italian Legislative Decree no. 231 of June 8th, 2001.

Considering the functions and units involved, the FinecoBank's internal control system is based on:

e control bodies and functions including, according to their respective responsibilities, the Board of Directors, the Risk and Related Parties
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Appointments Committee, the Corporate Governance and Environmental and Social
Sustainability Committee, the Chief Executive Officer and General Manager, the Board of Statutory Auditors, the Supervisory Body set up
pursuant to Legislative Decree 231/01 and the corporate control functions (Risk Management, Compliance, Internal Audit)! as well as other
company functions with specific internal control duties?;

e procedures for the coordination of entities involved in the internal control and risk management system, which provide for:

o  cooperation and coordination among control functions, through specific information flows that are formalised in internal regulations
and through managerial committees dedicated to control issues;
o definition of information flows between the Bank's corporate bodies and control functions.

" The corporate control functions also include the Anti-Money Laundering Function, the Validation Function as regulated by the relevant provisions and the ICT and Security Risk Control Function as regulated by Chapter 4,
Section. II, par. 4 of the Bank of Italy Circular no. 285/2013. On December 14t, 2023 with effect from April 1st 2024, the Board of Directors of the Bank approved an organizational change that established the transfer of the
Anti-Money Laundering and Anti-Corruption Function unit from the Compliance Function, bringing it to report directly to the CEO and General Manager and his reclassification to Department. The DPO, Outsourcing, & ICT &
Security Compliance Unit also operates within the Compliance Department, whose manager is assigned the role of Data Protection Officer by resolution of the Board of Directors of FinecoBank.

2The legislative framework could assign control tasks to specific functions - other than corporate control functions - which activity must be integrated within the Internal Control System.

In this regard, the Bank has identified some functions / organizational structures which, on the basis of specific tasks assigned, oversee certain regulatory areas. In particular, the safeguards of the Manager in charge of
preparing the corporate accounting documents and that of Control on the sales network of the tied agents are relevant.

The model of the indirect control presumes that other functions than Compliance, known as "Specialist Areas" (such as Tax, HR, etc.) have the main responsibility for certain regulatory areas that are not covered by Compliance.
In order to provide an overall view on the compliance risk, Compliance function could delegate related assessments for the areas controlled directly and those controlled jointly with the specialized areas. However, Compliance
remains the responsible function in collaboration with the specialist areas at least for the definition of the methodology for risk assessment and for the evaluation of the compliance risk and the identification of the related
procedures, therefore, proceed to verify the adequacy of the procedures in place to prevent the compliance risk.

Currently are identified the following specialized areas:

- Corporate Law & Board Secretary's Office in relation to the regulatory requirements provided for company representatives and for the functioning of the Assembly, ; Representative of Health and Safety at work (Delegate
81); Responsible for the works regarding Temporary or mobile constructions site (pursuant to the Legislative Decree 81/2008 Title IV) Procurement Office in the field of health and safety at work pursuant to the Legislative
Decree 81/2008 art. 16; Human resources in the field of labour law; in the field of health and safety at work (Legislative Decree 81/2008 Title I) and in the field of environmental protection related to initiatives to support the
sustainability of travel for employees; CFO - Tax Affairs and Consulting; CFO -technical structure Sustainability responsible for the activities of environmental management system area (EMAS Regulation) in line with the
regulatory provisions introduced by the CSRD - Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive (EU Directive 2022/2464 of 14 December 2022).

All corporate functions, other than the Corporate Control Functions, participate in the Internal Control System by carrying out the first level controls, which are incorporated into their relevant business processes.
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In addition, it should be noted that the FinecoBank Group, as a significant institution according to Regulation (EU) No. 468/2014, is subject to the direct
supervision of the European Central Bank (ECB). Consequently, the annual Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (SREP) Assessment, is
carried out by a Joint Supervisory Team (JST), composed by ECB analyst from the DG “Specialized Institutions & LSIs” as well as members of the
“Banking Supervision 1 department” of the Bank of Italy.

Main risks and uncertainties

In this Report on operations a representation has been provided of the macroeconomic framework and the main risks inherent in it, to be read
consistently with the forward-looking indications contained in the chapter on the foreseeable evolution of operations, an update has also been provided
information on the control of the main risk aspects for the Group related to the military conflict between Russia and Ukraine.

For more details of the risks and uncertainties faced by the Bank and the Group in the current market situation, see Part A - Accounting policies and
Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies of the notes to the consolidated accounts and of the notes to the accounts.
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The Parent Company’s Organisational Model

The Parent Company follows a functional organisational model that groups operations on the basis of a specific function and common processes; all
knowledge and abilities concerning specific operations are constantly built and strengthened, creating thorough expertise for every individual unit and
thus for the organisation as a whole. The strength of the functional model is its ability to promote economies of scale, as all employees belonging to a
given function will share competencies and processes, avoiding duplication and waste. The functional model also facilitates the development of vertical
capacities and knowledge within the specific area and ensures a dynamic decision-making process. Although the Parent Company’s current
arrangement applies the concept of “functional specialisation”, horizontal connections across the different functions are maintained, in part through a
project-based approach at every phase of definition and release of products and services: project groups involve one or more members of the
appropriate functions who bring their own in-depth knowledge from their area of expertise. The horizontal connections are also guaranteed by the
work of managerial committees whose duties include monitoring progress on the most important projects. The synergies between the distribution
channels and the monitoring of decision-making processes that cut across the departments are ensured by a Management Committee.

The model followed by the Bank identifies the following corporate control functions: i) compliance with regulations; ii) risk management; iii) internal
audit and iv) anti-money laundering function®; as well as additional specialised functions, including the CFO (Chief Financial Officer), the Manager in
charge of overseeing the preparation of the company's accounting documents, Legal Affairs, Chief People Officer, Corporate Identity, and oversight
of the PFA network.

In addition, the model identifies three additional functional lines, which govern:

o the sales network (Network PFA & Private Banking Department);
e the business (Global Business Department);
e operational functioning (Global Banking Services Department).

In brief:

o the Network PFA & Private Banking Department is responsible for overseeing the management and development of the personal financial
advisors network enabled for off-site distribution, and for providing the necessary support to the sales network in the management of Private
Banking customers;

e the Global Business Department is responsible for overseeing the development of Trading, Banking, Credit and Investing products and the
financial advisory services provided to the Bank’s customers;

o the Global Banking Services (GBS) Department coordinates the organisational units in charge of monitoring the organisational/operating
processes and the ICT and logistics systems needed to ensure the effective and efficient operation of business support systems. The
following organisational units report to the GBS Department: ICT & Security Office Department (CIO), Customer Relationship Management
(CRM) Department, Organisation & Bank Operations Department, Financial Operations Department, Group Data Officer team,
Procurement Office Team, Real Estate Unit, General Services Unit and Operational Monitoring & Private Bankers Team.

The three Deputy General Managers and related Departments (Network PFA & Private Banking Department, Global Business Department and Global
Banking Services Department) report to the Chief Executive Officer and General Manager, in addition to the following organizational structures: the
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Department, the Chief Risk Officer (CRO) Department, the Chief Lending Officer (CLO) Department, the Network
Controls, Monitoring & Services Department, the Legal & Corporate Affairs Department, Chief People Officer Department, Compliance Department,
Anty-Money Laundering & Anticorruption Department, the Regulatory Affairs Team & Resolution Unit and the Identity & Communications Team.

Internal Audit reports directly to the Board of Directors, the Body responsible for Strategic Supervision.
The Board of Directors in December 14t, 2023 resolved:

o with effect from January 1st, 2024, within the Global Business Department, the creation of a new structure dedicated to monitoring emerging
technology trends in the fintech brokerage landscape;

o with effect from April 1st, 2024, the transfer of the Anti-Money Laundering and Anti-Corruption Function to report directly to the Chief
Executive Officer & General Manager and its upgrading to Department.

During the second half of 2024 the Board of Directors resolved:

. in July 2024 with effect from September 1st, 2024
—  the evolution of the Data Governance organizational with the assignment of new responsibilities, also with reference to Risk
Data Aggregation & Risk Reporting issues;
— within the Chief Lending Office Department, the creation of a monitoring structure to identify significant increases of credit risk;

6 The corporate control functions also include the validation function as governed by the relevant provisions and the ICT and security risk control function as governed by Chapter 4, Section Il, Paragraph 4 of Bank of Italy
Circular No. 285/2013
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— within the Global Business Department, a reorganization of some structures in marketing and events management (corporate
and retail) areas, to improve their efficiency;

o inSeptember 2024 the update of internal regulations related to the appointment of the new Manager in charge of overseeing the preparation
of the company's accounting documents and the creation of a new structure dedicated to artificial intelligence within the ICT & Security
Office Department (CIO);

e in December 2024 the revision of the Regulatory Affairs & Resolution Unit structure to ensure greater oversight of interactions with

Authorities and the production of reports for the Corporate Bodies; this change will take effect on January 1, 2025.
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Group management system

The Parent Company FinecoBank is responsible for maximizing the long-term value of the Group as a whole, guaranteeing the unitary governance,
direction and control of the Group entities.

For this purpose, FinecoBank has defined rules for the governance of the FinecoBank Banking Group in order to fully exercise its role in managing
and coordinating the Group’, as well as outlining the Group's managerial/functional management system and disciplined the key processes between
the Parent Company and the entities of the Group.

The Parent Company ensures the coordination of the entities' activities with a managerial management system based on the concept of the
"competence lines", through the strong functional link between the Parent Company structure and the organizational structure of the entities (the
entity's homologous function).

The Competence Lines are represented by the structures/functions which, operating transversally between the Parent Company and the Group’
entities, have the objective of directing, coordinating and controlling the activities and risks of the Group as a whole and through the structures/functions
present locally of the entities. The Competence Lines operate in the following areas: Investor Relations, Finance and Treasury, Planning and Control,
Accounting & Regulatory reporting, Planning and Tax Affairs and Advisory (Chief Financial Officer area); Financial Statement (Manager in charge of
overseeing the preparation of the company's accounting documents), Risk Management (within the Chief Risk Officer area); Credit (within the Chief
Lending Officer); Legal/Corporate; Compliance; Anty-Money Laundering & Anticorruption; Internal Audit, Chief People Officer, Identity &
Communication, Organization/Business Continuity & Crisis Management/ICT/Data Governance/Security/Purchasing (Global Banking Services).

With the aim of achieving a strong functional and managerial connection at Group level, within the constraints set by applicable local laws and
regulations, the Competence Line Managers have a direct role and, in compliance with the responsibilities of the Corporate Bodies of the Entities,
specific powers of direction, support and control with reference to the corresponding functions of the entities, always in coordination with the Top
Management of the respective entity.

7 In accordance with Article 61 of Legislative Decree no. 385 of September 1st, 1993 (the "Italian Banking Law") and the Supervisory Instructions issued by the Bank of Italy.
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Business Continuity Plan (BCP)

At consolidated level, the Parent Company has issued guidelines on emergency and crisis management and business continuity management, which
envisage a decentralised model of emergency management, based on the plans of the individual companies which reflect their specific circumstances.

As required by the applicable regulations, the Parent Company has adopted a model that comprises organisational units dedicated to managing
Business Continuity and Crises, both in normal operating conditions and in emergency situations.

The Bank’s Business Continuity and Crisis Management framework includes i) the emergency and crises management plan (ECM Plan), ii) the
business continuity plan (BCP) — which are an integral part of the disaster recovery plan (DRP, which establishes the measures for the restoration of
applications and information technology systems affected by disasters) and of the cyber attack plan (which sets out the strategies for handling large
scale cyber attacks) — and iii) the management plan for pandemics (which reflects the experience gained during the health emergency caused by the
COVID-19 pandemic).

During 2024, the emergency and crisis management guidelines, in alignment with external reference regulations (EU Regulation 2022/2554 Digital
Operational Resilience Act - DORA), as well as the plans concerned, were duly updated in order to incorporate them and business developments, as
part of the annual update. The Bank has maintained remote working as the main emergency management measure under the BC Plan. These BC&CM
plans are subject to the usual annual reviews by the competent structures.

In line with the Group's governance guidelines and the evolution of the business, the Irish subsidiary Fineco Asset Management DAC has adopted its
own ECM, BC and DR plans; the measures adopted include remote working as an emergency solution in its business continuity plan.
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Cash and cash balances

Cash and cash balances amounted to € 1,962.9 million as at December 31st, 2024 (€2,266.6 million as at December 31st, 2023). The item consisted
mainly of the overnight deposit opened at the Bank of Italy, for a total amount of € 1,688 million, the liquidity deposited to the Bank of Italy, net of the
stock related to the minimum reserve requirement allocated for the current reporting period, which is represented in the item Loans and receivables
to banks, in the amount of € 0.9 million, as well as liquidity deposited on current accounts with credit institutions for the settlement of payment
transactions, for the settlement of securities transactions, for the management of Fineco AM's liquidity, for a total amount of € 274 million.

Financial assets held for trading

Financial assets held for trading totalled € 28.5 million and include financial instruments that meets the definition of held for trading, in particular:

e equities, amounted to € 22.1 million (€ 8.8 million as at December 31st, 2023), held in the Bank's portfolio as mainly used for the managerial
hedging of positions on derivative contracts on shares open in counterpart of the customers and, to a lesser extent, from the internalisation
activity and intended to be traded in the short term;

o the positive valuation of spot contracts for securities in the held for trading portfolio and currencies to be settled in time frames established
by market practices (‘regular way”) for € 1.2 million (€ 1.7 million as at December 31, 2023), which correspond to negative valuations
booked under “Financial liabilities held for trading”;

e the positive valuation of CFD derivatives, traded in counterpart of the customers, and derivative contracts settled or entered into with
institutional counterparties used for the related operational hedging of the above-mentioned derivative contracts and of the derivative
contracts Knock Out Options and Certificates issued, for a total amount of € 5.2 million (€ 3.6 million as at December 31st, 2023).

CFDs are "Over the counter" derivative contracts that require the payment of a spread generated by the difference between the opening and closing
price of the financial instrument. The Bank in operational terms hedges the imbalance of customer positions by underwriting futures or the
purchase/sale of equity securities on the same underlyings or through forex transactions with institutional.

Loans and receivables to banks

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at Changes

12/31/2024 12/31/2023 Amount %

Loans and receivables to central banks 283,355 269,082 14,273 5.3%
Loans and receivables to banks 87,378 107,291 (19,913) -18.6%
Time deposits 63,624 71,303 (7,679) -10.8%
Other loans: 23,754 35,988 (12,234) -34.0%
1. Reverse repos 292 397 (105) -26.4%

2. Others 23,462 35,591 (12,129) -34.1%
Total 370,733 376,373 (5,640) -1.5%

Loans and receivables to banks amounted to € 370.7 million, decreasing by € 5.6 million compared to December 31, 2023 and mainly consist of
the compulsory reserve at the Bank of Italy and deposits to banks.

“Loans and receivables to central banks” consist exclusively of the compulsory reserve deposit previously deposited in Bank of Italy which, as described
above, corresponds to the stock of the minimum reserve requirement allocated for the current reporting period.

The item "Other loans: 1. Reverse repos” include only stock lending transactions, which are securities lending transactions secured by amount of
money at the lender's full disposal and which are, in substance, equivalent to repurchase agreements on securities. The item does not include the
technical form of securities lending with collateral consisting of other securities or without collateral. These transactions are shown as “off-balance
sheet” transactions in table A.1.4 in Part E - Information on risks and related hedging policies - Section 2 - Risks of the prudential consolidation -
Quantitative information in the notes to the consolidated accounts.

The item “Other loans: 2. Others” consists of € 9.9 million for the amount of the initial margin, variations margins and collateral deposits for derivative
and other financial instrument transactions (€ 28.5 million as at December 31%!, 2023) and € 13.5 million for current receivables associated with the
provision of financial services (€ 7.1 million as at December 31st, 2023).
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Loans and receivables to customers

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amount as at Changes

12/31/2024 12/31/2023 Amount %
Current accounts 2,052,968 2,173,882 (120,914) -5.6%
Reverse repos 158,389 130,237 28,152 21.6%
Mortgages 2,311,534 2,500,015 (188,481) -1.5%
Credit cards and personal loans 874,292 857,653 16,639 1.9%
Other loans 838,460 536,754 301,706 56.2%
Total 6,235,643 6,198,541 37,102 0.6%

Loans and receivables to customers amounted to € 6,235.6 million, increase by € 37.1 million compared to December 31st, 2023 (0.6%, and can
be broken down as follows:

o credit facilities in current accounts of € 2,053.0 million, mainly with credit lines, that decreased by € 120.9 million compared to December
31t 2023, of which loans with a security collateral (in particular “Credit Lombard”) totalled to € 1,934 million;

e € 158.4 million in reverse repos, increasing by € 28.2 million compared to December 318!, 2023, mainly made by “Multiday leverage” with
retail customers and stock lending transactions with institutional customers, securities lending transactions guaranteed by sums of money
readily available to the lender and which are basically the equivalent of repos on securities, the amount of which is directly linked to the
transactions carried out by customers and outstanding at December 31st, 2024. Repo transactions carried out by the Parent Company
treasury on the Repo MTS market and settled through a Central Counterparty, subject to netting in the balance sheet as required by IAS
32, amounted to € 5.1 million (€ 3.3 million as at December 31st, 2023);

e €2,311.5 million in mortgages, down € 188.5 million compared to December 31st, 2023. Disbursements in 2024 amounted to € 63.3 million,
decreasing by 52.70% compared to 2023, also due to the rise in interest rates;
€ 874.3 million in credit cards (revolving and use) and personal loans, up by € 16.6 million;
€ 838.5 million in other loans, mainly made by loans granted to Cronos Vita Assicurazioni S.p.A., for a carrying amount of € 527.4 million,
collateral deposits and initial and variation margins for derivative and other financial instrument transactions, for an amount of € 155.6
million (€ 103.7 million as at December 31st, 2023), and current receivables associated with the provision of financial services, for an amount
of € 151.5 million (€ 136.3 million as at December 31st, 2023).

The item "Reverse repos" does not include the technical form of securities lending with collateral consisting of other securities or without collateral.
These transactions are shown as "off-balance sheet" transactions in table A.1.5 in Part E - Information on risks and related hedging policies - Section
2 - Risks of the prudential consolidation - Quantitative information in the notes to the consolidated accounts.
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The portfolio of loan and receivables to ordinary customers amounted to € 5,242.8 million and mainly consists of receivables for personal loans,
mortgages, credit facilities in current accounts and credit card revolving and use. The stocks as at 31 December 2024 showed a general decrease
compared to the end of the previous year, with the exception of credit card use and, in particular, balance credit cards.

(Amounts in € thousand)

Loans and Receivables to Customers (Management Reclassification) Amounts as at Changes

12/31/2024 12/31/2023 Amount %
Current accounts 2,051,186 2,171,981 (120,795) -5.6%
Credit cards use 408,444 354,091 54,353 15.4%
Mortgages 2,309,858 2,498,915 (189,057) -7.6%
Personal loans 465,273 502,827 (37,554) -1.5%
Other loans 3,966 3,810 156 4.1%
Performing loans 5,238,727 5,531,624 (292,897) -5.3%
Current accounts 1,781 1,901 (120) -6.3%
Mortgages 1,676 1,101 575 52.2%
Credit cards use 30 63 (33) -52.4%
Personal loans 545 672 (127) -18.9%
Other loans 10 22 (12) -54.5%
Impaired loans 4,042 3,759 283 7.5%
Loans receivable to ordinary customers 5,242,769 5,535,383 (292,614) -5.3%
Institutional customer loans 527,411 293,022 234,389 80.0%
Reverse repos 158,316 130,069 28,247 21.7%
Reverse repos - impaired 73 168 (95) -56.5%
Collateral deposits and initial and variation margins 155,553 103,593 51,960 50.2%
Current receivables associated with the provision of financial services 151,520 136,268 15,252 11.2%
Qurrgnt receivables associated with the provision of financial services - 1 38 (37) -97.4%
impaired
Current receivables and other receivables 992,874 663,158 329,716 49.7%
Loans and receivables to customers 6,235,643 6,198,541 37,102 0.6%

Institutional customer loans include, only, loans granted to Cronos Vita Assicurazioni S.p.A..

Impaired assets

(Amounts in € thousand)

Category Gross amount Impairment provision Net amount Coverage ratio*
Amount as at Amount as at Amount as at Data as at
12/31/2024 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 12/31/2023
Bad exposures 17,128 16,019 (16,335) (14,909) 793 1,110 95.4% 93.1%
Unlikely to pay 7,199 5,665 (5,210) (3,850) 1,989 1,815 72.4% 68.0%
Past-due loans 3,392 2,410 (2,058) (1,370) 1,334 1,040 60.7% 56.8%
Total 27,7119 24,094 (23,603) (20,129) 4,116 3,965 85.2% 83.5%

(*) Ratio of the data in the column Impairment Provision and Gross Amount
The amount of non-performing loans net of impairment losses was € 4.1 million, of which € 0.8 million in bad exposures, € 2.0 million in unlikely to pay

exposures and € 1.3 million in past-due loans. The impaired assets are the 0.08% of loan receivables to ordinary customers (0.07% as at December
31, 2023). The coverage ratio of impaired assets is equal to 85.2%.
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Financial investments

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at Changes

12/31/2024 12/31/2023 Amount %

zglzrg:is: :ns(faettsrﬁyt faati; aVi?I\l/Jz: l;fr;rough profit or loss c) other financial 5,620 7,010 (1,390) 19.8%
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 296,410 29,069 267,341 n.a.
Financial assets at amortised cost 23,121,743 21,365,295 1,756,448 8.2%
- financial assets at amortised cost to banks - debt securities 2,137,781 2,617,222 (479,441) -18.3%

- financial assets at amortised cost to customers - debt securities 20,983,962 18,748,073 2,235,889 11.9%
Investments in associates and joint ventures 1,674 1,652 22 1.3%
Total 23,425,447 21,403,026 2,022,421 9.4%

“Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss c) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value” mainly consist of the Visa INC preferred shares
(class “C” and “A”) for a total amount of € 4 million, as well as debt securities and UCITS units in the amount of € 1.5 million.

"Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income” consist of securities issued by sovereign States and supranational
issuers for an amount of € 296.4 million (€ 29.1 million as at December 31%, 2023) and residually of equity interests in companies in which the Group
does not exercise control or significant influence for € 57 thousand for which, upon first application of IFRS 9, the "FVTOCI"8 option was exercised.

The debt securities recorded in "Financial assets at amortised cost" issued by credit institutions or supranational organisations and government
agencies that fall under the definition of credit institutions, totalling € 2,137.8 million (€ 2,617.2 million as at December 31st, 2023) and bonds issued
by issuers other than credit institutions represented, mainly, by sovereign states, supranational issuers and local authorities, amounting to € 20,984.0
million (€ 18,748.1 million at 31 December 2023). It should be noted that the balance sheet value includes the negative valuation of fixed-rate securities
specifically hedged against interest rate risk.

The two main sovereign issuers to which the Group is exposed are the Italian State, whose securities account for 14.83% of balance sheet assets,
and the Spanish State, whose securities account for 13.17% of balance sheet assets. For more information on sovereign exposures, see the
Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements - Part E - Information on Risks and Related Hedging Policies - Information on Exposure to Securities
Issued by Sovereign States.

The liquidity raised by the Group is mainly used to purchase debt securities, recorded under ‘Financial assets measured at fair value with impact on
comprehensive income’ and ‘Financial assets measured at amortised cost’, in compliance with the Investment Plan prepared by the CFO Department,
which defines the size and main characteristics of the investment portfolio.

As of 31 December 2024, the investment portfolio of debt securities, whose book value totalled € 23,418.1 million, had a residual maturity of 4 years
and a duration of 2.5 years.

8 With regard to non-trading equity instruments, IFRS 9 provides for the possibility of measuring them at the fair value recognised through other comprehensive income (so-called FVTOCI - fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income).
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Hedging instruments

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at Changes
1213112024 12/31/2023 Amount %
Asset hedging derivatives - positive valuations 657,029 880,955 (223,926) -25.4%
Liability hedging derivatives - positive valuations 20,518 15,622 4,896 31.3%
Adjustment to the value of assets under macro-hedge (150,275) (189,303) 39,028 -20.6%
Total assets 527,272 707,274 (180,002) -25.5%
of which:
Positive valuations 652,649 859,675 (207,026) -24.1%
Accrued interest 24,898 36,902 (12,004) -32.5%
Adjustments to the value of hedged assets (150,275) (189,303) 39,028 -20.6%
Total assets 527,272 707,274 (180,002) -25.5%
Asset hedging derivatives - negative valuations 42,854 32,460 10,394 32.0%
Liability hedging derivatives - negative valuations 5,631 27,528 (21,897) -79.5%
Adjustment to the value of assets under macro-hedge (3,164) (31,276) 28,112 -89.9%
Total liabilities 45,321 28,712 16,609 57.8%
of which:
Negative valuations 43,400 56,226 (12,826) -22.8%
Accrued interest 5,085 3,762 1,323 35.2%
Adjustments to the value of hedged liabilities (3,164) (31,276) 28,112 -89.9%
Total liabilities 45,321 28,712 16,609 57.8%
(Amounts in € thousand)
Summary of hedging derivative valuations Assets Liabilities Difference
Valuation of hedging derivatives for assets and liabilities 652,649 43,400 609,249
Change in macro fair value hedged of assets/liabilities (150,275) (3,164) (147,111)
Change in micro fair value hedged of financial assets/liabilities (459,730) - (459,730)
Total 42,644 40,236 2,408

As at December 318!, 2024 the financial assets under macro-hedge consisted of mortgages to customers shown in “Financial assets at amortised
cost”, while the financial liabilities under macro-hedge consisted of direct deposits to customers shown in “Financial liabilities at amortised cost”.

The financial assets under micro-hedge are represented by securities issued by sovereign States recorded in "Financial assets at amortized cost".

Positive and negative valuations of hedging derivatives related solely to derivative contracts that the Bank has entered into to hedge against interest
rate risk inherent in the above-mentioned assets and liabilities, whose ineffectiveness of coverage amounted to € 2.4 million as at December 31st,
2024,

The negative change in asset hedging derivative contracts recognised in the year is mainly attributable to the reduction in fair value of existing
contracts.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are made by properties, electronic equipment, office furniture and fittings, plant and machinery, including any “usage
rights” determined in accordance with IFRS 16.

(Amounts in €

thousand)

Property, plant and equipment Balance Investments year g chg:lgeisYaer: A"r:;:'rﬁ:::' Yaena(: Balance
12/31/2023 2024 2024 2024 12/31/2024

Properties and lands 121,692 3,065 5,789 (12,308) 118,238
Opening balances - Electronic equipment 18,775 8,356 - (6,398) 20,733
Opening balances - Office furniture and fittings 2,79 1,245 Q)] (1,315) 2,723
Opening balances - Plant and machinery 3,236 2,507 (18) (1,123) 4,602
Opening balances - Total 146,497 15,173 5,770 (21,144) 146,296

It should be noted that the item “Properties and lands” includes the book value of € 62.7 million of the building and the land in which the Bank's
registered office is located, Milan, Piazza Durante 11, and the "right of use" relating to buildings and lands for an amount of € 55.5 million, determined
in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 16.

Investments in Properties and lands refer to the recognition of the right to use new financial shops and to capitalised improvement expenses, while
“other changes” refer to changes in lease payments due after initial recognition. On Investments in electronic equipment were made to guarantee the
ongoing update of the hardware used by all Group’s departments. Investments in office furniture and fittings and in plant and machinery are intended
for use in company offices and in financial shops.

Goodwill

The Goodwill recognised in the financial statements and amounting to of € 89.6 million derives from transactions carried out in the years from 2001
to 2008, involving acquisitions and mergers by absorption of business units and businesses engaged in trading operations or the distribution of
financial, banking and insurance products through the personal financial advisors (Fineco On Line Sim S.p.A., Trading and Banking business unit of
Banca della Rete, personal financial advisors business unit of the former FinecoGroup S.p.A., and UniCredit Xelion Banca S.p.A.).

These activities have been fully integrated with the Bank’s ordinary operations. As a result, it is no longer possible to isolate the contribution of each
company/business division from the Bank's overall income; this means that to establish the reasonableness of the value of goodwill recognised in the
financial statements it is necessary to take account of the Bank's comprehensive income. The cash generating unit (CGU) is therefore the Bank as a
whole, including the contribution from the subsidiary Fineco AM, through a vertically integrated business model.

In fact, in view of the specific business model adopted by the Group, which envisages a high level of integration between personal financial advisors
and the trading and banking platform, the allocation of costs/revenues to the macro areas of activity is not considered relevant or meaningful; the
personal financial advisors network is an integral part of the overall offer, along with banking, brokerage and investing services.

Impairment testing on goodwill, performed on December 31st, 2024, did not identify any impairment. For all other information on the impairment test
and relating sensitivity analysis, see Part B — Consolidated Balance Sheet in the notes to the consolidated accounts — Section 10 — Intangible assets
of notes to the consolidated accounts.
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Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets include Fineco's trademarks and domains, amounting to € 27.5 million, and software with long-term usefulness, necessary
to manage the evolution and the continuous offer by the Group of new and more versatile high-added-value services for customers, as well as
infrastructure and application optimizations, improvements to the architecture dedicated to application security and developments needed to meet
regulatory and financial reporting requirements, amounting to € 7.8 million.

It should be noted that Fineco Trademarks and Domains are intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and are subject to impairment test together

with Goodwill.
(Amounts in € thousand)
Intangibles assets Balance Investments Year ol Ch::ze:Yae':: "::;;'rsn:::{' Yael:: Balance
12/31/2023 2024 2024 2024 12/31/2024
Software 7,000 5,425 - (4,642) 7,783
Brands 27459 - - - 27,459
Other intangible assets 6 - - (6) -
Total 34,465 5,425 - (4,648) 35,242

Tax credits acquired

Tax credits acquired include the carrying amount of tax credits purchased under Decree-Law 34/2020 and subsequent updates, for a carrying amount
of € 1,259.1 million, down from € 1,618.0 million outstanding as of December 31st, 2023 mainly due to offsets made during 2024. It should be noted
that as at 31 December 2023, there were also tax credits acquired by FinecoBank on the secondary market which, subsequent to their acquisition,
were subject to preventive seizure under criminal law. In December 2024, the Bank reached a settlement agreement with the assigning counterparty
under which the parties agreed to cancel by mutual consent FinecoBank's acceptance of the aforementioned tax credits as well as additional tax
credits reported as not available by the same assigning counterparty. Pursuant to the agreement reached, the assigning counterparty returned to
FinecoBank the assignment fee paid by the Bank for these credits.

The item includes both tax credits acquired following assignment by direct beneficiaries and those acquired following assignment by previous
purchasers.
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Tax Assets and Other Assets

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at Changes
12/31/2024 12/31/2023 Amount %

Tax assets
Deferred tax assets 59,059 52,816 6,243 11.8%
Deferred tax assets pursuant to Law 214/2011 867 1,615 (748) -46.3%
Total before IAS 12 offsetting 59,926 54,431 5,495 10.1%
Offsetting with deferred tax liabilities - IAS 12 (6,676) (4,434) (2,242) 50.6%
Total Tax assets 53,250 49,997 3,253 6.5%
Other assets
Trade receivables according to IFRS15 7,746 8,049 (303) -3.8%
Current receivables not related with the provision of financial services 4,183 3,730 453 12.1%
Receivables due to disputed items not deriving from lending 129 129 - n.a.
Notes, cheques and other documents 3,890 4,594 (704) -15.3%
Improvement and incremental expenses incurred on leasehold assets 2,051 2,809 (758) -27.0%
Definitive items not recognised under other items 3,930 7,782 (3,852) -49.5%
Tax items other than those included in the item "Tax assets": 389,993 258,290 131,703 51.0%

- tax advances 387,052 254,217 132,835 52.3%

- tax credit 2,941 4,073 (1,132) -27.8%
Items in processing: 13,174 10,817 2,357 21.8%

- POS, Bancomat and Visa debit 13,154 10,813 2,341 21.7%

- others 20 4 16 na.
Items in transit not allocated to relevant accounts 5 - 5 na.
Accrued income and prepaid expenses other than those related to
contracts with customers and other than capitalised in related financial 22,531 26,042 (3,511) -13.5%
assets or liabilities
Securities and coupons to be settled 3,013 541 2,472 n.a.
Transactions to be charged to customers' credit cards 13,290 11,868 1,422 12.0%
Total other assets 554,858 411,236 143,622 34.9%

It should be noted that as of 31 December 2024 some items in the table above have been modified for a more explanatory presentation of the same.
For consistency of comparison, the comparative data for the 2023 financial year has been restated.

Tax assets, post IAS 12 offsetting, do not show any significant changes compared to December 31st, 2023. The difference is mainly due to the
allocation of approximately € 4 million of deferred tax assets relating to the Patent Box benefit. It should be noted that current and deferred “Tax
assets”, when the requirements of IAS 12 are met, are shown in the balance sheet offset against current and deferred “Tax liabilities”, respectively.

With regard to Other Assets, in particular it should be noted an increase in the item “Tax items other than those included in the item "Tax assets™, in
the amount of € 131,7 million, mainly determined by higher advances paid for the substitute tax on miscellaneous income and the increase of € 14.3
million in "Accrued income and prepaid expenses other than those related to contracts with customers and other than capitalised in related financial
assets or liabilities" is due higher prepaid expenses relating to fees paid to financial consultants considered incremental costs incurred to obtain
contracts with customers and greater accrued income relating to variable fees to be received upon achieving specific commercial objectives linked to
credit cards and debit cards.
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Deposits from banks

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at Changes

12/31/2024 12/31/2023 Amount %

Deposits from banks 850,600 866,978 (16,378) -1.9%
Current accounts and demand deposits 1,947 1,205 742 61.6%
Loans 184,414 50,786 133,628 263.1%
-Repos 184,414 50,786 133,628 263.1%
Lease liabilities 3,237 3,487 (250) -1.2%
Other liabilities 661,002 811,500 (150,498) -18.5%
Total 850,600 866,978 (16,378) -1.9%

Deposits from banks amounted to € 850,6 million and decreased by € 16,4 million compared to December 318!, 2023, mainly attributable to the
reduction in debts for variation margins received for trading in derivatives partially offset by greater securities lending operations guaranteed by sums
of money.

The item “Current accounts and demand deposits” increased by € 0,7 million.

The item “Loans - Repos” is represented only stock lending transactions with credit institutions, stock lending transactions guaranteed by sums of
money readily available to the lender and which are basically the equivalent of repos on securities. The amounts of stock lending operations in place
at the balance sheet date, which recorded an increase of € 133.6 million, vary depending on the requests to obtain securities on loan received from
counterparties. This item does not include the technical form of securities lending with collateral consisting of other securities or without collateral.
These transactions are shown under "off-balance sheet" transactions in table A.1.5 in Part E - Information on risks and related hedging policies -
Section 2 - Risks of the prudential consolidation - Quantitative information in the notes to the consolidated accounts.

The item "Lease liabilities" represents the financial debt corresponding to the present value of the payments due in the lease agreements stipulated
with credit institutions not paid at the reporting date, as required by IFRS 16.

The item “Other liabilities” mainly includes margin variations received for transactions in derivative contracts, the change in which, as previously
described, is a direct consequence of the closure of certain hedging derivative contracts and the reduction in fair value on hedging derivative contracts
in 2024.

Deposits from customers

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at Changes

12/31/2024 12/31/2023 Amount %

Current accounts and demand deposits 28,517,922 27,704,387 813,535 2.9%
Time deposits 1,115,411 695,275 420,136 60.4%
Loans 107,557 133,930 (26,373) -19.7%
- Repos 107,557 133,930 (26,373) -19.7%
Lease liabilities 54,935 57,895 (2,960) -5.1%
Other liabilities 193,089 166,102 26,987 16.2%
Deposits from customers 29,988,914 28,757,589 1,231,325 4.3%

Deposits from customers totalled € 29.988,9 million, up € 1.231,3 million compared to December 31st, 2023 as a result of the increase in direct
deposits from customers, both in current accounts and Fineco's "Cash Park" time deposit, represented in the item "Time deposits".
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The item “Loans - Repos” consist exclusively of “Short selling” transactions with retail customers and stock lending transactions with transactions
institutional customers, securities lending transactions guaranteed by sums of money readily available to the lender and which are basically the
equivalent of repos on securities, for an amount of € 107.6 million. The amounts of short selling and stock lending operations in place at the balance
sheet date, which recorded a reduction of € 26.4 million, vary depending on the requests to obtain securities on loan received from customers and
counterparties. This item does not include the technical form of securities lending with collateral consisting of other securities or without collateral.
These transactions are shown under "off-balance sheet" transactions in table A.1.5 in Part E - Information on risks and related hedging policies -
Section 2 - Risks of the prudential consolidation - Quantitative information in the notes to the consolidated accounts.

The item "Lease liabilities" represents the financial debt corresponding to the present value of the payments due in the lease agreements stipulated
with parties other than credit institutions not paid at the reporting date, as required by IFRS 16.

The item “Other liabilities” comprises current payables related to the provision of financial services, totalling € 64.4 million (€ 52.7 million as at
December 315, 2023), initial and variations margins for derivative and financial instrument transactions, which came to € 67.6 million (€ 52.8 million
as at December 318!, 2023) and other liabilities for rechargeable credit cards and bankers’ drafts, amounting to € 61.1 million (€ 60.7 million at
December 31st, 2023).

Debt securities in issue

Debt securities in issue amount to € 810,2 million (€ 809,3 million as at December 318!, 2023) and include exclusively the Senior Preferred instrument
issued by FinecoBank in October 2021, for a nominal amount of € 500 million, and in February 2023 for a nominal amount of € 300 million.

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial liabilities held for trading totalled € 8,1 million (€ 7,0 million as at December 31%t, 2023) and include financial instruments that meets the
definition of held for trading, in particular:

e technical overdrafts, amounting to € 1 million (€ 2.2 million as at December 31, 2023), used for the operational hedging of derivatives
positions on shares open with customers and intended to be traded in the short term;

o the negative valuation of spot contracts for securities in the held for trading portfolio and currencies to be settled in time frames established
by market practices ("regular way") for € 1 million (€ 1.4 million as at December 31, 2023), which correspond to negative valuations
booked under "Financial liabilities held for trading";

o the negative valuation of CFD derivative contracts, Knock Out Options and Certificates issued, traded in counterpart of the customers, as
well as regulated derivative contracts or contracts entered into with institutional counterparties for the purpose of hedging such derivative
contracts on a managerial basis, for an overall amount of € 6.1 million (€ 3.3 million as at December 31st, 2023).

CFDs are "Over the counter" derivative contracts that require the payment of a spread generated by the difference between the opening and closing
price of the financial instrument. The Bank in operational terms hedges the imbalance of customer positions by underwriting futures or the
purchase/sale of equity securities on the same underlyings or through forex transactions with institutional.
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Tax liabilities and Other liabilities

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at Changes
121312024 12/31/2023 Amount %
Tax liabilities
Current liabilities 19,519 86,706 (67,187) -17.5%
Deferred tax liabilities 6,675 4,434 2,241 50.5%
Total before IAS 12 offsetting 26,194 91,140 (64,946) -71.3%
Offset against deferred tax liabilities - IAS 12 (6,675) (4,434) (2,241) 50.5%
Total Tax liabilities 19,519 86,706 (67,187) -77.5%
Other liabilities
Payables to Directors and Statutory auditors 262 257 5 1.9%
Payables to employees 20,093 18,920 1,173 6.2%
Outgoing bank transfers 117,271 152,839 (35,568) -23.3%
Social security contributions payable 9,193 8,745 448 5.1%
Current payables not related with the provision of financial services 46,348 43,107 3,241 7.5%
Payables for share-based payments 81 - 81 n.a.
Payment authorisations to be settled 26,643 22,705 3,938 17.3%
Payment orders issued by customers and other transactions to be settled 7,268 7,585 (317) -4.2%
Definitive items not recognised under other items 6,395 7,269 (874) -12.0%
Tax items other than those included in the item "Tax liabilities": 120,542 71,993 48,549 67.4%
- sums withheld from third parties as withholding agent 78,300 39,741 38,559 97.0%
- other 42,242 32,252 9,990 31.0%
Iliquid items for portfolio transactions 8,389 1,500 6,889 n.a.
Items in processing: 3,552 2,785 767 27.5%
- incoming bank transfers 2,609 1,326 1,283 96.8%
- other items in processing 943 1,459 (516) -35.4%
POS and ATM transactions to be settled 27 27,169 (27,142) -99.9%
and ierhancapalis et nanglassets orlbites. 29 20 o 29%
1579
Sums available to be paid to customers 3,730 8,013 (4,283) -53.5%
Securities and coupons to be settled 18,735 28,128 (9,393) -33.4%
Credit card transactions to be settled with circuits - 784 (784) -100.0%
Provisions for employee severance pay 4,364 4,378 (14) -0.3%
Provisions for risks and charges 166,071 139,166 26,905 19.3%
Total Other liabilities 576,793 564,778 12,015 2.1%

It should be noted that as of 31 December 2024 some items in the table above have been modified for a more explanatory presentation of the same.
For consistency of comparison, the comparative data for the 2023 financial year has been restated.

The Tax liabilities, after IAS 12 offsetting, are represented exclusively by current tax liabilities, in the amount of € 19.5 million, which highlight a
substantial decrease mainly due to the higher IRES and IRAP advances paid in 2024 used to offset the debt for current taxes. It should be noted that
current and deferred “Tax liabilities”, when the requirements of IAS 12 are met, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet offset against current
and deferred “Tax assets”, respectively.

With regard to Other liabilities, we highlight, in particular, the increase in the item “Tax items other than those included in the item "Tax liabilities" for
ana amount of € 48.5 million due to greater sums withheld from third parties such as withholding taxes and stamp duty to be paid, and the reduction
of the item "Outgoing bank transfers", for an amount of € 35.6 million, as a result of fewer bank transfers arranged by customers awaiting settlement,
and of the item "POS, ATM and Visa Debit to be settled", for an amount of € 27.1 million, as the operations were settled by the end of 2024.
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The item “Provision for risks and charges”, that increased by € 26.9 million, consists of:

e Provisions for credit risk relating to commitments and financial guarantees for an amount of € 0.1 million (€ 0.3 million as at December 31,
2023);

e Provisions for risks and charges - Other provisions which include allowances for a total of € 166.0 million, for which, given a liability of
uncertain expiry date and/or amount, a current obligation was identified as a result of a past event and the amount arising from fulfilment
of said obligation could be estimated reliably.

The disbursements, with estimated maturity exceeding 18 months, were discounted to present value using a rate equal to the time value of money.

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at Changes

12/31/2024 12/31/2023 Amount %
Provision for_risks and charges for commitments and 56 304 (248) 81.6%
guarantees given
Legal and fiscal disputes 25,317 27,308 (1,991) -1.3%
- Pending cases 22,291 21,305 986 4.6%
- Complaints 2,436 2,512 (76) -3.0%
- Tax disputes 590 3,491 (2,901) -83.1%
Staff expenses 8,171 7,812 359 4.6%
Other 132,527 103,742 28,785 27.7%
- Supplementary customer indemnity provision 118,460 89,948 28,512 31.7%
- provision for contractual payments 238 220 18 8.2%
- Other provision 13,829 13,574 255 1.9%
Provision for risks and charges - Other provision 166,015 138,862 27,153 19.6%
Total provision for risks and charges 166,071 139,166 26,905 19.3%

The provision for "Legal and fiscal disputes" mainly includes accruals made against claims and disputes relating to damages caused to customers as
a result of unlawful conduct by the Bank's personal financial advisors, accruals relating to outstanding disputes with personal financial advisors
(generally labour disputes) and other ongoing judicial and extrajudicial disputes with customers, in relation to ordinary banking business, and other
parties, as well as accruals for tax disputes. With reference to the provision for tax disputes, it should be noted that during 2024, an amount of
approximately € 3.3 million was reallocated to the income statement, which had been recognised for penalties and interest related to a tax dispute for
which the ruling favorable to the Bank has become final or has become final.

The provision "Staff expenses", solely includes, the provisions made for the variable remuneration to be paid to employees in subsequent years, which
have an uncertain due date and/or amount.

With reference to the provision for "Other", it should be noted the increase in the item "Supplementary customer indemnity provision", attributable to
the actuarial valuation as at December 31st, 2024, which led to an increase of € 22.1 million, and to the net provisions (service cost and interest
expense) recognised during the year, amounting to € 8.2 million.
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Shareholders' equity

(Amounts in € thousand)
Amounts as at Changes

12/31/2024 12/31/2023 Amount %
Share capital 201,630 201,508 122 0.1%
Share premium reserve 1,934 1,934 - n.a.
Reserves 1,053,594 890,106 163,488 18.4%
(Treasury shares) (1,082) (1,243) 161 -13.0%
Revaluation reserves (19,049) (6,730) (12,319) 183.0%
Equity instruments 500,000 500,000 - n.a.
Net profit (Loss) for the year 652,285 609,101 43,184 7.1%
Total 2,389,312 2,194,676 194,636 8.9%

As at December 31, 2024, the share capital came to € 201.6 million, divided into 610,999,427 ordinary shares with a par value of € 0.33 each. Share
premium reserve amounts to € 1,9 million.

The reserves consisted of the:

e  Legal reserve, amounting to € 40.3 million;
e  Reserve for treasury shares held, amounting to € 1.1 million;
e  Other reserves, of which:

o Reserve related to equity-settled plans, amounting to € 51.5 million;
Consolidation reserve, amounting to € 39.3 million;
Reserves of unavailable profits pursuant to Article 6 paragraph 2 of Legislative Decree 38/2005, for an amount equal to € 2.7 million;
Non-distributable reserve pursuant to art. 26 paragraph 5-bis decree law 10 August 2023, n. 104, for an amount of € 30.5 million;
other profit reserves, amounting to € 888.2 million, of which € 86.4 million subject to a taxability restriction in the event of distribution,
allocated as a result of the tax realignment of goodwill provided for by Article 110 of Decree-Law 104 of 2020.

O O O O

The Board of Directors of FinecoBank of 6t February 2024, taking into account the positive result of the verification of the minimum access conditions
at Group level and individual ones (compliance of behavior and continuous employment), as well as the favorable opinion of the Remuneration
Committee meeting on 5 February 2024, approved the assignment of the share tranches envisaged for the 2024 financial year with reference to the
2018, 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 and the long-term incentive plans for the period 2018-2020 and for the period 2021-2023. A total of 367,792 FinecoBank
ordinary shares were issued and a free share capital increase was carried out for a total amount of € 0.1 million, effective from 28t March 2024.

As a result of the aforementioned capital increases, the available profit reserves were reduced, and in particular, the Reserve related to the
medium/long-term incentive plan for FinecoBank's personnel, established with the Extraordinary Reserve, was used. The Extraordinary Reserve was
also used to cover transaction costs directly attributable to the transactions.

The FinecoBank Shareholders' Meeting of April 241, 2024 approved the allocation of profit for the year 2023 of FinecoBank S.p.A. amounting to €
604,5 million, as follows:

o tothe 610,999,427 ordinary shares with a par value of € 0.33, constituting the share capital including 367,792 shares related to the capital
increase to support the employee incentive system approved by the Board of Directors on February 6, 2024, a unit dividend of € 0.69
totaling € 421.6 million;

e € 0.02 million thousand to the Legal reserve, corresponding to 0.004% of the profit for the year, having reached the limit of a fifth of the
share capital;

e € 30.5 million to the on-distributable reserve pursuant to Article 26, Section 5-bis of Decree-Law No. 104 of August 10t, 2023,
corresponding to the amount of the extraordinary tax determined pursuant to the aforementioned decree;

e € 0.5 million thousand to the reserve of unavailable pursuant to article 6 paragraph 2 of Legislative Decree 38/2005;

e € 151.9 million to the extraordinary reserves.

In addition, during 2024, the extraordinary reserve was reduced by an amount of:

e  €26.5 million, corresponding to coupons, net of related taxation, paid to holders of Additional Tier1 instruments issued by the Bank;

e €0.6 million, corresponding to the loss, net of related taxation, recognised following the partial repurchase for an amount of € 168 million
of the Additional Tier1 instrument issued in July 2019 for a total nominal value of €300 million;

e  €2.6 million, corresponding to the costs, net of taxes, associated with the issuance and repurchase of Additional Tier1 instruments carried
out in 2024;
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and increased by the portion of dividends not distributed in respect of treasury shares held by the Bank at the record date, amounting to € 0.06 million.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group, specifically the Parent Company FinecoBank, held 81,200 shares of FinecoBank, in relation to the incentive
plans for personal financial advisors of the Bank, corresponding to 0.01% of the share capital, for an amount of € 1.1 million. During 2024 n. 44,200
shares, for an amount of € 0.5 million, were purchased in relation to the 2023 PFA Incentive System for personal financial advisors identified as
“Identified Staff’ and n. 12,781, n. 19,004, n. 16,480, and n. 6,194 FinecoBank ordinary shares held in the portfolio were free assigned to personal
financial advisors respectively in execution to the 2020, 2021 and 2022 Incentive System and 2018-2020 Long Term Incentive Plan, held in portfolio
for an amount of € 0.7 million. Consequently, the Treasury shares reserve reduced by a total of € 0.2 million with a simultaneous increase in the
Extraordinary reserve.

The “Reserve related to Equity Settled plans” increased by € 6.5 million as a result of the recognition, during the vesting period of the instruments, of
the economic and equity effects, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard IFRS 2, of the share-based payment agreements and
settled with FinecoBank ordinary shares and was used for € 0.7 million following the allocation to the financial advisors of the share tranches, previously
mentioned, relating to the incentive system.

The Valuation reserve consist of:

e £-0,1 million from the net negative valuation reserve for debt securities issued by sovereign States and Supranational issuers accounted
for in “Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income”, which recorded a positive change of € 2.5 million compared to
December 31st, 2023, due to the fair value booked in the year change net of taxes;

e  €-18,9 million from the negative net reserve for defined benefit plans, which recorded a negative change of € 14.8 million compared to
December 31st, 2023, due to the recognition of actuarial losses net of taxes related to the provision for supplementary customer indemnity.

As previously described, on 4t March 2024 FinecoBank placed on the market an Additional Tier 1 instrument intended for institutional investors with
a nominal value of € 500 million. On 11t March 2024, the offer to purchase the Additional Tier 1 instrument issued in July 2019 with a nominal value
of €300 million was concluded and the total nominal amount of capital instruments validly tendered in the offer was € 168 million. On 37 June 2024,
the Additional Tier1 private placement issued in January 2018 with a nominal value of €200 million, fully subscribed by UniCredit S.p.A., was called.
Finally, on 31 December 2024, the option of full reimbursement of the Additional Tier 1 instrument, issued in July 2019, was exercised for the portion
not repurchased in the offer concluded on 11t March 2024, equal to € 132 million. The consolidated accounting net equity as of 31 December 2024,
therefore, exclusively includes the Additional Tier 1 capital instrument issued by FinecoBank on 4 March 2024 for a nominal value of € 500 million.
The capital instrument is a perpetual public placement, traded on the regulated market managed by Euronext Dublin, rating equal to BB- (S&P Global
Ratings). The coupon for the first 5.5 years was set at 7.5%.
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Reconciliation between Shareholders' equity and net profit/(loss) for the year of FinecoBank
and corresponding consolidated figures

(Amounts in € thousand)

Description Shareholders' Equity of which: Net Profit
12/31/2024 12/31/2024

FinecoBank balances 2,346,503 648,766

Effect of consolidation of Fineco AM 164,934 125,644

Dividends from Fineco AM cashed in the period (122,125) (122,125)

Shareholders' equity and profit attributable to minorities

Balances attributable to the Group 2,389,312 652,285
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Shareholders

As at December 318t, 2024, the fully subscribed and paid-up share capital totalled € 201,629,810.91, divided into 610,999,427 ordinary shares with a
nominal value of € 0.33.

As at December 31st, 2024, the major shareholders were:

Major Shareholders % owned
BlackRock Inc. 9.180%
Schroders PLC 5.051%
Wellington Management Group LLP 5.013%
FMRLLC 4.977%
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Financial margin
Financial margin stood at € 711.2 million, up 3.4% compared to the previous year thanks to the contribution of Net interest.

Net interest in 2024 amounted to € 710.5 million, up € 22.7 million on the previous year. It should be noted that a portion of loans and debt securities
held by FinecoBank are sensitive to changes in interest rates, also thanks to the entering in derivative contracts to hedge interest rate risk, which
provide for the collection of the variable rate and the payment of the fixed rate. The item Net interest also includes incomes generated by securities
lending activities carried out by the Parent Company's treasury, amounting to € 1.7 million (€ 4.0 million in 2023).

Profits from Treasury amounted to € 0.7 million and only included net gains generated from the sale of securities accounted for in "Financial assets
at amortised cost" (€ 0.2 million in 2023). The sales took place in accordance with IFRS9 and in application of the rules defined for the HTC business
model.

The following table provides a breakdown of interest income by the financial assets/liabilities that gave rise to it.

(Amounts in € thousand)

Interest Income Year Changes

2024 2023 Amount %
Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income 4,796 252 4,544 na.
Other financial assets mandatorily at fair value 3 5 (2) -40.0%
E;nnaknsmal assets at amortised cost - Debt securities issued by 18,973 50,678 (40,705) 68.2%
Financial assets at amortised cost - Debt securities issued by 237,382 229,684 7,698 3.4%
customers
E;nnaknsmal assets at amortised cost - Loans and receivables to 4,561 11,227 (6,666) -59.4%
Financial assets at amortised cost - Loans and receivables to 0
customers 202,196 183,612 18,584 10.1%
Hedging derivatives 226,048 211,861 14,187 6.7%
Other assets 136,005 81,912 54,093 66.0%
Financial liabilities 86 170 (84) -49.4%
Other financial margins from Treasury activities 1,736 3,960 (2,224) -56.2%
Total interest income 831,786 782,361 49,425 6.3%

Interest income on Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income recorded an increase of € 4.5 million compared to 2023, as a
result of the purchases of debt securities made by FinecoBank during the year, in compliance with the Investment Plan managed by the CFO
Department which defines the size and main characteristics of the investment portfolio.

Interest income on Financial assets at amortised cost - Debt securities issued by banks recorded a decrease of € 40.7 million (-68.2%), as a
result, mainly, of the reimbursement of securities that have reached maturity.

Interest income on Financial assets at amortised cost - Debt securities issued by customers mainly refer to interest accrued on States,
supranational issuers and local authorities securities. The increase (+3.4%) is mainly attributable to the purchases of debt securities made by Fineco
during the year, in compliance with the Investment Plan managed by the CFO Department which defines the size and main characteristics of the
investment portfolio.

Hedging Derivatives includes the positive and negative differentials of derivative contracts entered into to hedge interest rate risk on loans lent to
customers and debt securities accounted for in "Financial assets measured at amortized cost", which provide for payment of the fixed rate and the
collection of the indexed rate, and direct customer deposits accounted for in "Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost," which provide for
payment of the indexed rate and collection of the fixed rate. The positive change in differentials of € 14.2 million is mainly attributable to the trend in
market rates.

Interest income recognized on Other assets includes interest calculated using the effective interest method accrued on purchased tax credits in
the amount of € 38.6 million (€ 31.1 million in 2023) and accrued interest on demand receivables to banks and central banks recognised under "Cash
and cash equivalents” in the amount of € 97.4 million (€ 50.6 million in 2023). With reference to the interest accrued on tax credits, it should be noted
that the settlement agreement reached with a counterparty from which FinecoBank had purchased tax credits on the secondary market, previously
mentioned, resulted in the adjustment of interest recognized in previous years for approximately € 1.7 million.
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Other financial margins from treasury activities include income generated from securities lending activities carried out by the Parent Company
treasury.

With reference to interest on Financial Assets at amortized cost — Loans and receivables, a table detailing the composition by counterparty,
banks and customers, and technical form is given below:

(Amounts in € thousand)

Breakdown of interest income Year Changes

2024 2023 Amount %
Interest income on loans and receivables to banks 4,561 11,227 (6,666) -59.4%
- reverse repos 19 17 2 11.8%
- time deposit for compulsory reserves - 6,584 (6,584) -100.0%
- time deposits 4,081 3,898 183 4.7%
- other loans and cash collaterals 461 728 (267) -36.7%
Interest income on loans and receivables to customers 202,196 183,612 18,584 10.1%
- current accounts 88,608 90,215 (1,607) -1.8%
- reverse repos 19,376 17,271 2,105 12.2%
- mortgages 44577 43,907 670 1.5%
- credit cards 3,838 3,981 (143) -3.6%
- personal loans 23,721 22,378 1,343 6.0%
- other loans and cash collaterals 22,076 5,860 16,216 276.7%

Interest income on loans and receivables to banks amounted to € 4.6 million, decreasing by € 6.7 million compared to 2023, mainly due to the
zeroing of the rate of remuneration of the compulsory reserve deposit in force as from September 2023.

Interest income on loans and receivables to customers amounted to € 202.2 million, increasing by € 18.6 million compared to the previous year
(+10.1%), attributable, mainly, to the interest accrued on loans granted to Cronos Vita Assicurazioni S.p.A., represented in the item "other loans and
cash collateral", which recorded an increase of € 17.7 million. Please note that the disbursements of the aforementioned loans began in December
2023 and continued throughout the 2024 financial year.

The following table provides a breakdown of interest expense by the financial liabilities/assets that gave rise to it.

(Amounts in € thousand)

Interest Expenses Year Changes

2024 2023 Amount %
Financial liabilities at amortised cost - Deposits from banks (37,689) (42,742) 5,063 -11.8%
Financial liabilities at amortised cost - Deposits from customers (65,255) (35,456) (29,799) 84.0%
Debt securities in issue (17,338) (15,188) (2,150) 14.2%
Other liabilities Q)] - 1 n.a.
Financial assets (1,049) (1,227) 178 -14.5%
Total interest expenses (121,332) (94,613) (26,719) 28.2%
Net interest 710,454 687,748 22,706 3.3%
|Profits from Treasury | 708| 208 500 240.4%
|Financial margin | 711,162 687,956 23,206 3.4%

Interest expense on Debt securities in issue refers to the interest accrued on the Senior Preferred Bond issued by FinecoBank.

Interest Expense on Financial Assets of 2024 mainly refer to the negative interest recognised on certain securities owned.
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With regard to interest on financial liabilities at amortised cost, the table below provides a breakdown by counterparty, banks and customers, and
technical form:

(Amounts in € thousand)

Breakdown of interest expenses Year Changes

2024 2023 Amount %
Interest expenses on deposits from banks (37,689) (42,742) 5,053 -11.8%
- correspondent current accounts (35) (48) 13 -27.1%
- demand deposits and cash collaterals (30,663) (40,562) 9,899 -24.4%
- other current accounts (48) 9) (39) n.a.
- reverse repos (6,867) (2,042) (4,825) 236.3%
- lease liabilities (76) (81) 5 6.2%
Interest expenses on deposits from customers (65,255) (35,456) (29,799) 84.0%
- current accounts (21,742) (17,643) (4,099) 23.2%
- time deposits (39,427) (1,769) (37,658) n.a.
- reverse repos (2,541) (14,725) 12,184 -82.7%
- lease liabilities (1,545) (1,319) (226) 17.1%

Interest expenses on deposits from banks amounted to € 37.7 million, down compared to 2023 mainly due to lower interest expenses recognised
on cash collateral received for derivative transactions. The item "reverse repos" mainly includes interest relating to stock lending operations, the
volumes of which increased during 2024.

Interest expenses on deposits from customers amounted to € 65.3 million, showing an increase of € 29.8 million compared to the previous year,
mainly due to interest recorded on Cash Park time deposits, the subject of specific commercial initiatives carried out starting from the last months of
2023, partially offset by the reduction in interest recorded on funding transactions carried out by Parent Company treasury through repo transactions

on the MTS Repo Market.
Revenues
(Amounts in € thousand)
Year Changes
2024 2023 Amounts %
Financial margin 711,162 687,956 23,206 3.4%
Dividends and other income from equity investments 17 (68) 85 n.a.
Net commission 527,026 489,906 37,120 7.6%
Net trading, hedging and fair value income 79,043 60,402 18,641 30.9%
Net other expenses/income (773) (565) (208) 36.8%
REVENUES 1,316,475 1,237,631 78,844 6.4%

Dividends and other income from equity investments

Dividends and other income from equity investments include only the positive effect recognised in the income statement for the year 2024 following
the equity valuation of Vorvel SIM S.p.A., company subject to significant influence.
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Net commission

(Amounts in € thousand)

Management reclassification Year Changes

2024 2023 Amount %

Brokerage 116,121 105,930 10,191 9.6%
of which:

- Equities 87,392 73,813 13,579 18.4%

- Bonds 14,745 16,669 (1,924) -11.5%

- Derivatives 11,112 10,750 362 3.4%

- Other commissions 2,872 4,698 (1,826) -38.9%

Investing 369,474 329,833 39,641 12.0%
of which:

- Placement fees 6,272 3,374 2,898 85.9%

- Management fees 431,251 393,095 38,156 9.7%

- Other 3,441 4,250 (809) -19.0%

- Other to PFA (71,490) (70,886) (604) 0.9%

Banking 50,399 55,326 (4,927) -8.9%

Others (8,968) (1,183) (7,785) 658.1%

Total 527,026 489,906 37,120 7.6%

The table above shows net commissions broken down according to the three macro-areas of integrated activities into which the Group's offerings are
divided, as described above. Specifically, Banking includes current account services, payment services and the issuance of debit, credit and prepaid
cards, mortgages, overdrafts and personal loans; Brokerage, includes the service of executing orders on behalf of clients; Investing includes the asset
management activity performed by Fineco AM, placement and distribution services for third-party financial products, including mutual funds, open-
ended investment companies sub-funds, insurance and pension products, as well as investment advisory services.

Net commissions increased by € 37.1 million compared to the previous year, mainly thanks to fees and commissions generated by the Investing
segment (+€ 39.6 million), thanks to the increased contribution of Fineco AM and the growth in asset under management. In 2024, the subsidiary
Fineco AM generated net fees for €168.1 million (€ 151.4 million in 2023). In addition, it should be noted the growth in net commission generated by
the Brokerage segment (+ € 10.2 million), thanks to higher trading commissions, while net commissions related to Banking recorded a slight decrease
(- € 4.9 million), mainly due to the lower fees on current accounts, following the repricing of June 2023.

Net trading, hedging and fair value income amounted to € 79.0 million and shows an increase of € 18.6 million compared to the previous year. The
item mainly includes profits realised by the Brokerage segment, which includes internalisation of securities and regulated/OTC derivatives, financial
instruments used for operational hedging of securities and internalised derivative contracts and the exchange differences on assets and liabilities
denominated in currency. The item also includes the ineffectiveness component of hedging transactions, amounting to - € 2.2 million (- € 7.2 million in
2023), determined by the application of different curves for the fair value measurement of hedging derivatives and hedged items in fair value hedge
transactions. This result also includes the income components from financial instruments recognised under “Other financial assets mandatorily at fair
value”, which include the Visa INC Class “C” and “A” preferred shares, whose fair value measurement resulted in a positive result of € 0.9 million in
2024 (€ 1 million in 2023).

Net other expenses/income is negative for € 0.8 million.
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Operating costs

(Amounts in € thousand)

Year Changes
2024 2023 Amount %
Staff expenses (137,847) (126,867) (10,980) 8.7%
Other administrative expenses (370,018) (307,918) (62,100) 20.2%
Recovery of expenses 201,658 163,603 38,055 23.3%
Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets (25,791) (27,139) 1,348 -5.0%
Total operating costs (331,998) (298,321) (33,677) 11.3%

Operating costs increased by 11.3% compared to the previous year, partly determined by costs closely linked to business growth (assets, volumes,
customers and structure), certified by the cost/income ratio, which stood at 25.22% (24.10% at December 31, 2023).

Staff expenses amounted to € 137.8 million, of which € 13.4 million relating to staff expenses of Fineco AM, increasing by 8.7% compared to the
previous year, thanks to continuous growth of the operating structure. In fact, the number of employees rose from 1,384 resources as at December

31st, 2023 to 1,451 resources as at December 31st, 2024.

(Amounts in € thousand)

Staff expenses Year Changes
2024 2023 Amount %
1) Employees (135,264) (124,362) (10,902) 8.8%
- wages and salaries (91,863) (84,810) (7,053) 8.3%
- social security contributions (20,785) (20,556) (229) 1.1%
- provision for employee severance pay (886) (785) (101) 12.9%
- allocation to employee severance pay provision (164) (179) 15 -8.4%
- payment to supplementary external pension funds: (6,972) (6,046) (926) 15.3%
a) defined contribution (6,972) (6,046) (926) 15.3%
- costs related to share-based payments* (5,770) (4,780) (990) 20.7%
- other employee benefits (8,824) (7,206) (1,618) 22.5%
2) Directors and statutory auditors (2,596) (2,519) (77) 3.1%
3) Recoyery of expenses for employees seconded to other 13 14 () 74%
companies
Total staff expenses (137,847) (126,867) (10,980) 8.7%

With reference to the item "social security contributions", it is specified that in 2024 a positive effect was detected deriving from the presentation of a

refund request presented by FinecoBank with reference to social security contributions paid in excess during previous financial years.
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(Amounts in € thousand)

Other Administrative Expenses and Recovery of expenses Year Changes
2024 2023 Amount %
1) INDIRECT TAXES AND DUTIES (209,709) (171,026) (38,683) 22.6%

2) MISCELLANEOUS COSTS AND EXPENSES

A) Advertising expenses - Marketing and communication (42,969) (29,780) (13,189) 44.3%
Mass media communications (28,368) (20,931) (7,437) 35.5%
Marketing and promotions (8,325) (7,186) (1,139) 15.9%
Sponsorships (1,931) (427) (1,504) n.a.
Conventions and internal communications (4,345) (1,236) (3,109) 251.5%
B) Expenses related to credit risk (1,491) (1,612) 121 -1.5%
Credit recovery expenses (201) (419) 218 -52.0%
Commercial information and company searches (1,290) (1,193) (97) 8.1%
:i:r)‘;r:]ili:alt;tdﬁgzrsses related to personnel and to personal (5,925) (4,665) (1,260) 27.0%
Other staff expenses (1,856) (1,582) (274) 17.3%
Personal financial advisors expenses (4,069) (3,083) (986) 32.0%
D) ICT expenses (61,916) (57,556) (4,360) 7.6%
Lease of ICT equipment and software (1,856) (1,794) (62) 3.5%
Software expenses: lease and maintenance (16,433) (15,249) (1,184) 7.8%
L():(‘; ecr:)srzrsnumcatlon systems, messaging and phone (7.137) (6,285) (852) 13.6%
Consultancy and ICT services provided by third parties (19,114) (16,447) (2,667) 16.2%
Financial information providers (17,376) (17,781) 405 -2.3%
E) Consultancies and professional services (6,972) (5,390) (1,582) 29.4%
Consultancies and professional services (5,067) (4,280) (787) 18.4%
Legal expenses and disputes (1,112) (515) (597) 115.9%
Auditing company expenses (793) (595) (198) 33.3%
;)ela::J;Zittal.:Leé%a;l:;\zry and equipment expenses and (6,268) (5,954) (314) 5.3%
eRngi;lr:w er:? maintenance of furniture, machinery, and (494) (537) 43 8.0%
Maintenance and cleaning of premises (1,925) (1,618) (307) 19.0%
Premises rentals (738) (761) 23 -3.0%
Utilities and condominium expenses (3,111) (3,038) (73) 2.4%
G) Other functioning costs (33,498) (30,341) (3,157) 10.4%
Postage and transport of documents (3,811) (3,546) (265) 7.5%
Administrative, logistic and call center services (18,810) (16,258) (2,552) 15.7%
Insurance (4,240) (3,990) (250) 6.3%
Association dues and fees (4,599) (4,145) (454) 11.0%
Other administrative expenses (2,038) (2,402) 364 -15.2%
H) Adjustments of leasehold improvements (1,270) (1,594) 324 -20.3%
1) Recovery of costs 201,658 163,603 38,055 23.3%
Recovery of ancillary expenses 540 607 (67) -11.0%
Recovery of taxes 201,118 162,996 38,122 23.4%
l’:;allnit::r administrative expenses and recovery of (168,360) (144,315) (24,045) 16.7%

Other administrative expenses net of Recovery of expenses came to € 168.4 million, with an increase of € 24.0 million compared to the previous
year. In particular, the following should be noted:

o “ICT expenses” increased by € 4.4million, among which it is highlighted the increase in “Software expenses: lease and maintenance” for €
1.2 million, “Consultancy and ICT services provided by third parties” for € 2.7 million and in “ICT communication systems, messaging and
phone expenses” for € 0.9 million, functional expenses to the Group' operations;
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e  “Advertising expenses - Marketing and communication”, up by € 13.2 million due, in particular, to higher expenses for mass media
communications and conventions and internal communication expenses;

e “Other operating expenses” increased by € 3.2 million euros, due, in particular, to higher expenses for administrative services connected
to the management of payment cards and call center expenses.

The item "Indirect taxes and duties", net of "Tax recoveries", increased by € 0.6 million, mainly due to higher charges for Tobin tax.

Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets increased by € 1.3 million.

Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations

(Amounts in € thousand)

Year Changes

2024 2023 Amount %
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 984,477 939,310 45,167 4.8%
Net |mpa|rment losses on loans and provisions for guarantees and (2,088) (3,596) 1508 41.9%
commitments
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 982,389 935,714 46,675 5.0%
Other charges and provisions (44,873) (63,587) 18,714 -29.4%
Net income from investments 1,768 11 1,657 n.a.
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS 939,284 872,238 67,046 7.7%

Net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments in 2024 amounted to € -2.1 million (€ -3.6 million in 2023) and benefit
from reversals of impairment losses due to the improvement in the macroeconomic scenario for an amount of approximately € 1.4 million (+ € 0.4
million in 2023), determined on the basis of the evidence resulting from the IFRS9 impairment models.

Other charges and provisions amounted to € -44.9 million, down 29.4% compared to 2023. In addition to net allocations to the provision for risks
and charges for complaints and disputes and net allocations to the provision for supplementary customer indemnity, the item mainly includes the
annual contributions paid to the Interbank Deposit Protection Fund as part of the Deposit Guarantee Scheme (DGS), in the amount of € 35.3 million
(€ 35 million paid in the previous year). As of the financial year 2024, the item also includes the 2024 contribution to be paid to the Life Insurance
Guarantee Fund in the amount of € 1.2 million. It should be noted that in the 2023 financial year, the contribution paid to the Single Resolution Fund
under Directive 2014/59/EU was also recognised, in the amount of € 6.6 million, which was not required in the 2024 financial year, and the provision
for obligations arising from the cost rebalancing agreement that FinecoBank signed with the other distribution banks as part of the transaction aimed
at protecting Cronos policyholders.

Net income from investments amounted to € 1.8 million (€ 0.1 million in 2023) and benefited from write-backs deriving from changes in the
macroeconomic scenario for an amount of € 2.4 million (€ 0.3 million in 2023).

Profit (loss) before tax from continuing operations amounted to € 939.3 million, increasing by 7.7% on the on the previous year. The result was
achieved, mainly, thanks to the increase in Financial Margin (+ € 23.2 million), in Net commission (+ € 37.1 million) and in Net trading, hedging and
fair value income (€ 18.6 million), partially offset by higher Operating Cost (+ € 33.7 million), also benefited from lower Other charges and provisions
of € 18.7 million.
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Income tax for the year
(Amounts in € thousand)
Income tax for the year Year Changes
2024 2023 Amount %
Current IRES income tax charges (221,480) (205,252) (16,228) 7.9%
Current IRAP corporate tax charges (49,144) (46,540) (2,604) 5.6%
Current foreign corporate tax charges (22,360) (17,154) (5,206) 30.3%
Adjustment to current tax of prior years 2,791 - 2,791 n.a.
Total current tax (290,193) (268,946) (21,247) 7.9%
Change in deferred tax assets 4,040 6,673 (2,633) -39.5%
Change in deferred tax liabilities (846) (864) 18 -21%
Total deferred tax liabilities 3,194 5,809 (2,615) -45.0%
Income tax for the year (286,999) (263,137) (23,862) 9.1%

Income tax for the year were calculated according to the legal provisions introduced by Legislative Decree no. 38 of February 28!, 2005, which
incorporated the IAS/IFRS Accounting Standards into ltalian legislation, of Decree no. 48 of April 1st, 2009 which introduced provisions for the
implementation and coordination of tax requirements for IAS Adopter parties and subsequent provisions. In particular, in 2019 the decree issued by
the ltalian Ministry of the Economy and Finance on August 51, 2019, of coordination between international accounting standards and business income.

Current taxes were determined applying an IRES income tax rate of 27.5% (24% ordinary rate and 3.5% additional rate for banks) and an IRAP tax
rate of 5.57% in Italy. As regards Fineco AM, current income taxes were calculated at a rate of 12.5%, according to the currently applicable tax regime,
as well as the 2.5% surcharge introduced in Ireland to comply with the provisions of EU Directive 2022/2523 so-called Pillar II.

Net profit (loss) for the year and Net profit (loss) attributable to the Group

The Net profit for the year — which is the same as the net profit attributable to the Group as Fineco AM is 100% controlled by the Bank — amounted
to € 652.3 million, with an increase of 7.1% on the previous year.
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Consolidated Own funds and capital ratios

The Group's supervisory prudential requirements as at December 31st, 2024 have been determined based on the harmonised rules for banks and
investment firms contained in Directive 2013/36/EU (CRD IV) and Regulation (EU) 575/2013 (CRR) of 26 June 2013 and subsequent Directives and
Regulations amending the content thereof, which transpose into the European Union the standards defined by the Basel Committee on Banking
Supervision, collected and implemented by the Bank of Italy through Circular no. 285 of 17 December 2013 ‘Supervisory Provisions for Banks’ and
subsequent updates.

As at December 318!, 2024, the Group's Own Funds amounted to € 1,811.9 million, including the profit for the 2024 financial year of € 652.3 million,
net of dividends to be distributed totalling € 452.6 million, which the Board of Directors will propose for approval at the Shareholders' Meeting convened
for 29 April 2025, and foreseeable charges of € 8.2 million, represented by the accrued coupons, net of the related taxation, accrued on the Additional
Tier 1 financial instruments issued by FinecoBank.

At the end of 2024, the Risk-Weighted Assets increased compared to the previous year, mainly due to the increase in operational risks, as a result of
the update of the Relevant Indicator - with the inclusion of the 2024 financial year's earnings and the exclusion of the 2021 financial year's earnings.

As at 31 December 2024, the Ratio - Primary Tier 1 Capital stood at 25.91%, up from 24.34% as at 31 December 2023 due to the portion of profit for
the year included in Primary Tier 1 Capital, which more than offset the increase in Risk Weighted Assets. The Ratio - Tier 1 Capital and the Ratio -
Total Own Funds also benefited from this effect, standing at 35.78%.

With reference to the capital requirements applicable to the FinecoBank Group, it should be noted that, at the end of the Supervisory Review and
Evaluation Process (SREP), on 30 November 2023 the Supervisory Authority communicated the following capital requirements (Pillar 2 Requirement
- P2R) applicable to the Group from 1 January 2024: 2.00% in terms of Total Capital Ratio, of which 1.13% in terms of Common Equity Tier 1 ratio
and 1.50% in terms of Tier 1 Ratio. In this context, it should be noted that the Pillar 2 Capital Requirements (Pillar 2 Requirement) required of the
FinecoBank Group as of 18t January 2025 remain unchanged from those required for 2024.

Below is a summary of the capital requirements and reserves applicable to the FinecoBank Group, which also highlights the “Total SREP Capital
Requirement” (TSCR) and the “Overall Capital Requirement” (OCR) requirements as a result of the outcomes of the SREP conducted in 2023 and
applicable for 2024 mentioned above.

Requirements CET1 ™ TOTAL CAPITAL
A) Pillar 1 requirements 4.50% 6.00% 8.00%
B) Pillar 2 requirements 1.13% 1.50% 2.00%
C) TSCR (A+B) 5.63% 7.50% 10.00%
D) Combined Buffer requirement, of which: 2.88% 2.88% 2.88%
1. Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB) 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%
2. Institution-specific Countercyclical Capital Buffer (CCyB) 0.13% 0.13% 0.13%
3. systemic risk buffer for FinecoBank (SyRB) 0.26% 0.26% 0.26%
E) Overall Capital Requirement (C+D) 8.51% 10.38% 12.88%

As at December 31st, 2024, Group ratios are compliant with all the above requirements.

As at December 315, 2024, the Leverage ratio stands at 5.22%, a level well above the applicable regulatory requirement of 3% and up from 4.95% as
at December 315t 2023, thanks to the reduction in exposures, and in particular to the reduction in balance sheet assets due to the increase in Tier 1
capital, driven by the portion of profit for the year included in Primary Tier 1 capital, which more than offset the growth in exposures, and in particular
in assets, mainly due to the increase in customer’s direct deposits.

With reference to the Minimum Own Funds and Eligible Liabilities Requirement (MREL), it should be noted that at the end of November 2024,
FinecoBank received the updated decision on the determination of the Minimum Own Funds and Eligible Liabilities Requirement (MREL) from the
Single Resolution Board, which replaces the previous decision communicated to the public in December 2023. As of the date of notification, November
2024, FinecoBank must comply on a consolidated basis with an MREL TREA (risk exposure) requirement of 19.01% - to which the applicable
Combined Buffer Requirement must be added - and an MREL LRE (total leverage exposure) requirement confirmed at 5.25%. For the purpose of
compliance with the requirement and the calculation of other eligible liabilities issued by Fineco, there is no subordination requirement in the issuance
of MREL eligible instruments (e.g. Senior unsecured). As of 31 December 2024, FinecoBank is well above the requirements to be met.

With regard to the initiatives put in place in 2020, which are still in force, mention should also be made of Regulation (EU) 2020/873 ("CRR CRR
‘Quick-fix’) of the EU Parliament and of the Council published on 26 June 2020 amending Regulation (EU) 575/2013 (‘CRR’) and Regulation (EU)
876/2019 (‘CRR II'), which made a number of adjustments to the prudential framework in light of the COVID-19 health emergency, allowing credit
institutions to apply specific transitional provisions, with the aim of providing capital support to enable credit institutions to continue to support the real
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economy in the context of the COVID-19 pandemic. The aforementioned Regulation also brought forward the application of certain measures contained
in CRR II, which are therefore valid until the latter enters into force on 28 June 2021. Among the main measures still in force is the extension until 31
December 2024 of the transitional regime that allows the potential impact on CET1 resulting from the increase in provisions for expected credit losses
calculated according to the IFRS 9 impairment model to be reduced through the gradual inclusion in CET1 (‘Temporary treatment to mitigate the
impact of the introduction of IFRS 9 on own funds’). Banks that had previously decided to make use or not to make use of the transitional arrangements
may revoke their decision at any time during the new transitional period. As at 31 December 2024, the Group has not made use of the option to apply
the transitional treatment.

Lastly, it should be noted that on 19 June 2024, Regulation (EU) 2024/1623 (also known as CRR 3) was published in the Official Journal of the
European Union, amending Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 with regard to the requirements for credit risk, credit assessment adjustment risk,
operational risk, market risk and the output floor. As of 9 July 2024, the aforementioned Regulation introduced an additional transitional measure,
applicable until 31 December 2025, aimed at mitigating the impact of unrealised gains and losses accumulated as of 31 December 2019 on exposures
to central governments, regional governments or local authorities measured at fair value recognised in other comprehensive income. As at 31
December 2024, the Group did not make use of the option to apply the temporary treatment. The remaining changes introduced by the new regulatory
framework that will impact FinecoBank's prudential requirements are applicable from 1 January 2025.

For further details on the composition of own funds, changes during the period with reference to Risk-weighted Assets and Exposure for leverage
purposes, please refer to the information contained in the document "Public disclosure of the FinecoBank Group - Pillar Il as at 31 December 2024"
published on the Company's website (https://about.finecobank.com).
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The parent: FinecoBank S.p.A.

The key figures, the reclassified Balance sheet and Income statement of FinecoBank S.p.A. at individual level in comparison with those of the 2023
financial year and a report on the results achieved are shown below.

Key figures

Operating structure

Data as at

12/31/2024 12/31/2023
No. Employees 1,368 1,311
No. Personal financial advisors 3,002 2,962
No. Financial shops ' 438 428

(1) Number of operating financial shops: financial shops managed by the Bank and financial shops managed by personal financial advisors (Fineco Centers).

Main balance sheet figures
(Amounts in € thousand)
Amounts as at Changes

12/31/2024 12/31/2023 Amounts %
Loans receivable with ordinary customers 5,242,769 5,535,383 (292,614) -5.3%
Total assets 34,616,797 33,251,116 1,365,681 4.1%
Direct deposits @ 29,668,225 28,441,830 1,226,395 4.3%
Indirect TFA @ 111,097,547 94,114,670 16,982,877 18.0%
Total customers sales (direct and indirect) 140,765,772 122,556,500 18,209,272 14.9%
Shareholders' equity 2,346,503 2,155,387 191,116 8.9%

(1) Loans receivable to ordinary customers refer solely to loans granted to customers (current account overdrafts, credit cards, personal loans, mortgages and unsecured loans);
(2) Direct deposits include overdrawn current accounts and Cash Park deposits;
(3) Assets under administration consist of products placed online or through the sales networks of FinecoBank.
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Balance Sheet indicators

Data as at
12/31/2024 12/31/2023
Loans receivable to ordinary customers/Total assets 15.15% 16.65%
Loans and receivables to banks/Total assets 1.03% 1.06%
Financial assets/Total assets 67.68% 64.37%
Direct sales/Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 85.71% 85.54%
Shareholders' equity (including profit)/Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 6.78% 6.48%
Ordinary customer loans/Direct deposits 17.67% 19.46%
Credit quality Data as at
12/31/2024 12/31/2023
Non-performing loans/Loans receivable to ordinary customers 0.08% 0.07%
Bad loans/Loans receivable to ordinary customers 0.02% 0.02%
Coverage ratio' - Bad loans 95.37% 93.07%
Coverage ratio® - Unlikely to pay 72.37% 67.96%
Coverage ratio’ - Impaired past-due exposures 60.67% 56.85%
Coverage ratio" - Total Non-performing loans 85.15% 83.54%

(1) Calculated as the ratio between the amount of impairment provision and gross exposure.
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Condensed Accounts
Balance sheet

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at Changes
ASSETS 12/31/2024 12/31/2023 Amounts %
Cash and cash balances 1,933,381 2,249,361 (315,980) -14.0%
Financial assets held for trading 28,539 14,109 14,430 102.3%
Loans and receivables to banks 355,522 351,272 4,250 1.2%
Loans and receivables to customers 6,208,047 6,175,952 32,095 0.5%
Financial investments 23,426,909 21,405,097 2,021,812 9.4%
Hedging instruments 527,272 707,274 (180,002) -25.5%
Property, plant and equipment 145,013 144,768 245 0.2%
Goodwill 89,602 89,602 - n.a.
Other intangible assets 35,242 34,465 77 2.3%
Tax assets 52,879 49,749 3,130 6.3%
Tax credits acquired 1,259,059 1,618,030 (358,971) -22.2%
Other assets 555,332 411,437 143,895 35.0%
Total assets 34,616,797 33,251,116 1,365,681 4.1%

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at Changes
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12/31/2024 12/31/2023 Amounts %
Deposits from banks 850,600 866,978 (16,378) -1.9%
Deposits from customers 29,976,099 28,744,000 1,232,099 4.3%
Debt securities in issue 810,228 809,264 964 0.1%
Financial liabilities held for trading 8,130 6,997 1,133 16.2%
Hedging instruments 45,321 28,712 16,609 57.8%
Tax liabilities 15,159 85,560 (70,401) -82.3%
Other liabilities 564,757 554,218 10,539 1.9%
Shareholders' equity 2,346,503 2,155,387 191,116 8.9%
- capital and reserves 1,716,786 1,657,619 159,167 10.2%
- revaluation reserves (19,049) (6,730) (12,319) 183.0%
- net profit 648,766 604,498 44,268 7.3%
Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 34,616,797 33,251,116 1,365,681 41%
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Balance sheet - Quarterly data

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at
ASSETS 12/31/2024 09/30/2024 06/30/2024 03/31/2024 12/31/2023
Cash and cash balances 1,933,381 2,817,944 2,804,953 3,374,544 2,249,361
Financial assets held for trading 28,539 21,365 21,214 19,456 14,109
Loans and receivables to banks 355,522 368,932 347,998 357,604 351,272
Loans and receivables to customers 6,208,047 6,028,870 6,095,558 6,072,891 6,175,952
Financial investments 23,426,909 21,511,250 20,731,329 20,408,744 21,405,097
Hedging instruments 527,272 562,503 737,713 704,784 707,274
Property, plant and equipment 145,013 140,236 141,320 141,127 144,768
Goodwill 89,602 89,602 89,602 89,602 89,602
Other intangible assets 35,242 33,306 33,515 34,159 34,465
Tax assets 52,879 49,189 49,192 50,568 49,749
Tax credits acquired 1,259,059 1,317,226 1,298,821 1,622,329 1,618,030
Other assets 555,332 347,160 341,207 291,679 411,437
Total assets 34,616,797 33,287,583 32,692,422 33,167,487 33,251,116

(Amounts in € thousand)

Amounts as at

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12/31/2024 09/30/2024 06/30/2024 03/31/2024 12/31/2023
Deposits from banks 850,600 925,420 1,171,776 1,032,627 866,978
Deposits from customers 29,976,099 28,566,267 27,992,745 28,056,008 28,744,000
Debt securities in issue 810,228 808,368 804,009 799,699 809,264
Financial liabilities held for trading 8,130 14,599 9,722 10,033 6,997
Hedging instruments 45,321 38,733 (1,366) 6,398 28,712
Tax liabilities 15,159 93,984 31,647 141,807 85,560
Other liabilities 564,757 563,364 535,365 519,936 554,218
Shareholders' equity 2,346,503 2,276,848 2,148,524 2,600,979 2,155,387
- capital and reserves 1,716,786 1,849,770 1,861,667 2,489,865 1,557,619
- revaluation reserves (19,049) (5,112) (6,616) (6,564) (6,730)
- net profit 648,766 432,190 293,473 117,678 604,498
Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 34,616,797 33,287,583 32,692,422 33,167,487 33,251,116

Cash and cash balances, amounted to € 1,933.4 million down by € 316.0 million compared to December 31%t, 2023 (€ 2,249.4 million). The item
consisted mainly from the overnight deposit opened at the Bank of Italy, in the total amount of € 1,688 million, in addition to the liquidity deposited with
the Bank of Italy net of the stock related to the minimum reserve requirement allocated for the current reporting period, which is represented in the
item Loans and receivables to banks, in the amount of € 0.9 million, as well as liquidity deposited on current accounts with credit institutions for the
settliement of payment transactions and for the settlement of securities transactions, for a total amount of € 244.5 million.

Loans and receivables to banks, came to € 355.5 million, showing an increase of € 4.3 million compared to December 31st, 2023.

Loans and receivables to customers came to € 6,208.0 million, showing an increase of € 32.1 million compared to December 31st, 2023. During
2024 additional € 229.9 million were granted to Cronos Vita Assicurazioni S.p.A., while mortgages, personal loans and current account overdrafts
showed a general reduction in terms of stocks compared to 31 December 2023. Impaired loans net of impairment losses totalled € 4.1 million (€3.5
million as at December 31st, 2023), with a coverage ratio of 83.5%; the ratio of the amount of impaired loans to the amount of loans to ordinary
customers was 0.08% (0.07% as at 31 December 2023).
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Financial investments came to € 23,426.9 million, up € 2,021.8 million compared to December 31st, 2023 mainly due to purchase of debt securities
measured at amortised cost during the year. It should be noted that this item also includes the net negative valuation of fixed-rate securities specifically
hedged against interest rate risk, in the amount of € 640 million (€ 641 million at 31 December 2023).

Hedges recognised as assets in the balance sheet amounted to € 527.3 million and include the positive fair value valuation of hedging derivatives
and the value adjustment of assets subject to generic hedging, represented by fixed-rate mortgages. Hedges recognised as liabilities in the balance
sheet amounted to € 28.7 million and include the negative fair value measurement of hedging derivatives and the value adjustment of liabilities subject
to generic hedging, represented by direct funding from customers. The negative change in fair value of hedging derivative contracts recognised during
the year is mainly attributable to the reduction in fair value of existing contracts. As a result, the valuation of the hedged items evolved in the opposite
direction, recording a positive change. It should be noted that the negative valuation recorded by securities specifically hedged, is shown in Other
Financial investments item, as described above.

Tax credits acquired came to € 1,259.1 million and include the carrying amount of tax credits purchased under Decree-Law 34/2020 and subsequent
amendments, down from € 1,618.0 million outstanding as at December 31, 2023, mainly due to offsets made during the year. It should be noted that
as at 31 December 2023, there were tax credits acquired by FinecoBank on the secondary market which, subsequent to their acquisition, were subject
to preventive seizure under criminal law. In December 2024, the Bank reached a settlement agreement with the assigning counterparty under which
the parties agreed to cancel by mutual consent FinecoBank's acceptance of the aforementioned tax credits as well as additional tax credits reported
as not available by the same assigning counterparty. By virtue of the agreement reached, the assigning counterparty returned to FinecoBank the
consideration for the assignment of such credits paid by the Bank.

Deposits from banks totaled € 850.6 million, down € 16.4 million compared to December 31st, 2023. During 2024, liabilities for variation margins
received mainly for derivative transactions decreased by € 150.8 million, due to the negative fair value change recorded by hedging derivative
contracts, while the amount of stock lending transactions, securities lending transactions secured by sums of money that fall within the lender's full
economic availability, increased by € 133.6 million. The amounts of stock lending transactions outstanding at the balance sheet date varied according
to the requests for securities lending received from counterparties.

Deposits from customers came to € 29,976.1 million, up € 1,232.1 million compared to December 31st, 2023, due to the increase in direct deposits
on current accounts from customers.

Debt securities in issue, amounting to € 810.2 million, exclusively include the Senior Preferred Bonds issued by FinecoBank. No new securities
were issued during 2024.

Shareholders' equity amounted to € 2,346.5 million, up € 191.1 million compared to December 31st, 2023, mainly thanks to the profit for 2024
amounting to € 648.8 million, which more than offset the main reductions recognised in the year, due to the distribution of dividends resolved by the
Shareholders' Meeting of April 24%, 2024, in the amount of € 421.6 million, and the payment of coupons on Additional Tier1 instruments issued by
FinecoBank, the amount of which, net of the related taxation, resulted in a reduction in Shareholders' equity of € 26.5 million.
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Income Statement

(Amounts in € thousand)

Year Changes

2024 2023 Amounts %
Financial margin 709,584 686,697 22,887 3.3%
of which Net interest 708,876 686,489 22,387 3.3%
of which Profits from Treasury 708 208 500 240.4%
Dividends and other income from equity investments 122,142 113,625 8,517 7.5%
Net commission 355,541 334,236 21,305 6.4%
Net trading, hedging and fair value income 78,960 60,350 18,610 30.8%
Net other expenses/income 1,503 504 999 198.2%
REVENUES 1,267,730 1,195,412 72,318 6.1%
Staff expenses (124,481) (115,310) (9,171) 8.0%
Other administrative expenses (360,938) (299,516) (61,422) 20.5%
Recovery of expenses 201,658 163,603 38,055 23.3%
Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets (25,232) (26,501) 1,269 -4.8%
Operating costs (308,993) (277,724) (31,269) 11.3%
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 958,737 917,688 41,049 4.5%
Ic\l;:] Lnnwi?;mtsent losses on loans and provisions for guarantees and (2.104) (3,594) 1490 415%
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 956,633 914,094 42,539 4.7%
Other charges and provisions (44,873) (63,587) 18,714 -29.4%
Net income from investments 1,768 11 1,657 na.
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 913,528 850,618 62,910 7.4%
Income tax for the year (264,762) (246,120) (18,642) 7.6%
NET PROFIT (LOSS) AFTER TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 648,766 604,498 44,268 7.3%
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 648,766 604,498 44,268 7.3%
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Income Statement - Quarterly data

(Amounts in € thousand)

2024

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
Financial margin 180,527 182,145 177,094 169,818
of which Net interest 178,768 182,145 178,053 169,910
of which Profits from Treasury 1,759 - (959) (92)
Dividends and other income from equity investments (7) 32,648 1 89,500
Net commission 88,244 87,450 87,789 92,058
Net trading, hedging and fair value income 17,451 20,246 18,317 22,946
Net other expenses/income 516 303 287 397
REVENUES 286,731 322,792 283,488 374,719
Staff expenses (29,912) (30,543) (31,526) (32,500)
Other administrative expenses (85,137) (88,575) (87,709) (99,517)
Recovery of expenses 47818 49,692 52,529 51,619
Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets (6,263) (6,075) (6,298) (6,596)
Operating costs (73,494) (75,501) (73,004) (86,994)
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 213,237 247,291 210,484 287,725
Eoer; m?:]zmznt losses on loans and provisions for guarantees and 272) (1431) (985) 584
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 212,965 245,860 209,499 288,309
Other charges and provisions (38,110) 457 (3,539) (3,681)
Net income from investments 399 582 817 (30)
z‘;g;%‘b%?) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING 175,254 246,899 206,777 284,598
Income tax for the period (57,576) (71,104) (68,060) (68,022)
gﬁ;:l:%g; s(LOSS) AFTER TAX FROM CONTINUING 117,678 175,795 138,717 216,576
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 117,678 175,795 138,717 216,576
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(Amounts in € thousand)

2023

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
Financial margin 157,385 170,613 179,759 178,940
of which Net interest 157,385 170,531 179,622 178,951
of which Profits from Treasury - 82 137 (11)
Dividends and other income from equity investments - 29,571 (28) 84,082
Net commission 84,950 83,677 80,941 84,668
Net trading, hedging and fair value income 15,123 14,952 16,268 14,007
Net other expenses/income 465 236 (185) (12)
REVENUES 257,923 299,049 276,755 361,685
Staff expenses (27,114) (27,853) (28,114) (32,229)
Other administrative expenses (72,044) (70,857) (74,920) (81,695)
Recovery of expenses 37,625 38,832 43,366 43,780
Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets (6,412) (6,491) (6,733) (6,865)
Operating costs (67,945) (66,369) (66,401) (77,009)
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 189,978 232,680 210,354 284,676
Net impairment losses on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments (643) (1,438) 91 (1,604)
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 189,335 231,242 210,445 283,072
Other charges and provisions (9,269) (2,737) (39,974) (11,607)
Net income from investments (723) 142 692 -
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 179,343 228,647 171,163 271,465
Income tax for the period (58,584) (66,069) (55,886) (65,581)
NET PROFIT (LOSS) AFTER TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 120,759 162,578 115,277 205,884
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 120,759 162,578 115,277 205,884

Revenues amounted to € 1,267.7 million, registering a 6.1% increase compared to the € 1,195.4 million recorded in 2023, mainly thanks to the positive
contribution of all its items.

Financial margin shows an increase of 3.3% compared to 2023 (+€ 22.9 million), thanks to contribution of Net interests, that increased by 3.3%
compared to 2023 (+ € 22.4 million). Profits from Treasury increased by € 0.5 million compared to the year 2023.

Dividends and other income from equity investments only include the dividend received from Fineco AM, amounting to € 122.1 million (€ 113.6
million in 2023), showing an increase of 7.5%.

Net commission increased by € 21.3 million compared to the previous year, mainly attributable to commissions generated by Investing segment (+
€ 23.8 million) and by Brokerage segment (+ € 10.2 million).

Net trading, hedging and fair value income amounted to € 79.0 million and show a reduction of € 18.6 million compared to the previous year. This
item mainly consists of profits realised by the Brokerage segment, which includes internalisation of securities and regulated/OTC derivatives, financial
instruments used for operational hedging of securities and internalised derivatives and the exchange differences on assets and liabilities denominated
in currency. The item also includes the ineffectiveness component of hedging transactions, in the amount of - € 2.2 million (-€ 7.2 million in 2023),
determined by the application of different curves for the fair value valuation of derivative contracts hedging interest rate risk and hedged items as part
of fair value hedge transactions. The result also includes the income components generated by the financial instruments accounted for in "Other
financial assets mandatory at fair value", including the preferred shares of Visa INC Class "C" and “A”, whose fair value measurement resulted in a
positive result of € 0.9 million in the 2024 (+ € 1 million in 2023).

Net other expense/ income was positive for € 1.5 million.

Operating costs increased by € 31.3 million compared to the previous year (+ € 9.2 million for “Staff expenses”, + € 23.4 million for “Other
administrative expenses net of Recovery of expenses”, partially offset by the reduction in “Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets”
for an amount of € 1.3 million). The 11.3% increase in operating costs is in part determined by expenses closely linked to the growth of the business
(assets, volumes, customers and structure), certified by a cost/income ratio of 24.40% (23.20% at December 31st, 2023.
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Net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments in 2024 amounted to € -2.1 million (€ -3.6 million in 2023) and benefit
from write-backs due to the improvement of the macroeconomic scenario for an amount of € 1.4 million (+ € 0.4 million in 2023), determined on the
basis of the evidence resulting from the IFRS9 impairment models. The cost of risk is 5 basis points.

Other charges and provisions amounted to € -44.9 million, down 29.4% on 2023. In addition to net accruals to the provision for risks and charges
for complaints and disputes and net accruals to the provision for supplementary customer indemnity, the item mainly includes the annual contributions
paid to the Interbank Deposit Protection Fund under the Deposit Guarantee Scheme (DGS), totalling € 35.3 million (€ 35 million paid in the previous
year). As of the financial year 2024, the item also includes the 2024 contribution to be paid to the Life Insurance Guarantee Fund in the amount of €
1.2 million. It should be noted that in 2023 the contribution paid to the Single Resolution Fund under Directive 2014/59/EU was also recognised, in the
amount of 6.6 million euro, which was not required in the 2024 financial year, and the provision for obligations arising from the cost rebalancing
agreement that FinecoBank signed with the other distribution banks as part of the transaction aimed at protecting Cronos policyholders.

Net income from investments stood at € 1.8 million (€ 0.1 million in 2023) and include write-backs due to the improvement in the macroeconomic
scenario for € 2.4 million (write- offs for an amount of € 0.3 million were recognised in 2023).

Profit before tax from continuing operations amounted to € 913.5 million, up 7.4% compared to the previous year, mainly thanks to higher Financial
margin (+ € 22.9 million), Net commission (+ € 21.3 million), Dividends and other income from equity investments (+ € 8.5 million), and Net trading,
hedging and fair value income (+ € 18.6 million) partially offset by the reduction of and by the growth in Operating costs (+ € 31.3 million); the result
also benefited from lower Other charges and provisions of € 18.7 million.

Net profit for the year amounted to € 648.8 million, increasing by 7.3% compared to € 604.5 million of the previous year.
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Own funds and capital ratios

Data as at
12/31/2024 12/31/2023
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (€ thousand) 1,269,107 1,112,236
Total Own Funds (€ thousand) 1,769,107 1,612,236
Total risk-weighted assets (€ thousand) 4,983,378 4,663,040
Ratio - Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 2547% 23.85%
Ratio - Tier 1 Capital 35.50% 34.58%
Ratio - Total Own Funds 35.50% 34.58%
Data as at
12/31/2024 12/31/2023
Tier 1 Capital (€ thousand) 1,769,107 1,612,236
Exposure for leverage (€ thousand) 34,646,353 33,275,784
Leverage ratio 5.11% 4.85%

The Bank’s prudential requirements as at December 31st, 2024 were determined on the basis of the harmonized regulation for banks and investment
firms contained in Directive 2013/36/EU (CRD IV) and in Regulation (EU) 575/2013 (CRR) of June 26™, 2013 and subsequent Directives/Regulations
amending their content, which transpose into the European Union the standards defined by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (Basel Il
framework), collected and implemented by the Bank of Italy through Circular No. 285 of December 17, 2013 "Supervisory Provisions for Banks" and
subsequent updates.

As at December 318t, 2024 the Own funds amounted to € 1,769.1 million, including the profit for 2024, equal to € 648.8 million, net of dividends to be
distributed totaling € 452.6 million, which the Board of Directors will propose for approval at the Shareholders' Meeting called for April 29t, 2025, and
foreseeable charges of € 8.2 million, represented by the coupons, net of the related taxation, accrued on the Additional Tier 1 financial instruments
issued by FinecoBank.

Risk-Weighted Assets showed an increase in 2024 compared to the previous year, mainly due to the increase in operational risks, as a result of the
update of the Relevant Indicator, with the inclusion of 2024 revenues and the exclusion of 2021 revenues.

As at December 318t, 2024, the Common Equity Tier 1 ratio stood at 25.47%, up from 23.85% as at December 315, 2023 thanks to the portion of the
profit for the year included in Common Equity Tier 1, which more than offset the increase in risk-weighted assets. The Tier 1 and the Total Capital
ratios also benefited from such an effect, standing at 35.50%.

As at December 31, 2024, the Leverage ratio stands at 5.11%, a level well above the applicable regulatory requirement of 3% and up from 4.85% as
at December 31st 2023, thanks to the increase in Tier 1 capital, driven by the portion of profit for the year included in Common Equity Tier 1, which
more than offset the growth in exposures, and in particular in assets, mainly due to the increase in direct funding from customers.
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Fineco AM, a wholly owned subsidiary of FinecoBank, is a UCITS Management Company, established in the Republic of Ireland, whose objective is
to offer its customers a range of UCITS product with a strategy focused on the definition of strategic asset allocation and selection of the best
international managers, and therefore, diversify and improve the offer of asset management products and further increase the competitiveness of the
Group within its vertically integrated business model. It should be noted that on 2 September 2024, FAM received authorisation from the Central Bank
of Ireland to operate as an alternative investment fund manager able to provide the MiFID services of individual portfolio management and investment
advice.

The assets under management managed by Fineco AM at December 315t 2024 amounted to € 36.7 billion, of which € 24.9 billion relate to retail
classes and € 11.8 billion relating to institutional classes.

As at December 31st, 2024, Fineco AM has a total asset of € 93.7 million. This consists of Loans and receivables to banks, represented by three
time deposits for an amount of € 15.2 million, by Cash and Cash balances for € 29.5 million deposited with credit institutions, and by Loans and
receivables to customers, exclusively represented operating receivables associated with the provision of services, for an amount of € 45.5 million.

Fineco AM also holds shares in its UCITS Funds for an amount of € 1.5 million, which are recorded under “Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss c) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value” and Other assets for an amount of € 0.2 million relating to prepaid expenses and
definitive items not attributable to other items.

Deposits from banks and Deposits from customers totalled € 30.8 million, are represented exclusively by operating payables connected with the
provision of financial services, relating to the placement and management fees of UCITS to be paid back to the placers, including FinecoBank for €
18 million, and to investment advisors, It should be noted that the item Deposits from customers also includes the "Lease liabilities" from customers,
amounting to € 0.9 million representing the financial debt corresponding to the present value of the payments due in the lease agreements stipulated
with credit institutions not paid at the reporting date, as required by IFRS 16.

Other liabilities, equal to € 12.7 million, are recognised in payables to employees and other personnel and in current payables not related with the
provision of financial services.

Shareholders’ equity amounted to € 45.8 million and consists of share capital for € 3 million, of retained earnings for € 6.7 million and net income for
the year of € 125.6 million, net of dividends paid to the parent company FinecoBank in the last quarter of 2024 for an amount of € 89.5 million.

In 2024 Fineco AM generated Net commissions for € 168.1 million (€ 395.8 million in fee and commission income, € 227,7 million in fee and
commission expenses and € 3,4 million of net other operating expenses/income related to the asset manager business related to the application of
the "Fixed Operating Expenses" model) and the Net Profit for the year amounted to € 125,6 million.
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At its meeting of September 17, 2024 and with the prior favourable opinion of the Risk and Related Parties Committee and the Board of Statutory
Auditors, the Board of Directors, to ensure continued compliance with applicable legal and regulatory provisions on the corporate disclosure of
transactions with related parties and persons in conflict of interest, approved the new version of the Global Policy “Procedure for the management of
transactions with persons in potential conflict of interest of the FinecoBank Group” (the “Global Policy”).

The Global Policy contains the provisions to observe when managing:

o related party transactions pursuant to Consob Regulation no. 17221 of March 12, 2010 (as amended);
transactions with associated persons pursuant to the regulations on "Risk activities and conflicts of interest with associated persons” laid
down by Bank of Italy Circular no. 263 of December 27, 2006 (Title VV, Chapter 5: "New regulations for the prudential supervision of banks",
as amended);

e obligations of bank officers pursuant to Article 136 of Legislative Decree 385 of September 18!, 1993 (the Consolidated Banking Act);

o transactions with other relevant persons in potential conflict of interest as defined by the Bank on a self-regulatory basis, taking into account
the applicable legal and regulatory provisions;

e loans granted to Directors (i.e. members of the administrative, management and control bodies) and their related parties, pursuant to art.
88 of the CRD.

Considering the above, during 2024 the Group conducted less material transactions with related parties in Italy and abroad in the course of ordinary
business and associated financial activities, carried out under standard conditions, hence under the terms normally applied to transactions with
unrelated parties; no other transactions were undertaken with related parties that could significantly affect the Bank's or the Group's asset situation
and results, nor were any atypical and/or unusual transactions conducted, including of an intercompany or related party nature. For more details on
transactions with related parties, please refer to Part H — Related-party transactions in the notes to the consolidated accounts.

Transactions with Group companies
FinecoBank is Parent Company of Banking Group FinecoBank.

The following table provides a summary of outstanding assets, liabilities, guarantees and commitments as at December 31st, 2024 as well as the costs
(-) and revenues (+) recorded in 2024 with Fineco AM, which is the sole wholly-owned and consolidated company.

(Amounts in €

thousands)
Assets Liabilities Guarantges it Revenues (+) Costs (-)
commitments
Fineco Asset Management DAC 18,601 64 - 316,675 (65)

It should be noted that the Assets shown in the table mainly refer to current receivables associated with the provision of financial services to be
collected by the subsidiary Fineco AM and recorded in “Financial assets at amortized cost" and Revenues item mainly includes placement and
management fee income paid back by the subsidiary and accounted for by the Bank during 2024, in addition to the dividends recognized by Fineco
AM for a total of € 122.3 million.

96  Accounts and Reports 2024 - FinecoBank



Teleborsa: distribution and commercial use strictly prohibited emarket
) ) sdir storoge
Consolidated report on operations —— 0
of

Related-party Transactions

Transactions with companies subject to significant influence

The following table provides a summary of outstanding assets, liabilities, guarantees and commitments as at December 315!, 2024 as well as the costs
(-) and revenues (+) recorded in 2024 with respect to Vorvel SIM S.p.A., the only investment subject to influence and consolidated using the equity

method.
(Amounts in €
thousands)
. Guarantees and
Assets Liabilities p— —— Revenues (+) Costs (-)
Vorvel SIM S.p.A. - 267 - - (966)

The income statement and balance sheet transactions presented above originate from the agreement entered into by the Bank with Vorvel SIM S.p.A.
for the trading, on the Vorvel segment, of Certificates issued by Fineco.
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Other information

Report on corporate governance and proprietary structures

Pursuant to Article 123-bis, paragraph 3 of Legislative Decree no. 58 of February 24, 1998, the Report on Corporate Governance and Proprietary
Structures is available at the “Governance” section of the FinecoBank website (https://about.finecobank.com).

Remuneration policy and Remuneration report

Pursuant to Art.123-ter of the Legislative Decree no. 58 of February 24, 1998 and to Art. 84-quater, paragraph 1, of the Issuers’ Regulations, the
“Remuneration policy and Remuneration report” is available on FinecoBank’s website (https://about.finecobank.com).

Research and development

To promote technical solutions in line with the company mission, research and development is focused on developing software that enables the
provision of increasingly innovative financial advice and accessibility to financial instruments together with exclusive own-account trading.

More specifically, the main software applications that have been developed over the years are:

e Advice, a computer program through which the Bank enables its personal financial advisors to offer a professional advisory service to
customers who want a personalised financial plan;
o Internaliser, a computer program through which the Bank executes customer orders in its own account relating to trading on financial
markets as an alternative counterparty to the market;
e  Powerdesk and Webtrading, software that allows the Bank to, respectively, offer customers sophisticated and efficient tools for online
trading on the main international financial markets and simple solutions to complement the direct banking services.
The activities were split between developing new applications and strengthening/maintaining existing features to meet customer needs increasingly
efficiently.

Information on the time limits for convening the ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting

Pursuant to Article 2364, paragraph 2, of the Italian Civil Code and Art. 6, paragraph 4, of FinecoBank’s Articles of Association, the Annual Accounts
will be submitted to the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting for approval within 120 days from the end of the financial year.

Country-by-Country Reporting

Country-by-Country Reporting pursuant to art. 89 of Directive 2013/36 / EU of the European Parliament and of the Council (CRD 1V), amended by
Directive (EU) 2019/878 (so-called CRD V), has published on the FinecoBank website (https://about.finecobank.com).

Information on the derogation from the obligation to publish the information document in
the cases provided for in articles 70, paragraph 6, and 71, paragraph 1, of the Issuers
Regulation

Pursuant to article 70, paragraph 8, and article 71, paragraph 1-bis, of the Issuers Regulation, FinecoBank S.p.A. has availed itself of the right to

derogate from the obligation to publish the information document in the cases provided for in articles 70, paragraph 6, and 71, paragraph 1, of the
Issuers Regulation.
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Subsequent events
Incentive systems

The Board of Directors’ of FinecoBank held on January 21, 2025 — in consideration of the favorable opinion of the Remuneration Committee held on
January 171, 2025 - approved the following incentive systems that will be submitted to the Shareholders’ Meeting called for April 29t, 2025:

e 2025 Incentive System for Employees classified as Identified Staff;
e 2025 Incentive System for Personal Financial Advisors classified as “Identified Staff”.

In addition, the FinecoBank Board of Directors on February 5%, 2025 — in consideration of the favorable opinion of the Remuneration Committee held
on February 4%, 2025 - approved the implementation of the following incentive / loyalty systems:

e 2018-2020 Long Term Incentive Plan for employees. In particular, the assignment of n. 212,210 free ordinary shares to the beneficiaries
of the 2025 share tranche of the Plan, granted in 2018, and consequently a free share capital increase for a total amount of € 70,029.30
effective from March 31st, 2025;

e Incentive Systems 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023 for employees classified as “Identified Staff”. In particular, it was approved:

o the assignment of n. 179,137 free ordinary shares to beneficiaries of the 2025 share tranche of the 2019 Incentive System, the 2020
Incentive System, the 2021 Incentive System, the 2022 Incentive System and the 2023 Incentive System, and consequently a free
share capital increase for a total amount of € 59,115.21 effective from March 318!, 2025;

o the assignment of the second cash tranche related to the 2022 Incentive System, of the second cash tranche related to the 2021
Incentive System, of the third cash tranche related to the 2020 Incentive System and of the last cash tranche related to the 2019
Incentive System;

e 2021-2023 Long-Term Incentive Plan for employees. In particular the assignment of n. 184,547 free ordinary shares to the beneficiaries of
the 2025 share tranche of the Plan, granted in 2021, and consequently a free share capital increase for a total amount of € 60,900.51
effective from March 31st, 2025;

o  With reference to the 2024 Incentive System (Bonus Pool):

o the FinecoBank 2024 bonus pool;

o the bonus proposal for the CEO and General Manager, the other executives with strategic responsibility and other Identified
Staff;

o the award of 161,746 FinecoBank ordinary shares, to be allotted free of charge to the aforementioned personnel in
accordance with the detailed plan rules;

o the allocation of the first cash installment.

e Incentive Systems 2021, 2022 and 2023 for personal financial advisors classified as “Identified Staff”. In particular, it was approved:

o the assignment of n. 19,004 shares of the 2025 share tranche related to the 2021 Incentive System;

o the assignment of the 2025 cash tranche related to the 2021 Incentive Systems;

o the assignment of n. 5,493 shares of the 2025 share tranche related to the 2022 Incentive System;

o the assignment of n. 22,507 shares of the 2025 share tranche related to the 2023 Incentive System;

o the assignment of the 2025 cash tranche related to the 2023 Incentive System.

e Incentive 2018-2020 Long Term Incentive Plan for Financial Advisors classified as “Identified Staff’. In particular, it was approved the
assignment of the n. 6,194 share of the last share tranche.

e  With reference to the 2024 Incentive System PFA (Bonus Pool):

o the 2024 bonus pool for the Personal Financial Advisors;

o  the bonus proposal for the PFA Identified Staff;

o the total amount to be allotted in FinecoBank ordinary shares (within the maximum limit of 256,740 ordinary shares) free of charge to
the PFA Identified Staff in accordance with the plan rules;

o the buy-back of own shares in view of the authorization obtained from the supervisory authority pursuant to Art. 77-78 of EU Reg. No.
575/2013 of 26 June 2013 (CRR), as amended by EU Reg. No. 876/2019, in accordance with the resolution of the shareholders'
meeting;

o the allocation of the first cash installment.

Outlook

The prospective scenario, despite a complex, sees the Group benefiting from two structural trends that are transforming Italian society: digitization
and demand for advisory services. We are, in fact, witnessing an acceleration towards solutions that will lead to a more modern and digitised world:
the management of banking services by customers will be increasingly oriented towards the use of digital platforms, favouring the Group's business
model, which has always been oriented in this direction. In addition, the need to invest transparently with the support of an advisor is becoming
established among customers, while at the same time having easy access to the new instruments that are spreading in the financial world. The growing
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demand for efficient and convenient solutions has confirmed the effectiveness of Fineco's business model in responding to the need for better savings
management: a real push towards managed savings that finds its origins both in the economic scenario and, above all, in a sensitivity that has matured
over the years among savers.

The effectiveness of a diversified and sustainable business model, capable of producing solid results in all market phases, is confirmed. The new
contest, characterized by significant changes, represents for Fineco a boost to grow in all its business areas: from banking, which takes advantage of
an increase in the net interest income, to investing, thanks to Fineco AM’s contribution, and brokerage, confirming a structurally higher floor compared
to pre-pandemic level. In addition, the ability to integrate all services in an unique advanced platform allows a stable and healthy Group’s business
development confirming an improvement both in investments on our growth and in future dividends, together with a constant commitment in
sustainability.

The Group will continue to pursue its strategy based primarily on organic growth, capital light and low-risk. The objective is to further strengthen its
competitive position, thanks to quality of service and process efficiency, in the integrated banking, brokerage and investing services sector through
the high quality and completeness of the financial services offered, summarised in the "one stop solution" concept, thanks also to the asset
management activity carried out by Fineco AM, which will allow the Bank to be even closer to its clients' needs, more efficient in its product selection
and more profitable thanks to its vertically integrated business model.

FinecoBank had a market share by Total Financial Assets (“TFA”)® for 2.46% in September 2024 (last available data), with significant potential growth
margins.

Considering the typical risks of the sector to which it belongs, a positive operating performance is expected for the financial year 2025, except in the
case of the occurrence of further events of an exceptional nature or dependent on variables that are substantially beyond the control of the Directors
and Management.

9 Source Bank of Italy, Bastra return flows.

100  Accounts and Reports 2024 - FinecoBank



Teleborsa: distribution and commercial use strictly prohibited smarkek

sdir storage

Consolidated report on operations ——
o0l

Consolidated Sustainability reporting

1. General information

1.1 Methodological note
1.1.1 General Criteria for Consolidated Sustainability Reporting (BP-1)

This document represents the Consolidated Sustainability Report (hereinafter also "Sustainability Report" or "Report") of the FinecoBank Group,
prepared in accordance with the provisions of Legislative Decree no. 125/2024, which implemented Directive 2022/2464/EU of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 14 December 2022 in Italy, amending Regulation 537/2014/EU, Directive 2004/109/EC, Directive 2006/43/EC and
Directive 2013/34/EU as regards corporate sustainability reporting (hereinafter CSRD). The sustainability reporting standards (European Sustainability
Reporting Standards hereinafter ESRS Standards or ESRS) were adopted by the European Commission pursuant to Article 29b of Directive
2013/34/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 ('Sustainability Reporting Standards'), supplemented by Commission
Delegated Regulation (EU) 2023/2772 of 31 July 2023.

The Consolidated Sustainability Report of the FinecoBank Group covers the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024 and its objective is to
provide the information necessary for understanding how the Group's impact on sustainability issues affects the Group's performance and results.

In accordance with the requirements of ESRS, the Consolidated Sustainability Report extends beyond the Group's own operations and encompasses
material impacts, risks and opportunities along the entire Value Chain, which includes the activities, resources and relationships the Group develops,
in all geographic areas in which it operates.

The Sustainability Report is prepared on a consolidated basis. The scope of consolidation is the same as that used for the preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements as of 31 December 2024 and, therefore, includes:

e the Parent company FinecoBank S.p.A;
o the subsidiary Fineco Asset Management DAC, a fully consolidated company headquartered in Ireland.

With regard to Vorvel SIM S.p.A., the only subsidiary company consolidated in the financial statements using the equity method, an analysis was
performed that led to the exclusion of operational control by the Group, and therefore, it was considered within the Value Chain.

The Sustainability Reporting applies to own operations and activities along the Value Chain, upstream and downstream, as identified and analysed in
the 2024 Double Materiality Assessment process (see section 1.2.3 of this Chapter).

For the financial year 2024, the Group did not make use of the option to omit specific information corresponding to intellectual property, know-how or
innovation results. In addition, no use was made of the exemption of disclosure of information concerning upcoming developments or matters under
negotiation, pursuant to Articles 19 bis (3) and 29 bis (3) of Directive 2013/34/EU.

1.1.2 Disclosures in relation to specific circumstances (BP-2)

This section defines the main drafting terms and conventions used in the preparation of the Sustainability Report; further information relating to specific
circumstances is disclosed in the various chapters, together with the information to which those circumstances relate.

In detail, with reference to certain metrics relating to the Value Chain based on estimates, including those obtained from indirect sources, the chapters
in which these metrics are discussed provide an explanation of how they are constructed, what sources are used (including those external to the
Group), what the level of reliability and accuracy of these sources is, and whether any actions are planned to improve their quality and reliability for
future reporting periods.

Term Definition

The definition of time horizons adopted by the Group coincides with that defined by ESRS 1. The short
term coincides with the reporting year; the term medium term refers to the period of time up to five years

Time horizons after the end of the short term; the term long term means the period beyond five years from the end of the

short term.
Unit of measurement The unit of measure used to report monetary amounts is in millions of euro, unless otherwise indicated.
Global Polic The highest policy approved by the Board of Directors and the CEO and General Manager of FinecoBank,

y applicable to the Parent Company and the Subsidiary.
Local Polic A policy applicable to an individual Group Company (Parent or Subsidiary), as specified from time to time,
y approved by the Board of Directors of that Company.

A Global Operational Regulation is issued to give operational application to a Global Policy, applicable to

Global Operational Regulation the Parent Company and the Subsidiary Company. It is approved by the CEO and General Manager of

FinecoBank.
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Term Definition

For the financial year 2024, the first year of reporting under the CSRD, the Group opted not to disclose or
to disclose only the qualitative information of the applicable disclosure requirements in Appendix C of ESRS
1, with the exception of the following disclosures:

e  ESRS 81 -S1-7 (Information reported: ref. par. 3.3.5);
ESRS S1 - S1-8 (Information reported: ref. par. 3.2.6);
ESRS S1 - S1-11 (Information reported: ref. paras. 3.2.6 and 3.2.8);
ESRS S1 - S1-12 (Information reported: ref. par. 3.2.9);
ESRS S1 - S1-13 (Information reported: ref. par. 3.2.10);
ESRS S1 - S1-15 (Information reported: ref. par. 3.2.11) as regards the Parent Company
FinecoBank.
Operating expenses (OpEx) and capital expenditures (CapEx) were not significant in relation to the Group's
operating costs and were therefore not reported.

List of phased-in Disclosure
Requirements

Capex/Opex

As previously mentioned, this Sustainability Report is prepared in accordance with the CSRD and represents a material departure from the previous
Consolidated Non-Financial Statement, the last publication of which was for the financial year 2023.

The Consolidated Sustainability Report is prepared in accordance with the European Sustainability Reporting Standards (hereinafter referred to as
ESRS)"0, adopted by the European Commission pursuant to Article 29-ter of Directive 2013/34/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of
26 June 2013 ('Sustainability Reporting Standards').

The document is supplemented with data and information that meet the requirements of Article 8 of Regulation (EU) 2020/852 of the European
Parliament and of the Council'! (hereinafter referred to as the "'Taxonomy Regulation' or 'Environmental Taxonomy') and the delegated regulations of
the Commission specifying the content and other modalities of these disclosures, as required by the ESRS.

In line with these Standards'?, the G4 Sector Disclosure supplement 'Financial Services' of the Global Reporting Initiative was also taken into account
for the entity-specific material topic 'Sustainable Finance'.

Given the profound change in reporting standards and the fact that this is the first reporting period, there are no comparisons with previous reporting
periods. Within the document there are a few exceptions to this general approach, mainly referring to metrics on the progress of sustainability goals
defined on a quantitative basis.

In light of the above, no adjustments or corrections of information for previous years were necessary for the financial year 2024.
The option of inclusion by reference pursuant to paragraph 119 of ESRS 1 has not been used.

This Sustainability Report was submitted for review and assessment by the Corporate Governance and Environmental and Social Sustainability
Committee and the Risk and Related Parties Committee on 28 February 2025 and 6 March 2025 and was subsequently approved by FinecoBank
S.p.A.'s Board of Directors on 11 March 2025.

This document was subject to a limited assurance engagement (as defined by ISAE 3000 Revised) by KPMG S.p.A., which in a separate report
certifies the information presented in accordance with Art. 8 (1) of Legislative Decree 125/2024.

19Delegated Regulation (EU) 2023/2772 of 31 July 2023 supplementing Directive 2013/34/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to sustainability reporting principles.
11 Regulation (EU) 2020/852 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 June 2020 on the establishment of a framework to facilitate sustainable investments and amending Regulation (EU) 2019/2088.
12 See ESRS 1 General Requirements, paragraph 3.2 Material issues and materiality of information, paragraph 30(b).
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1.2 Strategy and material sustainability matters
1.2.1 Strategy, business model and Value Chain (SBM-1)

FinecoBank was founded in 1999 with the aim of building a whole new concept of banking, offering an integrated business model between direct
banking and networks of Financial Advisors.

FinecoBank S.p.A. is a joint-stock company listed on Euronext Milan — EXM (formerly Mercato Telematico Azionario), organised and managed by
Borsa Italiana S.p.A. Since April 2016 it has been included in the FTSE Mib stock index and in the Stoxx Europe 600 index since 2017; it is the parent
company of the FinecoBank Banking Group (hereinafter also “Fineco” or “Group”), which includes the Irish asset management company, Fineco
Asset Management Designated Activity Company (hereinafter also referred to as “Fineco Asset Management DAC” or “Fineco AM”). The subsidiary
Fineco AM increased its competitive capacity in the wealth management sector by internalising the creation and management of investment funds,
specifically designed to meet Customers' needs in a timelier manner. Its establishment in 2018 allowed the Bank to diversify and improve its asset
management product offering and to offer Customers a diversified range of UCITS. (Undertakings for the Collective Investment in Transferable
Securities), concentrating the strategy on the definition of strategic asset allocation and on the selection of the best international managers.

FinecoBank is one of the most important FinTech banks in Europe and has one of the largest financial advisory networks. It is one of the leaders in
brokerage in Europe and the leader in Italy based on the number of transactions and volumes brokered on the stock market. The Bank's transactional
platforms and advisory services are developed in-house using state-of-the-art proprietary technologies and innovation to make the customer
experience a more fluid and intuitive experience on all channels. It is also one of the most important players in the Italian private banking sector, owing
to a consultancy approach tailored to the needs of individual Customers, which includes advice on fiduciary services, and protection and succession
planning of personal and corporate assets.

As of 31 December 2024, the FinecoBank Group employed 1,451 people (of which 1,368 in Italy and 83 in Ireland). It operates in Italy through its
registered office and headquarters located in Milan and Reggio Emilia, respectively, and three Data Processing Centres (DPCs) located in Pero (M),
Milan and Rome. The Group is active in 20 ltalian regions, with 438 Fineco Centres (offices where financial advisors carry out their activities) and
3,002 Personal Financial Advisors (PFA). Abroad, the subsidiary Fineco AM is based in Dublin.

By the end of 2024, the number of Customers stood at 1.656 million'3. The majority of Customers remain natural persons (98%), while the residual
category of legal persons (2%) also includes national bodies and associations, as well as corporations.

The business model is structured into three integrated areas of activities: Banking & Credit, Investing e Brokerage. The Bank mainly offers its own
services (banking and investment) to retail Customers through its network of financial advisors, online and mobile channels that operate among
themselves in a coordinated, integrated way. The main products and services by area of activity are shown below.

The supply of capital from customer deposits is the main input for the lending and investment operations. In terms of output, the business model
encompasses the distribution and delivery of products and services to end users, who are mainly retail Customers, private individuals who use the
banking products (current accounts, loans, mortgages and cards) and financial services described below.

With reference to the Banking & Credit area, the Group offers its Customers a product portfolio that includes:

e  current accounts and all related basic services, both payment-related (e.g. credit transfers, MAV/RAV, utility bills, FinecoPay, Telepass,
etc.) and other types (e.g. Multicurrency, Moneymap, telephone top-ups, etc.);

e  payment cards;

e financing products (overdrafts, residential mortgages, personal loans).
These products are mainly aimed at Customers who are natural persons. This customer cluster is in turn divided into several sub-clusters according
to specific customer characteristics (e.g: residence, assets owned, age, usage requirements, etc.). In 2024, the sub-cluster was joined by that of
minors (persons aged between 8 and 17), for whom a dedicated current account offer was introduced, with a range of associated payment services
(see section 3.5.4 in the chapter on 'Social Information').

The products dedicated to legal persons are limited to current accounts and payment services. For this customer cluster, financing products are
currently excluded from the offer.

With reference to the Investing area, the Group offers its Customers, also through the support of financial advisors, a particularly extensive range of
asset management products, consisting of collective asset management products, such as units of mutual funds and shares of SICAVs traceable to
carefully selected Italian and international investment houses, as well as pension and insurance products and investment advisory services through
the network of financial advisors. It includes, in particular, the asset management business conducted by the subsidiary Fineco AM, thanks to its
vertically integrated business model.

The investment products offered falling under the broader category of asset management are funds, Sicavs, ETFs, pension funds, segregated accounts
for private Customers (Customers with TFA over EUR 500,000), life insurance products such as unit-linked, multi-branch and segregated funds.

13 The number refers to the number of Customers (tax codes) who have at least one active relationship on the reference date (the active relationship is not necessarily a current account).
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Each customer is profiled using the MiFID questionnaire and the resulting classification identifies products that are suitable, or not, for the individual
customer.

In addition, the main services offered include:

e  Advice Plus: innovative personalised advisory services designed to meet any customer's complex requirements and monitor portfolio
performance over time;
e Private Solutions: construction of customised portfolios and asset monitoring; Wealth & Private Insurance; Private Placement and Private
Markets.
With reference to the Brokerage area, Fineco ensures the service of order execution on behalf of Customers, with direct access to the main world
stock markets and the possibility to trade CFDs (on currencies, indices, shares, bonds, commodities and cryptocurrencies), futures, options, bonds,
ETPs, certificates and covered warrants. In this area, the Bank coordinates and oversees the development of trading products and services to be
offered on the domestic and international markets according to the needs of the customer base and to changes in the target market and in regulations.

In 2024, the FinecoX brokerage platform was enhanced with the introduction of new advanced features, such as the vertical book, which allows for a
more detailed display of price levels and further customisation through dedicated advanced settings, and the Best&Worst dynamic which allows for
real-time monitoring of the performance of lists of interest, automatically sorting them by performance and volume. The markets available to Customers
on the platform were also expanded, with the addition of the Nordic markets, previously tradable offline.

In brokerage activity, the customer offer is defined in line with the MiFID questionnaire as well. Compared to the past, in 2024 more customer interest
in ETFs emerged, so much so that they became the product of choice for Customers in their first trade.

In the context of the business model described above, Fineco's strategy, oriented towards a stable and organic growth, is characterised by a
progressive integration of environmental and social sustainability and good governance (ESG) principles within business choices and operations
management.

In particular, as of 2019, the Group has included the green mortgage and, from 2023, the green loan in its Banking & Credit product range.

The green mortgage allows the financing of the purchase of energy class A or B properties with a mortgage loan, at advantageous conditions compared
to the standard price list, promoting the redevelopment of Italy's real estate stock.

The green loan is a personal loan intended to finance the installation of renewable energy technologies at a more favourable rate than standard loans.
The product characteristics were defined in line with the “Green Loan Principles. Supporting environmentally sustainable economic activity” of the
Loan Market and Asia Pacific Loan Market Associations™, which stipulate that a loan can only be called 'green’ if the funds are made available
exclusively to finance (all or part of) activities with environmentally sustainable characteristics. These characteristics were defined with reference to
the European Environmental Taxonomy (EU Reg. 852/2020) and, in particular, to the technical screening criteria in the Delegated Act on Climate
Change Mitigation.

Over the course of 2024, approximately 12% of all new purchase mortgage agreements fell into the green mortgage category, amounting to a total of
€ 5.1 million, or roughly 10% of the total amounts for purchase mortgages disbursed by the Bank in the same year. At the end of 2024, the stock
related to green mortgages represents 17% of the total purchase mortgages, amounting to € 234 million.

More generally, the sustainability strategy - defined at the end of 2023 through the adoption of the Multi-Year Plan ESG 2024 - 2026 (MYP ESG
2024-2026) - is fully integrated into the 2024-2026 Multi-Year Plan and defines ambitious and challenging goals, in line with the Group's corporate
purpose, aimed at 'supporting Customers in taking a responsible approach to their financial life in order to create the conditions for a more
prosperous and fairer society'.

In line with the approach that has always guided business decisions, the sustainability strategy also looks to the future, setting important goals for the
three-year period 2024-2026 in the area of responsible finance, to be pursued also through a strong involvement of the financial advisor network and
the launch of financial education initiatives and projects. In particular, the business-related MYP ESG 2024-2026 targets were also defined based on
an assessment of the Group's current business and its commodities and services offering.

Business-related commitments are complemented by objectives to mitigate operational impacts, including initiatives to digitise processes and projects
aimed at increasing the level of sustainability in the supply chain, in addition to targets to reduce operational emissions.

Taken as a whole, the sustainability strategy is part of the path taken by the Group by adhering to the most important international sustainability
initiatives of the United Nations since 2020: the Global Compact and the Principles for Responsible Banking and Principles for Responsible
Investment, signed by FinecoBank and Fineco AM respectively.

The 2024-2026 ESG MYP and the link to the material ESRS topics are provided in Appendix | of the Consolidated Sustainability Report.

4 Green Loan Principles. Supporting environmentally sustainable economic activity' - Loan Market Association, Asia Pacific Loan Market Association, Loan Syndications & Trading Association, February 2021.
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VALUE CHAIN

The FinecoBank Group's Value Chain consists of all the activities, resources and relationships related to the company's business model and the
external context in which the Group operates. These activities, resources and relationships include:

1)  assets, resources and relationships that are part of so-called 'own operations', such as human resources and the network of financial
advisors;

2) activities, resources and relationships in the procurement, marketing and distribution channels for products and services;

3) the financial, geographical, geopolitical and regulatory context in which Fineco operates.

The actors in the Value Chain (hereinafter also Value Chain, VC) have been identified on the basis of the relationships the Group has with them. In
particular, the actors that have business relations with Fineco both directly and indirectly have been identified, and it has also been identified whether
the business relationship is developed upstream (those who provide products, financial resources, services used in the development of products or
services that Fineco provides on the market and in the territory in which it is located) and/or downstream (those who receive products, financial
resources and financial services). Finally, it was defined whether the relationship is strategic and/or operational with respect to the operation of the
business, and the role of the actor in the process.

Positioning in the | Actor Type of relationship | Type of actor Role in the process
Value Chain
Upstream Customers Commercial Stakeholders Actors that contribute directly to Fineco's funding
involved
Upstream Bank counterparts Commercial Stakeholders Actors providing financial products and services in
involved which Fineco invests its liquidity
Upstream Institutional Commercial Stakeholders Actors providing financial products and services in
counterparts involved which Fineco invests its liquidity
Upstream Shareholders / Commercial Sustainability Actors participating in Fineco's share capital
investors reporting
recipients
Upstream Suppliers Commercial Stakeholders Actors providing products and/or services functional
involved to Fineco's operations
Upstream Training organisations / | Commercial Sustainability Actors who provide intangible services that are
Universities / Colleges reporting functional to Fineco's operations/business model
recipients and/or play a role in influencing Fineco's business
Upstream Trade Associations Strategic/Operational | Sustainability Actors representing categories of stakeholders
reporting
recipients
Upstream Trade unions Operational Sustainability Actors representing categories of stakeholders
reporting
recipients
Upstream Government Bodies / | Strategic/Operational | Sustainability Actors who provide intangible services that are
Regulators reporting functional to Fineco's operations/business model
recipients and/or play a role in influencing Fineco's business
Own operation Employees Operational Stakeholders Actors contributing to the Group's operations
(FinecoBank) involved
Own operation Employees (Fineco Operational Stakeholders Actors contributing to the Group's operations
AM) involved
Own operation Personal Financial Operational Stakeholders Actors contributing to the market placement of
Advisors (PFA) involved financial products and services offered by Fineco
and to the expansion of Customers
Downstream Product company Commercial Stakeholders Actors providing financial products and services
involved that Fineco distributes to its Customers
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Positioning in the | Actor Type of relationship | Type of actor Role in the process
Value Chain
Downstream Customers Commercial Stakeholders Actors receiving financial resources from Fineco
involved
Downstream Institutional Commercial Stakeholders Actors receiving financial resources from Fineco
counterparts involved
Downstream Bank counterparts Commercial Stakeholders Actors receiving financial resources from Fineco
involved
Downstream Personal Financial Commercial Stakeholders Actors working in Fineco 'PFA & Personal Studio' 15
Advisors (PFA) involved
Downstream Local communities Strategic Sustainability Other actors
reporting
recipients
Downstream Media Strategic / Sustainability Other actors
Commercial reporting
recipients
Downstream Rating Agencies Strategic Sustainability Other actors
reporting
recipients

A cornerstone of the Fineco Group Value Chain is the supply chain. Procurement management is based on criteria of transparency and objectivity
and suppliers are selected on the basis of professional knowledge and skills that meet the minimum requirements of value for money, as well as the
adoption of socially responsible behaviour, requesting any mandatory documentation and examining the completeness and correctness of the
information received.

The entire procurement process, at Group level, is governed by the Spending Rules, which ensure that the supplier selection process takes place
through clear procedures and using objective, transparent, non-discriminatory parameters linked to the quality of the products and services offered.
As of 2021, an ESG (Environment, Social and Governance) questionnaire has been introduced and regulated in which the most relevant suppliers are
asked to provide information on how they manage their environmental, social and governance aspects, in terms of, among other things, whether they
hold certifications in these areas (e.g. ISO 14001 for the environment, ISO 37001 for anti-corruption) and their systems for controlling the related risks.
The Contract Managers - the company contact persons in charge of relations with suppliers - are required, in particular, to submit - to suppliers who
invoice FinecoBank for a total annual amount of EUR 25,000 or more (including VAT) - the ESG questionnaire, when defining pre-contractual
agreements aimed at signing or renewing a contract. The Contract Manager is responsible for verifying the correct compilation by the proposed
supplier.

Furthermore, the Code of Ethics and the Organisation and Management Model of FinecoBank S.p.A. define the principles of cooperation, fairness,
transparency and professionalism, as key principles in relations between FinecoBank and its suppliers. In particular, these principles prohibit dealing
with counterparties for which there is a substantiated suspicion that they are involved in illegal activities and do not meet the necessary requirements
of professionalism and reliability. During the qualification phase all suppliers are asked, when applicable:

e toprovide a DURC (Documento Unico di Regolarita Contributiva - single document certifying payment of taxes) and certificate of registration
with CCIAA (Chamber of Commerce, Industry, Craft Trades and Agriculture);

o to comply with the regulations concerning social security, accident prevention and insurance and on occupational health and safety;

e tohold ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 certification;

o topresent a Self-declaration concerning the exploitation of workers (i.e. lllegal recruitment);

e to complete the ESG Questionnaire.
In addition, their standard contracts contain clauses of acknowledgement and commitment to comply with the Code of Ethics (which requires
compliance with the principles of the International Labour Organisation on fundamental human rights, child labour, freedom of association, working
conditions, equal pay, health, safety and business ethics).

This process makes it possible to monitor any risks related to the procurement process, mainly related to the possible selection of suppliers involved
in illegal operations or who have been involved in disputes regarding social responsibility.

Furthermore, with reference to service contracts, using external personnel, Unit Real Estate reserves the right to check, during the course of the work,
the compliance with all contractual requirements by the various suppliers it has appointed.

15 Cat. 14 - Franchising - Scope 3 GHG Protocol.
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1.2.2 Stakeholder engagement (SBM-2; S1-SBM-2; S3-SBM-2; S4-SBM-2)

Doing business responsibly means working to create value for all stakeholders, as well as understanding how Fineco's actions can be influenced or
influence those who have an interest in its activities, i.e. its stakeholders.

The administrative, management and supervisory bodies are informed about the opinions and interests of stakeholders and the impact they may have
on sustainability issues at regular meetings of Fineco's Board of Directors and Sustainability Committee.

In 2024, the Stakeholder Map was updated, with the primary purpose of identifying the stakeholders to be involved in conducting the Double Materiality
Analysis, as described in the following section.

In addition to the engagement activities functional to the Double Materiality Analysis, over the years Fineco has developed numerous listening and
interaction activities, which continuously engage numerous stakeholders in order to better manage mutual relations. Through a careful analysis of the
needs and opinions of each stakeholder, the Group can develop more targeted strategies and improve its decision-making process and range of
products and services.

Stakeholder engagement is realised in the processes of collecting and taking on the opinions of stakeholders, which occurs, for example, in the context
of the various meetings with investors (e.g. when presenting results to the market or in one-to-one meetings with investors), as well as through direct
customer contact with the Bank, through customer care, the first and fundamental point of contact between the Bank and its Customers .

Below, the main dialogue tools and engagement activities implemented in 2024 with some of the most important Stakeholders for the Group are
reported. In addition to these, further targeted activities involving specific Stakeholders (Employees, Customers, Financial advisors, Community) are
reported in the respective chapters.

FINANCIAL COMMUNITY

Fineco promotes an ongoing, transparent and comprehensive dialogue with stakeholders in the financial community (shareholders, investors, analysts
and proxy advisors). Dialogue is managed through regular meetings and conference calls with institutional investors and analysts. The Bank provides
accurate, effective and timely communications on the Bank's financial performance, strategy and development, in order to facilitate its fair evaluation
and build its shareholder base in the long term.

In this context, the 'Global Policy for the Management of Dialogue with the Financial Community' defines the set of rules, responsibilities and
processes aimed at conducting and managing the dialogue, respecting the principles of transparency and equal treatment of information provided to
the Financial Community and ensuring that it is clear, complete, truthful and not misleading.

Given the bank's nature as a public company, Fineco focuses in particular on maintaining and nurturing an ongoing dialogue with long-term investors
to ensure alignment of interests between the parties and create shareholders' value. 2024 was also characterised by constant dialogue with the
financial community, through both virtual and physical meetings:

24 days of participation in international conferences;

5-day roadshow around the world;

Individual one-to-one meetings/group meetings/conference calls and video calls;
4 official conference calls to present quarterly financial results to the market.

During the year, there were 716 interactions with institutional investors. As far as ESG issues are concerned, there were 23 interactions during 2024,
in addition to ad hoc requests received continuously throughout the year. In September 2024 Fineco also participated in the Ifalian Sustainability Week
organised by Euronext.

REGULATORS

Fineco is committed to ensuring that supervisory information requirements are met, as part of a practice of transparency and fairness. Relations with
the Regulators are based on principles of integrity, transparency, fairness, professionalism and cooperation, in compliance with the institutional role
attributed to the Regulators and in accordance with the procedures established by the legislation in force from time to time.

The Bank must ensure, on the basis of the current regulatory framework, that the supervisory disclosure requirements are met as expressed by the
Regulatory Authority, as part of transparency and fairness practices, in order to support the stability of intermediaries and a competitive and sustainable
financial market.

At Group level, the relationship and management of relations with the Resolution Authority and with the Supervisory Authorities, both at European
level (European Central Bank - ECB, Single Resolution Board - SRB) and at national level (Bank of Italy) is guaranteed through the correct and
effective interlocution with:

o  off-site Supervision (ECB), which ensures ongoing remote controls on the intermediary, on all activities related to the Supervisory Review
and Evaluation Process and on the Recovery Plan;
e Inspection Supervision (ECB and Bank of Italy), whose main activity is the management of on-site inspection processes; and
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o the Single Resolution Board (both in the cartel and inspection areas), to support the definition of the Resolution Plan and the Resolution
Strategy.
Involvement with Regulators may vary in form and frequency: from annual, e.g. in the case of the recovery plan review process, to quarterly, in the
case of the tableau de bord submission of the corporate control functions, to daily, in the case of on-site-inspection with the related activity of
transmitting the required documentation and organising in-depth meetings.

The relationship with the tax authorities is based on the criteria of maximum cooperation and transparency. In particular, as of 2016, Fineco is admitted
to the optional so-called Cooperative Compliance regime pursuant to Legislative Decree no. 128/2015, which aims to establish a relationship of trust
between tax authorities and taxpayers. The purpose of the scheme is to increase the level of certainty on relevant tax issues and thus avoid possible
disputes with tax authorities. This objective is pursued through constant and preventive dialogue with the tax authority, including the anticipation of
control, aimed at a common assessment of situations likely to generate tax risks and the sharing of the internal tax risk control system.

Fineco acts as spokesperson for the interests of its stakeholders, actively participating, through the Tax Function, in meeting and discussion
opportunities promoted by the representative and trade associations of which it is a member (e.g. the ABI Tax Technical Committee, Assogestioni,
Assonime, AMF ltalia, IFA) and promoting, in these fora, actions to improve the body of regulations and interpretations on the basis of the observations
made by its Customers , the network of Financial advisors and Investors.

1.2.3 Description of the processes to identify and assess material impacts, risks and opportunities (IRO-1; E1-
IRO1; E5-IRO1; G1-IRO1)

Fineco has defined a methodological approach for the assessment of Double Materiality following the ESRS and taking into account the EFRAG
Guideline - IG1 approved on 3 June 2024. In order to identify the Impacts, Risks, and Opportunities (IRO) to be assessed for Double Materiality 2024,
3 activities were conducted:

1) Context analysis;
2)  Stakeholder engagement;
3)  Consolidation of results.

Context analysis
Firstly, an initial long list of IROs was prepared, applying the following approach:

e identification of the "Topics', 'Sub-topics' and 'Sub-sub-topics' for each thematic ESRS, following the list of topics in ESRS 1 - AR 16;

e  consideration of other elements supporting the identification of sustainability issues, such as desk analysis, previous materiality
assessments, internal due diligence processes, existing reports/assessments and/or other external inputs (e.g. S&P and CDP
questionnaires, World Economic Forum, OECD guidelines, etc.);

e integration of risks from the Group Risk Inventory and RAF such as credit risks, market risks, operational risks, reputation risks, strategic
risks, compliance risks;

e identification of actors in the upstream/downstream Value Chain, with reference to the counterparties with which Fineco has business
relations;

o analysis of the ways in which impacts generate risks and opportunities;
consideration of actual and potential IROs, as well as the time horizon associated with them.

Stakeholder engagement

Annually, one or more categories of stakeholders are selected to be involved through specific modes of engagement. For the 2024 reporting period,
the identified IROs were subjected to a Double Materiality assessment carried out through the direct involvement of the following Stakeholders:
Management, Financial Advisors and Investors. Such Stakeholders are in fact key players with respect to Fineco's business model and - with specific
reference to Financial Advisors - also constitute a fundamental reference point thanks to their in-depth knowledge of Customers ' expectations and
perceptions of Fineco. In addition to these Stakeholders, who are directly involved, it should be noted that for Employees and Customers, the
assessment made for the previous materiality analysis carried out for the 2023 Non-Financial Statement was considered.

The involvement of internal stakeholders in the assessment of Double Materiality can take different forms (e.g. surveys, dedicated workshops,
dedicated meetings within the framework of the activities of the Sustainability Management Committee, etc.), depending on the specific category
involved and the specific circumstances, needs and conditions that may arise.

The ways in which external stakeholders are involved are also specific to each category (e.g: workshops, surveys, desk analysis) and are identified
on the basis of the characteristics of the Stakeholder to be engaged and the nature of his/her relationship with the FinecoBank Group Companies
included in the scope of Sustainability Reporting.

In 2024, the stakeholder assessment took place through two dedicated workshop sessions involving the Financial Advisor Network, through one-to-
one interviews with institutional investors, and through a dedicated workshop for Management, with the support of the Sustainability structures and
the Chief Risk Officer (CRO).
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Consolidation of results

To define the relevance of the IROs identified in the long list, the interests and visions of the stakeholders involved were considered, which led to the
definition of the material sustainability matters. The sustainability matters defined by the Double Materiality Analysis are consistent with the Group's
strategy and business model: In fact, entity-specific topics (Sustainable Finance, Innovation, Cybersecurity and Information Security), which are purely
specific to the Group and already present in the previous materiality analysis, are also among the material topics.

The results of the Double Materiality Analysis, which led to the definition of the material impacts, risks and opportunities for the 2024 reporting period,
were reviewed by the Corporate Governance and Environmental and Social Sustainability Committee, the Risk and Related Parties Committee (for
the part related to the risks of financial materiality) and approved by the Board of Directors in September 2024. The Double Materiality Analysis process
has also been regulated in a dedicated Global Policy approved by the Board of Directors.

The impacts were assessed using the following parameters: a numerical assessment of the magnitude, extent, irretrievable character (for negative
impacts only) and likelihood of occurrence. In the process of consolidating the 2024 results, the assessment of the impacts of Stakeholder Engagement
and desk analysis confirmed the assessments made by Management. The process of identifying, analysing and assessing impacts took into account
the entire Value Chain, considering the impacts in which the Group is involved through its activities or as a result of its business relationships, also
consulting stakeholders to better understand how they might be affected.

With reference to risks, in order to isolate risk factors capable of negatively impacting the business model and, more generally, the operations along
the Group's Value Chain, both upstream (e.g. third-party suppliers) and downstream (e.g. Customers ), proprietary assets, exposures to Customers
and third-party counterparties, the characteristics and services provided by third-party suppliers, and the main characteristics of the business model
and operations carried out by the Group Companies were considered.

For each risk factor potentially capable of negatively impacting the business model and operations along the Group's Value Chain, vulnerabilities were
identified (if any), assessing possible transmission channels to financial (e.g. credit and business risk), operational and reputational risks. In identifying
vulnerabilities, the links between risks, possible dependencies, impacts and opportunities, which are closely interconnected elements, were taken into
account.

The impacts the Group has on its Stakeholders may in turn generate risks or opportunities for the Group itself. For example, violating the privacy of
Customers constitutes a negative impact on the latter; and furthermore, to the extent that this impact involves a substantial number of Customers, it
may lead to significant reputational risks for the Group by undermining the trust of Customers and investors.

Risks, particularly prospective ones, arising from changes in market trends, the introduction of new technologies and changing customer needs and
preferences, can also constitute business opportunities for the Group, especially if new trends are intercepted early enough and used for strategic and
commercial purposes.

Risks and opportunities were assessed by considering the magnitude, i.e. the impact of positive or negative financial effects on the company's financial
position, results of operations and cash flows, access to financing or cost of capital in the short, medium or long term, and the likelihood, i.e. the
possibility that risks and opportunities will generate negative or positive financial effects. The assessment of the magnitude and likelihood of occurrence
(carried out on an escalating rating scale) from the Stakeholder Engagement and Desk Analysis confirmed the assessments of the Material Topics
made by Management.

The assessments made by Management, Financial advisors and Investors (through Stakeholder Engagement) led to the definition of materiality
thresholds along a scale of 1 to 16. The threshold for assessing the materiality of each sustainability issue was set at a value greater than 6 for impact
materiality and greater than or equal to 6 for financial materiality. Scores on the scale from 1 to 16 are identified by assigning a score from 1 (low) to
4 (very high) to severity and likelihood (for impacts) and to magnitude and likelihood (for risks and opportunities). As a result of the Double Materiality
Analysis carried out for the financial year 2024, the impacts and opportunities arising from climate change were found to be material (above the
threshold of 6) for the FinecoBank Group, while the risks were found to be not material (below the threshold of 6).

With reference to financial materiality, the following is an in-depth look at the identification and assessment of sustainability risks in the Fineco Group.

At Fineco, the identification and assessment of sustainability risks starts from risk factors identified within the guidelines and technical documentation
issued by the Supervisory Authority (European Central Bank) and by industry standard setters (European Banking Authority). This process takes place
annually, or more frequently in the event of significant changes.

This process, which is a preparatory activity to both the definition of the Risk Appetite Framework and the internal capital and liquidity assessment
processes (ICAAP & ILAAP), consists mainly of the following steps:

identification of risks that can potentially be taken
selection of risks applicable to the Group's business environment
identification of relevant risks and formalisation of the 'Group Risk Map'
sharing and approval of the Group Risk Map
o follow-up of risk materiality to take into account relevant events after the ordinary annual review.
As cross-cutting risks, sustainability risks are assessed in parallel with financial, operational and reputational risks. Separate assessment is considered
necessary mainly for the following reasons:

FinecoBank - Accounts and Reports 2024 109



Teleborsa: distribution and commercial use strictly prohibited smarkek

sdir storage

Consolidated report on operations ——
o0l

Consolidated Sustainability reporting

e to avoid double-counting of the risk factors arising from sustainability risks, which would otherwise be both classed among the identified
sustainability risks and among the financial, operational and reputational risks that are their transmission channels;
o to provide for the adoption of an integrated but separate assessment methodology for the assignment of scores determining materiality,
allows the sustainability risks to receive due attention from the Corporate Bodies involved in their approval and definition process (Parent
Company Board of Directors and Risk and Related Parties Committee).
The results of the sustainability risk identification activity, like other Group risks, are shared by the Chief Risk Officer with the Internal Control and
Business Committee, chaired by the CEO and General Manager, which is responsible for identifying the main business risks, taking into account the
characteristics of the activities performed by the company and its subsidiaries. Sustainability risk assessments (financial materiality side) converge
within the Double Materiality process to identify the impacts, risks and opportunities of sustainability topics.

Managing Impacts, Risks and Opportunities

The material impacts and risks emerging from the Double Materiality Analysis are taken into account and managed within the framework of the
definition and implementation of the Group's sustainability strategy (which is periodically monitored by the Sustainability function and the Sustainability
Management and Corporate Governance & Environmental and Social Sustainability Committees). In particular, the Sustainability function coordinates
the activities aimed at defining the material sustainability matters and topics and the relevant IROs to be reported, also supporting the Chief Risk
Officer in identifying Risks.

The Chief Risk Officer is responsible for identifying risks and assessing their financial materiality in the context of the Double Materiality Analysis,
taking care to integrate it into the overall risk management process handled by the function. The sustainability risks are fully integrated into the Group's
risk management system. The most significant risks identified in the Risk Inventory process are taken into account in the formulation of the Statement
(which qualitatively defines Fineco's positioning in terms of strategic objectives and related risk profiles) and monitored through specific metrics in the
Dashboard (composed of a set of quantitative indicators) of the Risk Appetite Framework (RAF, which formalises, through a set of limits and risk
metrics, the risk objectives, the tolerance thresholds, if any, and the operating limits that the Group intends to respect in pursuit of its strategic
guidelines). The monitoring of the RAF, which takes place on a quarterly basis, makes it possible to compare the level of risk assumed by the Group
at the reference date with the risk propensity defined by the Parent Company's Board of Directors.

The material opportunities arising from the Double Materiality Analysis are also taken up and managed as part of the definition and implementation of
the Group's sustainability strategy. In particular, they are one of the inputs for updating the sustainability strategy that is brought to the attention of the
Corporate Governance and Environmental and Social Sustainability Committee.

The inputs and parameters used to identify, manage and assess impacts, risks and opportunities come from both internal (within the Group) and
external sources.

In 2024, compared to the Non-Financial Statement 2023, the process of identifying and assessing impacts, risks and opportunities related to
sustainability issues became more granular and pervasive on the Group organisation, in line with the new CSRD requirements. In the past, this process
was based on a Materiality Analysis conducted according to the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) standards. Moreover, the Group had previously
carried out detailed analyses of environmental and climate risks following the issuance of guidelines and reports by supervisory authorities and industry
standard setfters, which focused more on the latter. The relevant regulations require the Double Materiality Analysis to be updated on an annual basis,
also taking into account the issuance of new guidelines and reports by Supervisory Authorities or industry standard setters.

1.2.3.1 Description of the process to identify and assess material impacts, risks and opportunities regarding climate

Since 2021, the Group has established the GHG emissions inventory, which forms the basis for identifying and assessing climate change impacts.
Impacts related to Scope 1 and 2 operational emissions are in general not significant, due to the digital business model that does not involve the
presence of branches/properties in the territory. In terms of emissions, the most significant contribution relates to so-called financed emissions,
reported from 2023 onwards and for which reference should be made to Chapter 2 'Environmental Information'. With regard to climate change
opportunities, these were first identified and assessed in the context of the 2024 Double Materiality Analysis, and concern both operational and
business-related opportunities. Their consideration and management are integrated into the governance of the ESG aspects, as described in section
1.3.2.

In terms of risks, the Fineco Group, thanks to the intrinsic characteristics of its business model, has little exposure to climate and environmental risks.
For this very reason, the Group does not use high-emission climate scenarios to identify physical risk factors, as these would not capture the
vulnerabilities inherent in the business model. Therefore, at Fineco, the identification and assessment of sustainability risks starts from risk factors
identified within the guidelines and technical documentation issued by the Supervisory Authority (European Central Bank) and by industry standard
setters (European Banking Authority). In order to assess the most significant vulnerabilities, stress tests were formulated as part of the ICAAP process.

Physical climate and environmental risks indicate the financial impact of climate change, including more frequent extreme weather events and gradual
climate changes, as well as environmental degradation. The different risk factors can be classified as acute, if caused by extreme events such as
droughts, floods and storms, and as chronic, if caused by progressive changes such as rising temperatures and rising sea levels. Such risk factors
could lead to both direct impacts, e.g. damaging assets owned by Group companies, and indirect impacts, e.g. reducing the value of assets acquired
as collateral by Customers or worsening the creditworthiness of Customers, counterparties, or issuers of financial instruments acquired by Group
companies as investments.
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The Group identifies risk factors prospectively, irrespective of the historical evidence recorded at the reporting date. Specifically, risk factors considered
in the acute physical risk category include floods, landslides, droughts, fires and extreme weather events (heat waves, hurricanes, tornadoes, etc.).
Chronic physical risks include water stress, desertification, resource scarcity, pollution, soil depletion and loss of biodiversity.

Once the physical, climatic and environmental risk factors applicable to the Group have been surveyed, vulnerabilities are identified and reported at a
consolidated level, taking into consideration that:

e no Group company has significant investments in the real estate segment. The only real estate investment is the building in which the
parent company FinecoBank has its registered office, located in Milan;

o the Bank has always favoured digital channels in its relationship with Customers, without the use of branches;

e no Group company has credit exposures to Customers or non-financial counterparties whose creditworthiness could be impacted by an
increase in the intensity and frequency of physical risk factors;

e loans are mainly addressed to retail Customers, highly diversified, individually small in amount and not directly affected by climatic and
environmental risk factors. In addition, 82% of the loan portfolio to ordinary Customers consists of products backed by financial or real
estate collateral;

e only the Bank, within the Group, is exposed to market risk, which is however limited to brokerage activities with Customers and subject to
strict risk limits. Fineco, in fact, does not take any open directional positions, and the trading book is only moved for the purpose of the
proper conduct of brokerage business with Customers, with an intra-day hedging/closing mandate;

e exposures to financial counterparties are made to industry leaders with high creditworthiness, and are predominantly backed by financial
collateral, the value of which is subject to frequent monitoring and margin calls;

o the strategic investments (as held to maturity) of the Group Entities are mainly made to sovereign counterparties (Sovereign States and
international governmental organisations) belonging to Western countries that are relatively little exposed to climate change or economically
able to cope with it.

Net of the operational and business environment highlighted above, the Risk Inventory process for 2025 identified the following vulnerabilities at the
consolidated level:

e  damage to the building in which the parent company has its registered office. The building is not particularly exposed to acute physical risk
factors. Although, in perspective, the property could be damaged by extreme weather events that are intensifying in the area, it should be
noted that an all-risk insurance policy is in place on the property and that the value of the property constitutes an insignificant portion of the
consolidated assets. In addition, in the event of site unavailability, the Business Continuity plan provides for the extensive use of remote
working;

e damage to the hardware infrastructure held within the Data Processing Centres (DPCs). Fineco relies on several DPCs, geographically
distributed, which play a key role in the storage of data and the smooth provision of services. For each DPC, a technical report on seismic
and environmental risk is periodically requested by persons specialised in such assessments, and mitigation measures are identified (e.g.
emergency generators and pumps in case of flooding). Finally, it should be noted that the parent company has an additional DPC used
exclusively for backup purposes;

o reduction in the value of real estate collateral supporting land loans granted by the Bank. The real estate on which the mortgage is registered
in favour of the Bank could be damaged by landslides or floods and experience a reduction in price on the real estate market. However,
the loan portfolio constitutes a relatively small share of the consolidated assets with an average Loan To Value of about 45%, reducing the
probability of loss in the event of default, even after a reduction in the value of the collateral;

e reduction in the value of financial collateral pledged against current account overdraft facilities granted by the Parent Company. Financial
instruments acquired as collateral could be affected by market volatility following the aggravation of chronic physical risk factors, should
they cause difficulties for entire economic sectors. However, the value of the collateral is monitored on a daily basis, and if it falls below
certain limits, the Bank has the option, ensured by the contractual provision, to sell the financial instruments to settle the debt;

e  default or downgrade of financial and sovereign counterparties exposed to high climate and environmental risks. Such an eventuality would
lead to higher credit adjustments and a higher absorption of economic capital for Group companies exposed to such counterparties.
However, the Group requires a credit rating of at least investment grade from its counterparties (considering the rating assessments by:
S&P, Moody's and Fitch) and makes use of a specific indicator developed by a group of researchers at the US University Notre Dame,
called ND Gain (considers the level of vulnerability of a country to climate change, and the positioning of the respective nation in terms of
economic, social and governance capacity to cope with climate change, or readiness).

The assessment of vulnerabilities to the climate and environmental risks identified considers both any historical evidence recorded at the reference
date and the likely evolution in the short, medium and long term. Specifically, in accordance with the latest guidelines issued by industry standard
setters, the Group adopts the following definitions:

e Short term: the short-term time horizon coincides with the duration of the accounting year, which is one calendar year. The time frame is
aligned with the budget drawn up annually by the Bank;

e Medium-term: the medium-term time horizon covers a time period of two to five calendar years, consistent with the Group's Multi-Year Plan
(usually at least 3 years). Furthermore, the time horizon is consistent with the average duration of the bond portfolio (approximately 4 years
as of 31 December 2024), which constitutes a significant portion of the Group's assets;
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e  Long-term: the long-term time horizon covers a period of six to ten calendar years. The decision to limit the long-term time horizon to 10
years, which is the minimum required by the most recent guidelines issued by the industry standard setters, is determined by both the low
average duration of the assets and the greater reliability of forecasts for shorter time horizons compared to longer time horizons.

The definitions adopted are consistent with those required by ESRS 1, as set out in Delegated Regulation 2023/2772 of 31 July 2023, which
supplements Directive 2013/34/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to the sustainability reporting principles.

The assessment of the extent to which the assets and operations of Group entities are exposed to physical risk factors considers a number of indicators
such as: the share of real estate as collateral for loans located in areas with high climate and environmental risk, the share of exposure to countries
most exposed to climate change, etc. Any historical evidence recorded on the specific climate and environmental risk factor at the reference date, and
its likely evolution in the short, medium and long term are also considered. For the most significant vulnerabilities, the Group conducts ad hoc stress
tests as part of its Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP), which involve a reduction in the value of real estate as collateral for
mortgages, located in areas with a high climate and environmental risk, with a direct effect on the Loss Given Default (LGD) parameter of the
mortgages, used both for the calculation of expected credit losses and for the absorption of the economic capital of the mortgages in the context of
calculating internal capital against credit risks.

The vulnerability assessment is completed with a score (likelihood of occurrence and magnitude), used in the Double Materiality Analysis, to assess
the relevance of the risks.

Given the limited exposure of Group companies to climate and environmental risks, no high-emission climate scenarios were used to identify climate-
related hazards and assess risk exposures. Instead, guidelines and technical documentation issued by supervisory authorities and industry standard
setters were used.

A separate process from physical climate-related risks is the analysis of climate-related transition risks. Climate and environmental transition risks
indicate the financial loss that Group entities may incur, directly or indirectly, as a result of the adjustment process to a low-carbon and more
environmentally sustainable economy. This situation could have both direct impacts, e.g. by altering the needs of Customers and influencing the
volatility of reference markets, and indirect impacts, e.g. by reducing the value of assets acquired as collateral by Customers, or by worsening the
creditworthiness of Customers, counterparties, or issuers of financial instruments acquired by Group companies as investments. The risk factors
considered in the category of transition risks include the relatively sudden adoption of climate and environmental policies, technological progress and
changing market confidence and preferences.

Once the transition, climatic and environmental risk factors applicable to the Group have been surveyed, vulnerabilities are identified and reported at
a consolidated level, taking into consideration that:

e  Fineco adopts an open-platform, which allows Customers to buy and receive advice on various financial instruments and investment
products, including those of third parties;
no Group entity has significant investments in the real estate segment;

e no Group company has credit exposures to Customers or non-financial counterparties whose sectors could be impacted by the introduction
of more restrictive pollution or carbon emission regulations, new climate policies by governments or new market trends;
mortgage loans issued by the Bank constitute a marginal share of the consolidated assets;

o only the parent company is exposed to market risk, which is however limited to brokerage activities with Customers (no open management
positions) and subject to strict risk limits;

o the strategic investments (as held to maturity) of the Group Entities are mainly made to sovereign counterparties (Sovereign States and
international governmental organisations) belonging to Western countries, whose economies are not dependent on fossil fuel exports.

e Net of the operational and business environments highlighted above, the Risk Inventory process for 2025 identified the following
vulnerabilities at the consolidated level:

e the orientation of Customers towards third-party asset management products with better ESG characteristics than those of Fineco AM.
Vulnerability, i.e., the ability to adapt its range of investment products to the new requirements determined by the transition to a more
environmentally sustainable economy, is mitigated by the introduction of a specific indicator within the Group's RAF, aimed at ensuring that
a portion of Fineco AM's funds have ESG characteristics (specifically, possession of a rating provided by a primary provider = A);

o the orientation of Customers towards intermediaries offering credit products with better ESG characteristics than those of the Bank.
Vulnerability, i.e. the ability to adapt its product offering to the new customer needs brought about by the transition to a more environmentally
sustainable economy, is mitigated by benchmarking with the market to ensure that the Group's sustainability profile is at least in line with
that of its main competitors;

o the orientation of Customers towards intermediaries perceived as more active in environmental sustainability initiatives. Vulnerability, i.e.
the possibility that some Customers may choose other intermediaries perceived as more active in the area of environmental sustainability,
is mitigated by the fact that the Group has long been engaged in various voluntary environmental sustainability initiatives;

e a more burdensome and bureaucratic granting and assessment of customer creditworthiness. Vulnerability, e.g. a regulatory change
introducing a minimum energy class for buying and selling real estate, is mitigated by the fact that this is a marginal business on the Group's
activities;

e amore burdensome and bureaucratic brokerage and consulting activities. Vulnerability, e.g. new regulations aimed at directing Customers’
capital towards more climate and environmentally sustainable activities, is mitigated by the continuous monitoring of legal and regulatory
developments through the compliance and various specialist functions.
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In the specific case of transition risks, the ICAAP process conducted in 2024 envisages a scenario in which the transition to a more environmentally
sustainable economy leads to an acceleration in the trend of markets, which are increasingly oriented towards products with sustainability features,
and produces a shift of Customers from investment funds not classifiable as ESG (Art. 6 SFDR), produced by the subsidiary Fineco AM, to those
classifiable as ESG (Art. 8 and 9 SFDR) produced by third-party asset management houses. This scenario leads to impacts at the commission level
for the entire Group. This is mitigated by the fact that the Group offers an open platform, where Customers can buy and receive advice on third-party
products without necessarily having to change intermediaries. The impacts, estimated in terms of the difference in commissions on impacted funds,
are intangible.

Again, the vulnerability assessment is completed with a score (likelihood of occurrence and magnitude), used in the Double Materiality Analysis, to
assess the relevance of the risks. Similarly to physical risks, for transition, climate and environmental risks, the identification and assessment of
impacts is not based on the analysis of climate-related scenarios.

With the exception of mortgage loans, issued by the parent company, as of 31 December 2024 the Group had no assets or operations at the
consolidated level that were potentially incompatible with the transition to a climate-neutral economy. Indeed, as already pointed out:

e no Group company has significant investments in the real estate segment. The only significant real estate investment is the building in
which the parent company's registered office is located, which is undergoing energy efficiency improvements;
e the Parent company has always favoured digital channels in its relationship with Customers , without the use of branches. This reduces
the emissions caused by Customers travelling to use the financial services provided by the Bank;
¢ no Group company has credit exposures to Customers or non-financial counterparties, which could cause significant environmental impacts
with their production activities;
e current account overdraft and personal loans, provided exclusively by the Parent company, are addressed to retail Customers and, by their
nature, are loans with no purpose, so it is not possible for the Bank to determine their possible generation of environmental impacts;
e exposures to financial counterparties are made to industry leaders with high creditworthiness, and are predominantly backed by financial
collateral, the value of which is subject to frequent monitoring and margin calls;
o the strategic investments (as held to maturity) of the Group Companies are mainly made to sovereign counterparties (Sovereign States
and international governmental organisations) belonging to Western countries, whose economies are not dependent on fossil fuel exports.
In the case of real estate loans, the parent company's portfolio consists of properties in various energy classes, including those with high carbon
dioxide emissions. However, restricting the granting of mortgages to energy-efficient properties without adequate public incentives would have negative
consequences for the poorer social strata, who cannot afford more energy-efficient properties. However, in order to adequately monitor the transition
risk in real estate securing mortgages, a new indicator on the energy class of real estate securing new lending was included in the RAF
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1.2.4 Disclosure requirements in ESRS covered by the Consolidated Sustainability Reporting (IRO-2)

The following table shows both all disclosures arising from other EU legislation documents listed in Appendix B of ESRS 2, and the disclosure
requirements Fineco has fulfilled based on the results of the Double Materiality assessment, and where they can be found in the Consolidated
Sustainability Reporting, including those Fineco has assessed as not material. Also indicated are the above-mentioned items in respect of which
Fineco, in the first year of reporting, may omit the relevant information (so-called phase-in).

Disclosure requirement / information Requirements from other EU legislation Location in Sustainabilitv Rebortin
element / Entity specific topic documents16:17:18:19 y Reporting

ESRS 2 - General information

[BP-1] General Criteria for drawing up the
ESRS 2 BP-1 - General basis for preparation of Sustainability Report

sustainability statement

Par.1.1.1

[BP-2] Disclosure in connection with specific
ESRS 2 BP-2 Disclosures in relation to specific circumstances
circumstances

Par.1.1.2

[GOV-1] The role of the administrative, management
ESRS 2 GOV-1The role of the administrative, and supervisory bodies

management and supervisory bodies
Par. 1.3.1

SFDR: Annex 1, table 1, indicator no. 13
[GOV-1] The role of the administrative, management and
ESRS 2 GOV-1 The Board’s Gender diversity supervisory bodies

paragraph 21 (d) ) )
Benchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation (EU) |par. 1.3.1

2020/1816 of the Commission, Annex Il

[GOV-1] The role of the administrative, management and
ESRS 2 GOV-1 Percentage of independent board | Benchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation (EU) supervisory bodies

members paragraph 21 (e) 2020/1816 of the Commission, Annex |l

Par.1.3.1

[GOV-2] Information provided to and sustainability
ESRS 2 GOV-2: Information provided to and matters addressed by the undertaking's
sustainability matters addressed by the undertaking’s administrative, management and supervisory bodies

administrative, management and supervisory bodies
Par. 1.3.2

[GOV-3] Integration of sustainability-related performance
ESRS 2 GOV-3 Integration of sustainability-related in incentive schemes

performance in incentive schemes
Par. 1.3.3

[GOV-4] Statement on due diligence
ESRS 2 GOV-4 Statement on due diligence

Par1.3.4
. i [GOV-4] Statement on due diligence
ESRS 2 GOV-4 Statement on due diligence SFDR: Annex 1. table 3, indicator no. 10
paragraph 30 Par.1.3.4

[GOV-5] Risk management and internal controls over
ESRS 2 GOV-5 Risk management and internal sustainability reporting

controls over sustainability reporting
Par. 1.3.5

16 2019/2088) Regulation (EU) of the European Parliament and of the Council of 27 November 2019 on sustainability-related disclosures in the financial services sector (SFDR) ( OJ L 317 of 9.12.2019, p. 1).

17 Regulation (EU) no. 575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on prudential requirements for credit institutions and amending Regulation (EU) No 648/2012 (Capital Requirements Regulation)
(OJ L 176 of 27.6.2013, p. 1).

18 Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 8 June 2016 on indices used as benchmarks in financial instruments and financial contracts or to measure the performance of investment funds
and amending Directives 2008/48/EC and 2014/17/EU and Regulation (EU) No 596/2014 (OJ L 171, 29.6.2016, p. 1).

19 Regulation (EU) 2021/1119 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 30 June 2021 establishing the framework for achieving climate neutrality and amending Regulation (EC) No 401/2009 and Regulation (EU)
2018/1999 (‘European Climate Regulation’) (OJ L 243, 9.7.2021, p. 1).
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Requirements from other EU legislation
documents!6:1718:19

Location in Sustainability Reporting

Disclosure requirement / information
element / Entity specific topic

ESRS 2 SBM-1 Strategy, business model and value
chain

ESRS 2 SBM-1 Involvement in activities related to
fossil fuel activities paragraph 40 (d) i)

ESRS 2 SBM-1 Involvement in activities related to
chemical production paragraph 40 (d) ii)

ESRS 2 SBM-1 Participation in activities related to
controversial weapons paragraph 40 (d) iii)

ESRS 2 SBM-1 Involvement in activities related to
cultivation and production of tobacco paragraph 40

(d) iv)

ESRS 2 SBM-2 Interests and views of stakeholders

ESRS 2 SBM-3 Material impacts, risks and
opportunities and their interaction with strategy and
business model

ESRS 2 IRO-1 Description of the processes to
identify and assess material impacts, risks and
opportunities

ESRS 2 IRO-2 Disclosure requirements in ESRS
covered by the undertaking’s sustainability statement

ESRS E1 - Climate Change

ESRS 2 GOV-3 E1 Integration of sustainability-
related performance in incentive schemes

SFDR: Annex 1, table 1, indicator no. 4

Third pillar: Article 449 bis of regulation (EU)
n0.575/2013; Commission Implementing Regulation
(EU) 2022/2453 Table 1: Qualitative information on
Environmental risk and Table 2: Qualitative
information on Social risk

Benchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1816 of the Commission, Annex I

SFDR: Annex 1, table 2, indicator no. 9

Benchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1816 of the Commission, Annex Il

SFDR: Annex 1, table 1, indicator no. 14

Benchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1818, Article 12(1) Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1816, Annex |1

Benchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1818, Article 12(1) Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1816, Annex Il

[SBM-1] Strategy, business model and value chain
Par.1.2.1

For the 2024 tax year, which corresponds to the first
year of preparation of the Sustainability Reporting in
accordance with the ESRS, with regard to paragraph
40 (b, c) there is a phase-in option in relation to
disclosure.

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

[SBM-2] Interests and views of stakeholders
Par.1.2.2

[SBM-3] Material impacts, risks and opportunities and
their interaction with strategy and business model

Par.1.2.5

For the 2024 tax year, there is a phase-in option with
respect to the disclosure of future financial effects as
required by paragraph 48(e)

[IRO-1] Description of the process to identify and assess

material impacts, risks and opportunities

Par.1.2.3

[IRO-2] Disclosure requirements in ESRS covered by the

Consolidated Sustainability reporting
Par.1.2.4

[GOV-3] Integration of sustainability-related performance

in incentive schemes

Par.1.3.3

FinecoBank - Accounts and Reports 2024

115



Teleborsa: distribution and commercial use strictly prohibited smarkek

sdir storage

Consolidated report on operations ——
o0l

Consolidated Sustainability reporting

Disclosure requirement / information Requirements from other EU legislation Location in Sustainabilitv Rebortin
element / Entity specific topic documents16:17:18:19 y Reporting

ESRS E1-1 Transition plan for climate change [E1-1] - Transition plan for climate change mitigation

mitigation Par2.2.2

ESRS E1-1Transition plan to reach climate neutrality EU climate legislation: Regulation (EU) 2021/1119, |[E1-1]=Transition plan for climate change mitigation
by 2050 paragraph 14 Article 2(1) Par.222

Third pillar: Article 449 bis of Regulation (EU)
n0.575/2013; Commission implementing Regulation
(EU) 2022/2453, Template 1: Banking book —

ESRS E1-1Undertakings excluded from Paris- Climate Change transition risk: Credit quality of [E1-1] - Transition plan for climate change mitigation

) exposures by sector, emissions and residual maturity
aligned Benchmarks paragraph 16 (g) Par. 222

Benchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1818, Article12.1 (d) to (g), and Article 12.2

ESRS 2 SBM-3 E1 Material impacs, risks and [SBM-3] Material impacts, risks and opportunities and
opportunities and their interaction with strategy and their interaction with strategy and business model
business model Par.1.2.5

[IRO-1] Description of the processes to identify and

ESRS 2 IRO-1 E1Description of the processes to assess material impacts, risks and opportunities related to
identify and assess material impacts, risks and climate
opportunities

Par.1.2.3

E1-2 — Policies related to climate change mitigation and
ESRS E1-2 Policies related to climate change adaptation

mitigation and adaptation
Par.2.2.1

[E1-3] - Actions and resources in relation to climate
ESRS E1-3 Actions and resources in relation to change policies

climate change policies
Par.2.2.3

[E1-4] Targets related to climate change mitigation and
ESRS E1-4 Targets related to climate change adaptation

mitigation and adaptation
Par.2.2.3

SFDR: Annex |, table 2, indicator no. 4

Third pillar: Article 449 bis of Regulation (EU) . o
n0.575/2013; Commission implementing Regulation [E1-4] Targets related to climate change mitigation and

(EU) 2022/2453, Template 3: Banking book - Climate d@ptation
change transition risk: alignment metrics Par. 2.2.3

ESRS E1-4 GHG emission reduction targets
paragraph 34

Benchmark Regulation: Article 6 of Delegated
Regulation 2020/1818

[E1-5] Energy consumption and mix
ESRS E1-5 Energy consumption and mix

Par.2.2.4
E.SRS E1-5 Energy consumption from TOSS" §0urces SFDR: Annex |, table 1, indicator no.5 and Annex |,
disaggregated by sources (only high climate impact . N/A
table 2, indicator no. 5
sectors) paragraph 38
. ; f [E1-5] Energy consumption and mix
;SRS E1-5 Energy consumption and mix paragraph SFDR: Annex |, table 1, indicator no. 5
Par.2.2.4
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Disclosure requirement / information Requirements from other EU legislation Location in Sustainability Rebortin
element / Entity specific topic documents'6:17:18;19 ¥ Reporting

ESRS E1-5 Energy intensity associated with

activities in high climate impact sectors paragraphs | SFDR: Annex I, table 1, indicator no. 6 N/A

401043

ESRS E1-6 Gross Scopes 1, 2, 3 and total GHG [E1-6] Gross Scopes 1, 2, 3 and total GHG emissions
emissions Par.2.2.5

SFDR: Indicators number 1 and 2 Table #1 of Annex
1

Third pillar: Article 449 bis of Regulation (EU)

n0.575/2013; Commission implementing Regulation [E1-6] Gross Scopes 1, 2, 3 and total GHG emissions
ESRS E1-6 Gross Scope 1, 2, 3and total GHG 1 ¢ 5519453, Template 1: Banking book - Climate
change transition risk: Credit quality of exposures by | Par. 2.2.5
sector, emissions and residual maturity

emissions, paragraph 44

Benchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1818, Article 5(1), 6 and 8(1)

SFDR: Annex 1, table 1, indicator no. 3

Third pillar: Article 449 bis of Regulation (EU)

no.575/2013; Commission implementing Regulation |1£1.6] Gross Scopes 1, 2, 3 and total GHG emissions
(EU) 2022/2453, Template 3: Banking book - climate

change transition risk: alignment metrics Par.2.25

ESRS E1-6 Gross GHG emissions intensity
paragraphs 53 to 55

Benchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation
(EU) 2020/1818, Article 8(1)

ESRS E1-7 GHG removals and GHG emission

mitigation projects financed through carbon credits NiA

ESRS E1-7 GHG removals and carbon credits EU climate legislation: Regulation (EU) 2021/1119,

N/A
paragraph 56 Article 2(1) I

ESRS E1-9 Anticipated financial effects from
material physical and transition risks and potential
climate-related opportunities

Benchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation
(EU) 2020/1818, Annex Il Delegated Regulation
(EU) 2020/1816, Annex I

ESRS E1-9 Exposure of the benchmark portfolio to
climate-related physical risks paragraph 66

ESRS E1-9 Disaggregation of monetary amounts by

acute and chronic physical risk paragraph 66 (a) Third pillar: Article 449 bis of Regulation (EU)

n0.575/2013; points 46 and 47 of Commission .
implementing Regulation (EU) 2022/2453; Template |For the 2024 tax year, which corresponds to the first

' o » 5: Banking book - Climate change physical risk: year of preparation of Sustainability Reporting in
ESRS E1-9 Location of significant activities at exposures subject to physical risk accordance with ESRS, the Fineco Group decided to

material physical risk paragraph 66 (c) make use of the phase-in option in relation to the
Third pillar: Article 449 bis of Regulation (EU) disclosure of future financial effects.
n0.575/2013; paragraph 34 of the implementing

ESRS E1-9 Breakdown of the carrying value of its  régulation

real estate assets by energy-efficiency classes (EU) 2022/2453 of the Commission; Model 2:

paragraph 67 (c) Banking book - Climate change transition risk: loans
collateralised by immovable property - Energy
efficiency of the collateral

ESRS E1-9 Degree of exposure of the portfolio to Third pillar: Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1818,
climate- related opportunities paragraph 69 Annex Il

ESRS E2 - Pollution
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Disclosure requirement / information Requirements from other EU legislation Location in Sustainabilitv Rebortin
element / Entity specific topic documents16:17:18:19 y Reporting

[IRO-1] Description of the processes to identify and

ESRS 2 IRO-1 E2 Description of the processes to assess material impacts, risks and opportunities related to
identify and assess material impacts, risks and pollution
opportunities related to pollution
Par. 1.2.3
ESRS E2-4 Air, water and soil pollution Not material

ESRS E2-4 Amount of each pollutant listed in Annex
Il of the E-PRTR Regulation (European Pollutant
Release and Transfer Register) emitted to air, water
and soil, paragraph 28

SFDR: Annex |, table 1, indicator no. 8; annex |,
table 2, indicator no. 2; annex 1, table 2, indicator | Not material
no. 1; annex |, table 2, indicator no. 3

ESRS E3 Water and marine resources

ESRS 2 IRO-1 E3 Description of the processes to [IRO-1] Description of the processes to identify and assess
identify and assess material water and marine material water-related impacts, risks and opportunities
resources-related impacts, risks and opportunities Par.12.3
ESRS E3-1 Policies related to water and marine )
Not material
resources
SSRS E3-1 Water and marine resources, paragraph SFDR: Annex |, table 2, indicator no. 7 Not material
ESRS E3-1 Dedicated Policy, paragraph 13 SFDR: Annex |, table 2, indicator no. 8 Not material
ffRS E3-1Sustainable oceans and seas paragraph | qere. p ey | table 2, indicator no. 12 Not material
ESRS E3-4 Water consumption Not material
ESRS E3-4 Total water recycled and reused SFDR: Annex |, table 2, indicator no. 6.2 Not material
paragraph 28 (c)
- i i 3
ESRS E3-4 Total water consumption in m* per net SFDR: Annex |, table 2, indicator no. 6.1 Not material

revenue on own operations paragraph 29

ESRS E4 Biodiversity and ecosystems

ESRS 2 SBM-3 E4 Material impacts, risks and
opportunities and their interaction with strategy and Not material
business model

ESRS 2 SBM-3 E4 paragraph 16 (a) i) SFDR: Annex |, table 1, indicator no. 7 Not material
ESRS 2 SBM-3 E4 paragraph 16 (b) SFDR: Annex |, table 2, indicator no. 10 Not material
ESRS 2 SBM-3 E4 paragraph 16 (c) SFDR: Annex |, table 2, indicator no. 14 Not material

[E4 IRO-1] Description of processes to identify and

ESRS 2 IRO-1 E4 Description of processes to assess material biodiversity and ecosystem-related
identify and assess material biodiversity and impacts, risks and opportunities
ecosystem-related impacts, risks and opportunities
Par1.2.3
ESRS E4-2 Biodiversity and ecosystem policies Not material
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Disclosure requirement / information Requirements from other EU legislation
element / Entity specific topic documents'6:17:18;19

ESRS E4-2 Sustainable land / agriculture practices
or policies paragraph 24 (b)

SFDR: Annex |, table 2, indicator no. 11

ESRS E4-2 Sustainable oceans / seas practices or

- SFDR: Annex |, table 2, indicator no. 12
policies paragraph 24 (c)

ESRS E4-2 Policies to address deforestation

paragraph 24 (d) SFDR: Annex |, table 2, indicator no. 15

ESRS ES5 - Circular Economy

ESRS 2 IRO-1 E5 Description of the processes to
identify and assess material resource use and
circular economy-related impacts, risks and
opportunities

ESRS E5-1 Resource use and circular economy
policies

ESRS E5-2 Actions and resources in relation to
resource use and circular economy

ESRS E5-3 Targets related to resource use and
circular economy

ESRS E5-4 Incoming resource flows
ESRS E5-5 Resource outflows

ESRS E5-5 Non-recycled waste paragraph 37 (d) | SFDR: Annex |, table 2, indicator no. 13

ESRS E5-5 Hazardous waste and radioactive waste SFDR: Annex |, table 1, indicator no. 9
paragraph 39

ESRS S1 Own workforce

ESRS 2 SBM-2 S1 Interests and views of
stakeholders

ESRS 2 SBM-3 S1 Material impacts, risks and
opportunities and their interaction with strategy and
business model

ESRS 2 SBM-3 S1 Risk of forced labour paragraph

1400 SFDR: Annex |, table 3, indicator no. 13

ESRS 2 SBM-3 S1 Risk of child labour paragraph 14

@ SFDR: Annex |, table 3, indicator no. 12

Location in Sustainability Reporting

Not material

Not material

Not material

[IRO-1] Description of the processes to identify and
assess material resource use and circular economy-
related impacts, risks and opportunities

Par.1.2.3
[E5-1] Resource use and circular economy policies
Par.2.3.1

[E5-2] Actions and resources in relation to resource use
and circular economy

Par.2.3.2

[E5-3] Targets related to resource use and circular
economy

Par.2.3.2
[E5-4] Incoming resource flows

Par.2.3.3

Not material

Not material

Not material

[SBM-2] Interests and views of stakeholders
Par.1.2.2

[S1-SBM3] Material impacts, risks and opportunities and
their interaction with strategy and business model

Par.1.2.5

[S1-SBM3] Material impacts, risks and opportunities and
their interaction with strategy and business model

Par.1.2.5

[S1-SBM3] Material impacts, risks and opportunities and
their interaction with strategy and business model

Par.1.2.5
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Disclosure requirement / information Requirements from other EU legislation Location in Sustainabilitv Rebortin
element / Entity specific topic documents16:17:18:19 y Reporting

[S1-1] Policies related to own workforce

ESRS S1-1 - Policies related to own workforce
Par.3.2.1 and 3.3.1

ESRS S1-1 Human rights policy commitments SFDR: Indicator number 9 Table #3 and Indicator | [S1-1] Policies related to own workforce
paragraph 20 number 11 Table #1 of Annex 1 Par.3.2.1 and 3.3.1

ESRS S1-1 Due diligence policies on issues
addressed by the fundamental International Labor
Organisation Conventions 1 to 8, paragraph 21

Benchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation (EU) |[S1-1]Policies related to own workforce
2020/1816 of the Commission, Annex Il Par.3.2.1 and 3.3.1

ESRS S1-1 Procedures and measures for preventing SFDR: Annex | {able 3. indicator no. 11 [S1-1] Policies related to own workforce

trafficking in human beings paragraph 22 Par.3.2.1 and 3.3.1

R i i i [S1-1] Policies related to own workforce
ESRS S1-1 Workplace accident prevention policy or SFDR: Annex |, table 3, indicator no. 1
management system paragraph 23 Par. 3.2.1 and 3.3.1

o [S1-2] Processes for engaging with own workforce and
ESRS §1-2 Processes for engaging with own workers’ representatives about impacts

workers and workers' representatives about impacts
Par.3.2.2and 3.3.2

ESRS S1-3 Processes to remediate negative [S1-3] Processes to remediate negative impacts and
impacts and channels for own workers to raise channels for own workers to raise concerns
concerns Par.3.1.1

[S1-3] Processes to remediate negative impacts and

ESRS $1-3 Grievance/complaints handling SFDR: Annex |, table 3, indicator no. 5 channels for own workers to raise concems
mechanisms paragraph 32 (c)

Par.3.1.1

ESRS S1-4 Taking action on material impacts on [$1-4] Taking action on material impacts on own
own workforce, and approaches to mitigating workforce, and approaches to mitigating material risks
material risks and pursuing material opportunities and pursuing material opportunities related to own
related to own workforce, and effectiveness of those workforce, and effectiveness of those actions
actions Par.3.2.3and 3.3.3

) ) [S1-5] Targets related to managing material negative
ESRS S1-5 - Targets related to managing material impacts, advancing positive impacts, and managing
negative impacts, advancing positive impacts, and material risks and opportunities

managing material risks and opportunities

Par.3.2.4 and 3.3.4
ESRS S1-6 — Characteristics of the Undertaking’s [S1-6] Characteristics of the Undertaking’s Employees
Employees Par.3.2.5

[S1-7] Characteristics of non-employee workers in the
ESRS S1-7 Characteristics of non-employee workers undertaking’s own workforce

in the undertaking’s own workforce

Par.3.3.5
ESRS $1-8 Collective bargaining coverage and [S1-8] Collective bargaining coverage and social dialogue
social dialogue Par. 3.2.6

[S1-9] Diversity metrics
ESRS S1-9 Diversity metrics
Par.3.2.5

[S1-10] Adequate wages
ESRS S1-10 Adequate wages
Par.3.2.7
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[S1-11] Social protection

ESRS S1-11 Social protection
Par.3.2.8 and 3.3.6

[S1-12] Persons with disabilities
ESRS S1-12 Persons with disabilities

Par.3.2.9

[S1-13] Training and skills development metrics
ESRS S1-13 Training and skills development metrics

Par.3.2.10 and 3.3.7

ESRS S1-14 Health and safety metrics Not material

ESRS S1-14 Number of fatalities and number and | SFDR: Annex |, table 3, indicator no. 2

rate of work-related accidents paragraph 88 (b) Benchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation (EU) Not material
and (c) 2020/1816 of the Commission, Annex |l
ESRS $1-14 Number of days lost to injuries, SFDR: Annex |, table 3, indicator no. 3 Not material

accidents, fatalities or illness paragraph 88 (e)

[S1-15] Work-life balance metrics
ESRS S1-15 Work-life balance metrics
Par. 3.2.11

[S1-16] Compensation metrics (pay gap and total
ESRS $1-16 Compensation metrics (pay gap and compensation)

total compensation)

Par. 3.2.12
SFDR: Annex |, table 1, indicator no. 12 [S1-16] Compensation metrics (pay gap and total
ESRS S1-16 Incorrect gender pay gap, paragraph . . compensation)
97a) Benchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation
(EU) 2020/1816 of the Commission, Annex Il Par. 3.2.12
[S1-16] Compensation metrics (pay gap and total
ESRS S1-16 E i in f f th -
SRS $1-16 Excessive pay gap in favour of the SFDR: Annex |, table 3, indicator no. 8 compensation)
CEOQ, paragraph 97(b)
Par. 3.2.12

[S1-17] Incidents, complaints and severe human rights
ESRS $1-17 Incidents, complaints and severe impacts

human rights impacts
Par.3.2.13

[S1-17] Incidents, complaints and severe human rights

ESRS S1-17 Incidents of discrimination paragraph SFDR: Annex |, table 3, indicator no. 7 impacts
103 (a)
Par. 3.2.13
SFDR: Indicator number 10 Table #1 and Indicator

ESRS $1-17 Non-respect of UNGPs on Business number 14 Table #3 of Annex 1 [$1-17] Incidents, complaints and severe human rights

. . o impacts
and Human Rights principles and OECD guidelines  genchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation (EU) P
paragraph 104 20201818, Annex Il and article 12, paragraph 1 |Par. 3.2.13

Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1818
ESRS S2 - Workers in the value chain

ESRS 2 SBM-3 S2 Significant risk of child labour or |SFDR: Indicators number 12 and 13 Table #3 of .
. . Not material
forced labour in the value chain paragraph 11 (b) ~ |Annex 1

ESRS S2-1 Policies related to value chain workers Not material

SFDR: Indicator number 9 Table #3 and Indicator .
ESRS S2-1 number 11 Table #1 of Annex 1 Not material
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Human rights policy commitments paragraph 17

ESRS S2-1 Policies related to value chain workers
paragraph 18

ESRS S2-1 Non-respect of UNGPs on Business and
Human Rights principles and OECD guidelines
paragraph 19

ESRS S2-1 Due diligence policies on issues
addressed by the fundamental International Labor
Organisation Conventions 1 to 8, paragraph 19

ESRS S2-4 Human rights issues and incidents
connected to its upstream and downstream value
chain paragraph 36

ESRS S3 - Affected communities

ESRS 2 SBM-2 S3 Interests and views of
stakeholders

ESRS 2 SBM-3 S3 Material impacts, risks and
opportunities and their interaction with strategy and
business model

ESRS 2 S3-1 Policies related to affected
communities

ESRS S3-1 Human rights policy commitments
paragraph 16

ESRS S3-1Non-respect of UNGPs on Business and
Human Rights, ILO principles or and OECD
guidelines paragraph 17

ESRS S3-2 Processes for engaging with affected
communities about impacts

ESRS S3-3 Processes to remediate negative
impacts and channels for affected communities to
raise concerns

ESRS S3-4 Taking action on material impacts on
affected communities, and approaches to managing
material risks and pursuing material opportunities
related to affected communities, and effectiveness of
those actions

Requirements from other EU legislation
documents'6:17:18:19

SFDR: Indicators number 11 and 4 Table #3 of
Annex 1

SFDR: Annex |, table 1, indicator no. 10

Benchmark Regulation: Annex Il of Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2020/1816 and Article 12(1)

of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/1818

Benchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1816 of the Commission, Annex Il

SFDR: Annex 1, table 3, indicator no. 14

SFDR: Indicator number 9 Table #3 and Indicator
number 11 Table #1 of Annex 1

SFDR: Annex |, table 1, indicator no. 10

Benchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation
(EU) 2020/1818, Annex Il and article 12,
paragraph 1 Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1818

Location in Sustainability Reporting

Not material

Not material

Not material

Not material

[SBM-2] Interests and views of stakeholders
Par.1.2.2

[S3-SBM3] Material impacts, risks and opportunities and
their interaction with strategy and business model

Par.1.2.5
[S3-1] Policies related to own workforce
Par. 3.4.1
[S3-1] Policies related to own workforce

Par.34.1

Not material

[S3-2] Processes for engaging with affected communities

about impacts

Par.34.2,343and 3.44

Not material

[S3-4] Taking action on material impacts on affected

communities, and approaches to managing material risks

and pursuing material opportunities related to affected
communities, and effectiveness of those actions

Par.34.2,343and 3.44
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ESRS S3-4 Human rights issues and incidents
paragraph 36

ESRS S3-5 - Targets related to managing material
negative impacts, advancing positive impacts, and
managing material risks and opportunities

ESRS S4 - Consumers and end users

ESRS 2 SBM-2 S4: Interests and views of
stakeholders

ESRS 2 SBM-3 S4 Material impacts, risks and
opportunities and their interaction with strategy
and business model

ESRS S4-1 - Policies related to consumers and
end-users

ESRS S4-1 Policies related to consumers and
end-users paragraph 16

SFDR: Annex 1, table 3, indicator no. 14

SFDR: Indicator number 9 Table #3 and Indicator
number 11 Table #1 of Annex 1

Not material

[S3-5] Targets related to managing material negative
impacts, advancing positive impacts, and managing
material risks and opportunities

Par.34.2

[SBM-2] Interests and views of stakeholders
Par.1.2.2

[S4-SBM3] Material impacts, risks and opportunities
and their interaction with strategy and business model

Par.1.2.5

[S4-1] Policies related to consumers and end-users

Par. 3.5.1

[S4-1] Policies related to consumers and end-users

Par.3.5.1

SFDR: Annex |, table 1, indicator no. 10

ESRS S4-1 Non-respect of UNGPs on Business
and Human Rights and OECD guidelines
paragraph 17

ESRS S4-2 Processes for engaging with consumers
and end-users about impacts

ESRS S4-3 Processes to remediate negative
impacts and channels for consumers and end-users
to raise concerns

ESRS S4-4 Taking action on material impacts on
consumers and end-users, and approaches to
managing material risks and pursuing material
opportunities related to consumers and end-users,
and effectiveness of those actions

ESRS S4-4 Human rights issues and incidents
paragraph 35

ESRS S4-5 Targets related to managing material
negative impacts, advancing positive impacts, and
managing material risks and
opportunities(consumers and end users)

Benchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation
(EU) 2020/1818, Annex Il and article 12,
paragraph 1 Delegated Regulation (EU)
2020/1818

SFDR: Annex 1, table 3, indicator no. 14

[S4-1] Policies related to consumers and end-users

Par.3.5.1

[S4-2] Processes for engaging with consumers and end-
users about impacts

Par.3.5.2

[S4-3] Processes to remediate negative impacts and
channels for consumers and end-users to raise concemns

Par.3.5.3

[S4-4]Taking action on material impacts on consumers
and end-users, and approaches to managing material
risks and pursuing material opportunities related to
consumers and end-users, and effectiveness of those
actions

Par3.54

[S4-4]Taking action on material impacts on consumers
and end-users, and approaches to managing material
risks and pursuing material opportunities related to
consumers and end-users, and effectiveness of those
actions

Par.3.5.4

[S4-5] Targets related to managing material negative
impacts, advancing positive impacts, and managing
material risks and opportunities

Par.3.5.5
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element / Entity specific topic documents16:17:18:19

ESRS G1 - Business conduct

ESRS 2 GOV-1 G1 The role of the administrative,
management and supervisory bodies

ESRS 2 IRO-1 G1 Description of the processes to
identify and assess material impacts, risks and
opportunities

ESRS G1-1 Business conduct policies and corporate
culture

ESRS G1-1 United Nations Convention against

Corruption paragraph 10 (b) SFDR: Annex |, table 3, indicator no. 15

ESRS G1-1 Protection of whistle- blowers paragraph

10 (d) SFDR: Annex |, table 3, indicator no. 6

ESRS G1-3 Prevention and detection of corruption
and bribery

ESRS G1-4 Established cases of corruption and
bribery

SFDR: Annex |, table 3, indicator no. 17

ESRS G1-4 Fines for violation of anti-corruption and
anti-bribery laws paragraph 24 (a)

2020/1816, Annex Il

ESRS G1-4 Standards of anti- corruption and anti-

bribery paragraph 24 (b) SFDR: Annex |, table 3, indicator no. 16

Entity specific topic - Sustainable finance

Sustainable finance

Entity specific topic - Innovation

Innovation

Entity specific topic - Cybersecurity and information security

Cybersecurity and information security

[GOV-1] The role of the administrative, management and
supervisory bodies

Par. 1.3.1

[IRO-1] Description of the processes to identify and
assess material impacts, risks and opportunities

Par.1.2.3
[G1-1] Business conduct policies and corporate culture

Par. 4.1 and 4.2

N/A

N/A

[G1-3] Prevention and detection of corruption and bribery

Par. 4.3

[G1-4] Established cases of corruption and bribery

Benchmark Regulation: Delegated Regulation (EU)Par-44.

Par. 5.1
Governance
Strategy

Managing Impacts, Risks and Opportunities (IRO)
(including policies and actions) (G4 - FS14, G4 - FS16)

Metrics and Targets (G4 - FS7, G4 - FS8, G4 - FS11)

Par. 5.2
Governance
Strategy

Managing Impacts, Risks and Opportunities (IRO)
(including policies and actions)

Metrics and targets

Par. 5.3

Governance
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Strategy

Managing Impacts, Risks and Opportunities (IRO)
(including policies and actions)

Metrics and targets

The Group conducted an assessment of the impact and financial relevance of the topics covered by the topical ESRS. The topics (also subdivided
into Sub-topics and Sub-sub-topics) have impact materiality or financial materiality by considering the severity and likelihood of the positive and
negative short-, medium- and long-term impacts resulting from operations and the Value Chain and analysing the magnitude and likelihood of risks
and opportunities in terms of financial materiality.

As previously described, the assessments made by Management, Financial Advisors and Investors (through Stakeholder Engagement) led to the
definition of materiality thresholds along a scale of 1 to 16. The relevance threshold for assessing the relevance of each sustainability issue was set
at a value greater than 6 for impact materiality and greater than or equal to 6 for financial materiality. Scores on the scale from 1 to 16 are identified
by assigning a score from 1 (low) to 4 (very high) to severity and likelihood (for impacts) and to magnitude and likelihood (for risks and opportunities).

As a result of the Double Materiality Analysis carried out for the financial year 2024, the impacts and opportunities arising from climate change were
found to be relevant (above the threshold of 6) for the FinecoBank Group, while the risks were found to be not relevant (below the threshold of 6).

As a result of the Double Materiality Analysis, the following topics were deemed relevant:

Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation (ESRS E1)
Resource use and circular economy (ESRS E5)

Own workforce, i.e. Employees and PFA (ESRS S1)
Affected communities (ESRS S3)

Consumers and End-Users (ESRS S4)

Corporate Conduct (ESRS G1)

Sustainable finance (entity specific)

Innovation (entity specific)

Cybersecurity and information security (entity specific).

The related impacts, risks and opportunities are explained within the chapters in which they are dealt with.

Fineco's Double Materiality Analysis 2024 mapped all possible topics in Table AR 16 of ESRS 1 applicable to the Group's situation in order to submit
a complete list for stakeholder assessment. However, the final evaluations revealed that the following topics were not considered relevant:

e  Pollution (ESRS E2)

e  Water and Marine Resources (contained in ESRS E3)

e  Biodiversity and ecosystems (ESRS E4)

e Workers in the value chain (ESRS S2).
These considerations stem from the assessments made through stakeholder engagement, which took into account the Group's business and its main
activities, including those of the Value Chain.

1.2.5 Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy and business model (SBM-3; S1-
SBM-3; S3-SBM-3; S4-SBM-3)

During 2024, the Impacts, Risks and Opportunities related to relevant sustainability issues were identified, starting with an analysis of the Group's
business model, thus taking into consideration corporate strategy, business activities, market trends and the supply of goods and services to
Customers. These analyses and considerations formed the basis for the development of the Double Materiality Analysis, the results of which were
formalised in the final list of relevant IROs.

The Group's business model consists of providing financial services to retail Customers (highly diversified by wealth, age and gender), both through
the Financial Advisor Network and through the digital platform. From a risk perspective, the Risk Appetite Framework (RAF) was also examined, which
represents the reference framework that defines - in line with the maximum risk that can be taken, the business model and the strategic plan - the risk
appetite, tolerance thresholds, risk limits, risk governance policies and the reference processes required to define and implement them.
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The following table summarises all the Topics and related Sub-Topics identified by Fineco as relevant as a result of the Double Materiality Analysis
process, specifying where, within the Group's business model, they are located - in its Own Operations and/or in the Value Chain - and the expected
time horizon with reference to the impacts.
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RELEVANT RELEVANT SUB- IMPACTS EXPECTED TIME | RISKS OPPORTUNITIES OWN
TOPICS TOPICS HORIZON OF OPERATIONS /
IMPACTS VALUE CHAIN
1. Climate change | Climate change Positive Impacts Short/medium/long- - Customer loyalty and image Own operations
mitigation ) o s term enhancement (reputational opportunity) | /Value Chain
Climate ch i Dlssem;?a.t lon of quk |n|t|at|\(/jes for ¢ due to the offering of investment
imate change energy efficiency and increased use o products related to climate change
adaptation energy from renewable sources (actual) mitigation and adaptation
Energy - Conltrlbutlon to the development of - Cost reduction through high energy
sustainable finance by offering green - ; o
. ) efficiency in the Group’s offices
financing products to its Customers
(actual)
- Contribution to the climate transition
through investments in
banking/sovereign counterparties that
commit to Net Zero goals (actual)
Negative Impacts
- Energy consumption resulting from own
operations (actual)
- Generation of 'operational’ air
emissions including those linked to the
Value Chain (actual)
- Generation of 'financed' air emissions
(actual)
2. Use of Resource inflows, Positive Impacts Short term Own operations
resources and including use of - .
circular economy | resources - Contribution to a better optimisation of

the use of resources through the
adoption of digital solutions (digitisation)
(actual)
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Negative Impacts
- Consumption of materials for
operational activities such as paper,
toner, printers, computers and the tools
of the IT world (actual)
3. Own workforce | Working conditions Positive Impacts Short/medium term - Improving the productivity of its Own operations
Equal tre.a.tment and - Ensuring a safe working (.environm.ent20 Egzli(t)i)é?}zsi:ilel::qnzrz\fnggevézralkt:%vages,
opportunities for all through strict cor)trols, ﬂeX|bIe.\{vork|ng working hours and work-ife balance
hours, salary policies, competitive
benefits and work-life balance policies - Improving the productivity of PFAs
and personal commitments (actual) through improved working conditions
) . (including improved work-life balance
- Promotion of professional growth, . )
L : as a result of the digital experience)
gender equality, fair remuneration,
inclusion, diversity and measures - Improving loyalty and the perception
against violence (actual) of the Group’s reputation through
Negative Impacts improved working conditions for
Employees (inclusiveness, protection
- Unjustified wage disparity resulting in from acts of violence and harassment)
increased tumnover (potential) - Improving loyalty and the perception
- Low satisfaction/engagement related to of the Group’s reputation through
network management policies (potential) improved working conditions for PFAs
(inclusiveness, protection from acts of
violence and harassment)
4. Affected Communities’ Positive Impacts Long-term Value Chain
communities economic, social and

cultural rights

- Improved community relations through
community-driven financial education
initiatives aimed at increasing awareness
of informed financial choices (actual)

2 The concept of job security expressed by the IRO refers to job security and stability, not health and safety.
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5. Consumers Information-related Positive Impacts Short/medium/long- | - Reputational risk due to - Improved customer loyalty through Own operations
and end-users impacts for Provision of financial advi i term loss of reputational shares clear and transparent communication / Value Chain
consumers and/or j 0 dowsm Ot I'n? r(r:rl1a t? nwrsory ie Kt:r?st following the loss of including sustainability issues
end-users and access o information resources tha Customers’ personal data

Social inclusion of
consumers and/or end
users

enable more informed and responsible
financial decisions (actual)

- Accessibility of digital services offered
to ensure access for all types of
Customers (actual)

Negative Impacts

- Violation of customer privacy with
potential negative consequences for
customer security (actual)

- Irresponsible marketing practices
tending towards greenwashing (actual)

- Legal and conduct risk due
to financial losses from
lawsuits and customer
complaints in connection
with the placement of
products whose disclosures
do not adequately reflect the
sustainability profile of the
underlying assets

- Compliance risk due to the
imposition of fines or
penalties by the Supervisory
Authority in connection with
the placement of products
whose disclosures do not
adequately reflect the
sustainability profile of the
underlying assets

- Reputational risk due to
publication in newspapers of
the Group's alleged
involvement in a
greenwashing scandal

- Reputational risk for loss of
reputation due to publication
in newspapers of alleged
unfair business practices by
the Group, as well as fraud

- Attracting new Customers, increasing
the loyalty of existing Customers and
improving image with consequent
expansion of market share through the
implementation of digital/innovative
solutions, products and services

- Attracting new Customers and
increasing the loyalty of current
Customers, through inclusion initiatives
with dedicated targets (e.g. Underage
Account “Conto Minori”,
scholarships,etc.), with benefits also in
terms of brand identity
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or mis-selling events carried
out by consultants within the
sales network
- Operational risk for
financial losses due to legal
expenses and customer
claims related to mis-selling
events
6.Business Corporate culture Positive Impacts Medium/long-term - Operational risk due to the | - Attracting new investors/Customers Own operations
conduct performance of ordinary or through the presence and consolidation | / Value Chain

Corruption and bribery

- Dissemination of an ethical and
responsible business culture (actual)

- Dissemination of a culture open to
dialogue and to the protection of
whistleblowers, through appropriate
channels (actual)

- Increased stakeholder confidence
through financially sound and
transparent banking conduct (actual)

extraordinary operations in
violation of internal
procedures, without the
involvement or approval of
the competent corporate
bodies or functions

- Business risk due to loss of
market share as a result of
conducting activities in
breach of ethical standards

- Operational risk for
financial losses due to legal
expenses and customer
compensation related to
internal fraud events

- Operational risk for
financial losses due to
sanctions imposed by
supervisory authorities
following the detection of
business practices deemed

of a strong corporate culture

- Strengthening of the Network's
involvement in corporate ESG
strategies and in the achievement of
ESG objectives also through specific
training, with the aim of attracting new
Customers, improving brand identity
and spreading a culture of sustainability
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unfair or lacking
transparency

- Operational risk due to the
imposition of sanctions or
restrictions by the
supervisory authority for
deficiencies in the control
framework

- Reputational risk due to
publication in major
newspapers of alleged flaws
in the Group's anti-money
laundering and anti-terrorism
framework

7. Sustainable

Positive Impacts

Medium/long-term

Attraction of new Customers, increased

Own operations

finance Contribution to the devel tof revenues from investments (own and / Value Chain
- Lontribution o the development o for Customers) in instruments/products
sustainable finance through ESG . - .
) o ) . with ESG characteristics, with benefits
integration in internal investment choices also in terms of portfolio quality and
aEd thrtoug? produtc t <|)f'fer|ngs with ESG diversification and strengthening of
characteristics (actual) ESG components of brand identity.
- Fineco AM's stewardship activities
including proxy voting and direct
engagement with companies, integrating
sustainability considerations (potential)
8. Innovation - Positive Impacts Long-term - Operational efficiency (with positive Own operations

- Technological innovation, process
dematerialisation and digitisation aimed
at more effective and efficient business
operations, particularly from an
environmental perspective (reduction in

effects on the quality of work of
Employees and PFAs and the quality of
service offered to Customers) through
the use of new technologies (e.g. Al,
blockchain, cyber)
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consumption of natural resources and
waste production) (actual)
- Technological innovation and
digitisation aimed at maximising
customer satisfaction (through the
development of innovative and
environmentally friendly digital
platforms), in particular through the
digital offering of ESG products and
services (actual)
9.Cybersecurity - Negative Impacts Short term - ICT risk due to Customers Own operations
and information N ) being unable to access their / Value Chain
. - Loss of data, confidential business .
security assets for extended periods

information and breach of privacy
(actual)

due to cyberattacks or IT
incidents

- Reputational risk due to
loss of reputation following
cyber-attacks or IT incidents
with prolonged impact on
customer operations
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The current and prospective effects coming from the relevant risks and the actions to mitigate them are set out below:

e conduct risk, understood as the sum of operational losses related to internal fraud and those related to Customers , products and business
practices, constitutes one of the most significant risks for the Group, as it has a direct impact on Customers and losses on the profit and
loss account mainly due to legal costs and compensation paid to Customers who are victims of internal fraud or subject to financial product
mis-selling. Specifically, as of 31 December 2024, conduct risk accounts for 50% of the Group's operating losses. For mitigation purposes,
the Group has implemented an extensive system of controls over its sales network, involving all three levels of the defence lines. These
controls are aimed at identifying anomalies in the actions of Financial advisors or their associated Customers and enabling the relevant
structures to intervene in good time. The early identification of conduct risk makes it possible to limit losses and stem any reputational
consequences;

e |CT and security risk is also a major risk. In the specific case of the Bank, ICT and security risk could have a major impact on Customers
in the event of service disruptions due to IT failures or attacks and security holes. For Group entities, on the other hand, the risk materialises
both in the form of IT equipment restoration costs and in the form of losses for reimbursement of damages to Customers and legal expenses.
Lastly, in the event of prolonged interruptions or disclosure of Customers' personal data, the Group could suffer a significant loss in terms
of reputational share and see some of its Customers flee, resulting in less revenue. As of 31 December 2024, operational losses due to
business interruptions and system failures were very limited and amounted to 70,000 euros. Although the losses recorded historically have
always been small, the risk remains significant, both in terms of the relevance of the channels and the magnitude of the potential financial
and reputational effects. In order to mitigate risk, the Group maintains an ICT and Security risk management and monitoring framework
involving all three layers of the lines of defence. As of 31 December 2024, the latter is being reassessed in view of the implementation of
the EU Regulation on 